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BF UTILITIES LIMITED
Registered Office : Mundhwa, Pune Cantonment, Pune 411 036.

CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Phone No: 7719004777 Website : www.bfutilities.com Email id : Secretarial@bfutilities.com

NOTICE OF THE 24TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Members of BF Utilities Limited will
be held on Tuesday, 24th day of December, 2024, at 11:00 a.m. Indian Standard Time (IST) through Video Conference
("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") facility, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1 . To consider and adopt :

a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31,
2024, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31,
2024 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

2 . To appoint a Director in place of Mr. A. B. Kalyani (DIN: 00089430), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3 . Approval of Related Party Transaction with Bharat Forge Limited.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of Section 188 and any other provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder and in terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
( Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 "Regulations" (including statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such other statutory approvals
as may be necessary, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors to enter into
transaction/s of purchase/sale of goods / services, lease, transfer, assign or otherwise etc., whether material or
otherwise, for the period of one (1) financial year with effect from April 1, 2025 till March 31, 2026, of the
Company with Bharat Forge Limited - Related Party, upto an estimated annual value of Rs. 500 millions, to be
discharged in a manner and on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board
of Directors of the Company and Bharat Forge Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to negotiate
and finalise other terms and conditions and to do all such acts, deeds and things including delegation of powers
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution."

By Order of the Board

For BF Utilities Limited

B. S. Mitkari

Place : Pune Company Secretary
Date : November 23, 2024 Membership No.FCS/3237

Registered Office:

Mundhwa Pune cantonment Pune MH 411036 IN
CIN: L40108PN2000PLC015323

E-mail: Secretarial@bfutilities.com
Website: www.bfutilities.com
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NOTES :

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its General Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, General
Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 03/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular
No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and General
Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 respectively and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD PoD 2/P/CIR/2023/
167 dated October 07, 2023 read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11,
2023 and Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024 issued by Securities and
Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") (collectively referred to as "MCA and SEBI Circulars") permitted the holding of
the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue. In compliance with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through
VC / OAVM. The registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM.

2. Your Company had applied for extension of 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) to Registrar of Companies,
Pune (ROC). Roc Pune vide its order dated September 05, 2024 gave an extension for the period of three months
for holding the 24th AGM.

3. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") and MCA Circulars, the Twenty Forth Annual General
Meeting ("Meeting" or "AGM") of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM on Tuesday, 24th day of
December, 2024, at 11.00 a.m. (IST). The proceedings of the AGM deemed to be conducted at the Registered
Office of the Company situated at Mundhwa Pune Cantonment Pune Maharashtra 411036 India.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed on Tuesday, 24th day of
December, 2024 for taking record of the Members of the Company for the purpose of 24th (Twenty Fourth)
Annual General Meeting.

5. Pursuant to the aforesaid MCA circulars, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members
is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this
Notice. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

6. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served
basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to
attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

7. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Sridhar Mudaliar, (Membership No.
FCS 6156 & CP No. 2664), failing him, Mrs. Sheetal Joshi (Membership No. FCS 10480 & CP No 11635), Partners
of SVD & Associates, Company Secretaries have been appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Board to scrutinize the
remote e-Voting process before the AGM as well as  e-Voting during the AGM and to conduct the same in a fair
and transparent manner.

8. The Explanatory Statement according to Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts concerning the
business under Item 3 of the Notice is annexed hereto as "Annexure to notice". The relevant details,
pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking re-appointment at the
AGM are provided as "Annexure A". Requisite declarations have been received from the Directors for seeking
re-appointment.

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the MCA Circulars, the Company is providing
facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for
facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member
using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

10. In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM along with Annual Report 2023-24 has been uploaded
on the website of the Company at https://www.bfutilities.com/ The Notice and annual report can also be accessed
from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of
NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

11. In case of any change of address or queries relating to their shares please contact to R & T Agent, Link Intime
India Pvt. Ltd. at pune@linkintime.co.in.
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12. Members holding more than one share in the same name or joint names in the same order but under different
ledger folios are requested to apply for consolidation of such folios into a single folio and accordingly send a
request letter duly signed by the shareholder and the relevant share certificates along with the self-attested
copy of Permanent Account Number (PAN) card and Aadhar card to the Company, to enable us to consolidate
all such multiple folios into one single folio.

13. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170
of the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, will be available for electronic inspection for the Members without any fee from
the date of circulation of this Notice upto the date of AGM, i.e. 24th December, 2024. Members seeking to
inspect can send an e- mail to secretarial department of the Company at Secretarial@bfutilities.com

14. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the
Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM

15. SEBI vide its circular No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 has mandated that w.e.f. April 1, 2019
except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not
be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. In light of same,
shareholders are requested to kindly convert their physical shares in Demat form to avoid hassle in transfer of
shares.

16. As per Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred
only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission
or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for
ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting
their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. ("Registrar" or "RTA") at the address given in Annual Report for assistance in
this regard.

17 . Due diligence: To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify
the Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised
to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from
the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified from time to time.

18. A Member, who wish to receive information regarding financial statements or matters to be placed at the
AGM, shall send a request by providing full name, DP ID and Client ID / Folio Number and contact number from
the registered e-mail ID to Secretarial@bfutilities.com  at least 7 days in advance so as to enable the management
to keep the information ready.

19. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address,
telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney,
bank details such as, name of Bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code etc.

Type of holder Process to be followed

Demat Please contact your DP, register your email address, and bank account
details in your demat account, as per the process advised by your DP

Physical For availing the following investor services, send a written request in the
prescribed forms to the RTA of the Company, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
either by email to pune@linkintime.co.in or by post to Block no. 202, Akshay
Complex, Near Ganesh Temple, off Dhole Patil Road Pune-411 001

Form for availing investor services to register PAN, email Form ISR-1
address, bank details and other KYC details or changes/
update thereof for securities held in physical mode

Update of signature of securities holder Form ISR-2

For nomination as provided in the Rule 19(1) of Form SH-13
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014

Cancellation of nomination by the holder(s) Form SH-14
(along with ISR-3)/Change of Nominee

Form for requesting issue of Duplicate Certificate and Form ISR- 4
other service requests for shares held in physical form

Members may download all the forms from website of the Company i.e.
https://www.bfutilities.com/downloads.html or RTA i.e.
https://liiplweb.linkintime.co.in/KYC-downloads.html
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SEBI vide Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 3, 2021 read with Circular
No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated December 14, 2021, Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-
PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/158 dated
September 26, 2023, SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/181 dated November 17, 2023, SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/
CIR/2023/193 dated December 27, 2023 encourages all existing investors/ unitholders , in their own interest, to
provide 'choice of nomination' for ensuring smooth transmission of securities held by them as  well  as  to
prevent accumulation  of unclaimed  assets  in  securities  market. The formats for  providing  Nomination  and
Opting-out  of  Nomination both  in  case  of Demat  Account  and  MF  Folios are  provided at Annexure-A  and
Annexure-B respectively of SEBI circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/81 dated June 10, 2024. All new
investors/unitholders shall continue to be required to mandatorily provide the 'Choice of Nomination' for demat
accounts/ MF Folios (except for jointly held Demat Accounts and Mutual Fund Folios)

Relevant details and forms prescribed by SEBI in this regard are available on the website of the Company at
https://www.bfutilities.com/downloads.html

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS
UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Saturday, 21 st December, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on
Monday, 23rd December, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL
for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Tuesday, 17 th December,2024 may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Tuesday, 17 th December,2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of "Two Steps" which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A . Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
securities in demat mode with https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
NSDL. mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the "Beneficial

Owner" icon under "Login" which is available under 'IDeAS'
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to
e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select "Register Online for
IDeAS Portal" or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
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Type of shareholders Login Method

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App "NSDL
Speede" facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for
seamless voting experience.

Individual Shareholders holding 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
securities in demat mode with through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
CDSL available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.

The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab
and then use your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the
evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the
e-Voting service providers' website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login &
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
(holding securities in demat through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
mode) login through their  e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option
depository participants  Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository

site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending
holding securities in a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000
demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending
holding securities in a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.
demat mode with CDSL 1800 22 55 33

B. Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical
mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under
'Shareholder/Member' section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click
on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares Your User ID is:
i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL)
or Physical

a) For Members who hold 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
shares in demat account For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12******
with NSDL. then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
shares in demat account For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your
with CDSL. user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
shares in Physical Form. For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user

ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password'
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the
'initial password' and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your 'initial password'?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 'initial password'
is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your
'User ID' and your 'initial password'.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.
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6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the " Initial password" or have forgotten your password:

a)  Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL
or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)  Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and
your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on "Login" button.

9. After you click on the "Login" button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which you are holding shares
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting
your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on "VC/OAVM" link placed
under "Join Meeting".

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit" and also "Confirm" when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully" will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs@svdandassociates.com
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.)
can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board
Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the "?" or "Physical User Reset
Password?" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com  to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com  or call on.: 022 - 4886
7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this
notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Secretarial@bfutilities.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID),
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Secretarial@bfutilities.com. If you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at
step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode.
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3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and
email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-
voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall
be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not
be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on
the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system.
After successful login, you can see link of "VC/OAVM" placed under "Join meeting" menu against company
name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will
be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password
may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last
minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves
as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at Secretarial@bfutilities.com. The shareholders
who do not wish to speak during the twenty fourth AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7
days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number
at Secretarial@bfutilities.com. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting.

The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman after the completion of scrutiny and the result of the
voting will be declared within two working days from the conclusion of the meeting. The declared results along
with the Scrutinizer Report will also be displayed on the website of the Company at www.bfutilities.com and will
simultaneously be communicated to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited where equity
shares of the Company are listed.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As required by Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), the following Explanatory Statement sets out
the material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned under Item No. 3 in the accompanying Notice:

Item No. 3

Further to the applicable provisions of Section 188 and any other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
framed thereunder, and as per Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") as amended from time to time, all Related Party
Transactions shall require prior approval of the Audit Committee and all material Related Party Transactions shall
require prior approval of the shareholders by an Ordinary Resolution.

The Company has been in the business of generating Wind Power. The Power generated from Wind Mills is supplied
to Bharat Forge Limited. Considering the sizable requirement for power of Bharat Forge Limited, BF Utilities Limited
will benefit by supplying entire power to a single customer i.e. Bharat Forge Limited.

The individual transaction values would be revised, if required, based on mutual discussions to align the terms and
conditions of the transaction  at arm's length transaction.

The Members of the Company in its Annual General Meeting dated November 30, 2019 approved material RPTs with
Bharat Forge Limited for a period of five (5) financial years with effect from April 1, 2020 upto an estimated annual
value of Rs. 500 millions.

Considering business plans of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company on recommendation of Audit
Committee at its meeting held on November 11, 2024 approved the said limit of Rs. 500 millions p.a. for a new period
for the period of one (1) financial year with effect from April 1, 2025 till March 31, 2026, subject to approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General (AGM)

In compliance of the said Regulations, the Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed and approved the said
ongoing transactions. These transactions are material in terms of the provisions of Listing Regulations and therefore,
the Board has proposed the same to be placed before the shareholders for their approval as an Ordinary Resolution
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. Looking at the nature of business of the Company and the
transactions, such approval of shareholders for the period as stated in resolution would be essentially required at this
point of time.

The key details as required under Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI
(Listing Regulation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 are as below:

1. Name of the related party and nature of relationship : Bharat Forge Limited, under same group

2. Applicability of the agreement / arrangement is subject to statutory approval, if any: NA

3. A summary of the information provided by the management of the listed entity to the audit committee:
Management communicated to the Audit Committee regarding related party, nature of transaction, tenure of
transaction and other necessary information as per regulation.

4. Justification on proposed transaction is in the interest of the listed entity: Proposed transaction will result into
increase in business of the Company

5. Transactions relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made or given by the listed
entity or its subsidiary: NA

6. Valuation or other external report, if any, relied upon by the listed entity in relation to the proposed transaction:
NA

7. Notice period for termination: by mutual consent
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8. Manner of determining the pricing and other commercial terms: On arm's length basis, and in tune with market
parameters.

9. Disclosure of interest: Mr. B. N. Kalyani and Mr. Amit B. Kalyani are Directors of the Company and hold positions
of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of Bharat Forge Limited

10. Duration: As mentioned in the Resolution

11. Monetary value: Estimated values as mentioned in the resolution.

12. Nature, material terms and particulars of the arrangement :

Company Contract Purpose

Bharat Forge Limited Sale of Electricity and other transactions incidental thereto

13. Any other information relevant or important for the Members to make a decision on the proposed transaction:
None.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

Except as mentioned above, no Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives is concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in this Resolution.
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ANNEXURE - A

Additional information as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 36 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 in
respect of the Directors' appointment/ re-appointment is provided below:

Item No 2:

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment:

Name of the Director Mr. A. B. Kalyani

Director Identification Number 00089430

Date of Birth and Age July 26, 1975 /49 years

Brief Resume of the Director After having his initial education in Pune, he graduated in Mechanical Engineering
from Bucknell University, Pennsylvania, U.S.A. He initially worked with Kalyani
Steels Limited, followed by other companies within the group. He then joined
Bharat Forge Limited in 1999 as Vice President and Chief Technology Officer. He
was also instrumental in strategizing and execution of the several acquisitions
that the group had in Germany.Mr. Amit B. Kalyani is currently Joint Managing
Director of Bharat Forge Limited. He also takes care of the overallgroup strategy
and is responsible for the expansion of steel business and driving the infrastructure
foray of the group.

Nature of expertise in Technology & Innovations, Strategy & Planning, Sales & Marketing, Financial
specific functional areas / skills Skills, Legal & Regulatory Knowledge, Corporate Governance & Risk
/ capabilities Management along with Industry knowledge and vast experience.

Date of first appointment on August 01, 2005
the Board

Disclosure of relationships Son of Mr. B.N. Kalyani
between Directors inter-se

Number of Meetings of the 4 meetings
Board attended during
the year

Directorships held in other � Bharat Forge Limited
Listed Companies (including � Kalyani Steels Limited
resignation,if any, in other � Hikal Limited
listed companies in the past � BF Investment Ltd
three years) � Kalyani Investment Company Ltd.

� Schaeffler India Ltd.

Committee Memberships / Bharat Forge Limited
Chairmanships held in other � Corporate Social Responsibility Committee - Member
listed companies � Risk Management Committee - Member

� ESG Committee- Member
Kalyani Steels Limited
� Finance Committee - Member
BF Investment Ltd
� Corporate Social Responsibility Committee - Member
� Risk Management Committee - Member
Schaeffler India Ltd
� Nomination and Remuneration Committee- Member
� Corporate Social Responsibility Committee - Member
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Name of the Director Mr. A. B. Kalyani

Shareholding in the Company Nil
as on March 31, 2024

Terms and conditions of He shall continue to be subject to terms and conditions of his appointment as
appointment or Non-executive Non-Independent Director. He being a Non-Executive Director is
re-appointment along with entitled only to commission, if any, paid to the Non-Executive Directors as per
details of remuneration the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
sought to be paid and During FY 2023-2024, no commission was paid to him.
the remuneration last drawn
by such person

By Order of the Board

For BF Utilities Limited

B. S. Mitkari

Place : Pune Company Secretary
Date : November 23, 2024 Membership No.FCS/3237

Registered Office:

Mundhwa Pune cantonment Pune MH 411036 IN
CIN: L40108PN2000PLC015323
e-mail: Secretarial@bfutilities.com
Website: www.bfutilities.com
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(Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, herein after called "Regulations, 2015")

1 . Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has prescribed a set of standards on corporate governance for
the listed companies.

The Company has included a compliance report on Corporate Governance in its Annual Report in the spirit of
transparency in management and best board practices. This Chapter of the report, plus the information given
under 'Management Discussion and Analysis' and 'Shareholder Information' constitute such a compliance report
on corporate governance during 2023-24.

The Company has adhered to the requirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 read with Para C and D
of Schedule  V  and  clauses  (b)  to  (i)  of  sub-regulation  (2)   of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations') as applicable with regard to Corporate
Governance.

2 . Board of Directors

Composition of the Board

The Company has an active, experienced, diverse and a well-informed Board. The Board along with its Committees
undertakes its fiduciary duties keeping in mind the interests of all its stakeholders and the Company's Corporate
Governance philosophy. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size.

In terms of Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, at least 50% of the Board should comprise Non-
Executive Independent Directors with at least one Woman Director. Out of total 7 Directors as on March 31,
2024, the Non-Executive Independent Directors constitute 57.14% of the Board. The Company has one Woman
Director on the Board as on the said date who is holding her office as Non-Executive Independent Director.

Detailed profile of the Directors is available on the Company's website at http://www.bfutilities.com/board-
committees.html

The Board met seven (7) times during FY 2023-24 on the following dates:

� June 5, 2023 � June 21, 2023

� July 17, 2023 � August 11, 2023

� November 10, 2023 � November 29, 2023

� February 13, 2024

The gap between two Meetings did not exceed 120 days and the Meetings were conducted in compliance with
all applicable laws. The necessary quorum was present for all the Board Meetings.

Category and Attendance of Directors:

The category of Directors, attendance at Board Meetings held during the financial year under  review,  the
number  of  Directorships and Committee Chairpersonships/Memberships held  by  them  in  other  public  limited
companies  and  Directorships held by them in other listed entities, including this Company as on March 31, 2024
are as follows:

S r . Name of Director No. of No. of No. of Committee No. of Attendance

No. shares held Directorships positions held in Board at the
by Non- in other public other public Meetings meet ings

Execut ive companies # companies*** held
Di rec tor s

Chairman Member Board AGM
27/09/2023

Non-Executive Directors

1 Mr. B. N. Kalyani @ 7,212 5 0 3 7 6 Yes
(DIN : 00089380)

2 Mr. A. B. Kalyani 0 7 0 2 7 4 Yes
(DIN : 00089430)

Independent and

Non-Executive Directors

3 Mr. B. B. Hattarki 0 7 5 10 7 7 Yes
(DIN : 00145710)^

4 Ms. A. A. Sathe 0 2 0 3 7 1 Yes
(DIN : 06925030)

5 Mr. S. K. Adivarekar 0 5 2 4 7 7 Yes
(DIN : 06928271)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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S r . Name of Director No. of No. of No. of Committee No. of Attendance

No. shares held Directorships positions held in Board at the
by Non- in other public other public Meetings meet ings

Execut ive companies # companies*** held
Di rec tor s

Chairman Member Board AGM
27/09/2023

6 Mr. J. K. Hemade 0 1 0 0 7 1 NA
(DIN:10331350)$

Executive Director

7 Mr. B. S. Mitkari 0 5 0 0 7 7 Yes
(DIN : 03632549)

Note:

@ Promoters within the meaning of Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares & Takeover) Regulations, 2011.

# Other Directorships exclude Directorships in private limited companies, foreign companies and companies
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and includes this Company

*** For this purpose only Audit and Stakeholders' Relationship Committees of the Public Limited Companies
have been considered.

$ Mr. J. K. Hemade was appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from November 29,
2023

^ Mr. B. B. Hattarki ceased as Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from end of business hours on
March 31, 2024 after completing his 2nd Consecutive Term as Independent Director

The Twenty Third (23rd) Annual General Meeting ('e-AGM') of the Company for the Financial Year ('FY') 2022-
23 was held on September 27, 2023 through video conferencing ('VC') / other audio visual means ('OAVM') in
accordance with the relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'). All the Directors of the Company were present at the 23rd   AGM.

Directors and their Directorships in other listed Companies as on March 31, 2024 are as under:

Sr . Name of the Director Name of the listed entities Category of
in which Director holds Directorship
Directorship

1 Mr. B. N. Kalyani 1 Bharat Forge Ltd. Chairman & Managing
Director

2 Kalyani Steels Ltd. Chairman

3 Automotive Axles Ltd. Chairman & Director

2 Mr. A. B. Kalyani 1 Bharat Forge Ltd. Joint Managing Director

2 Kalyani Steels Ltd. Non Independent Director

3 Kalyani Investment Company Ltd. Chairman

4 Hikal Ltd. Non Independent Director

5 BF Investment Ltd. Chairman

6 Schaeffler India Ltd. Independent Director

3 Mr. B. B. Hattarki 1 *BF Investment Ltd. Independent Director

2 Kalyani Investment Company Ltd. Independent Director

3 Automotive Axles Ltd Independent Director

4 Kalyani Steels Ltd. Independent Director

4 Ms. A. A. Sathe 1 BF Investment Ltd. Independent Director

5 Mr. S. K. Adivarekar 1 Kalyani Steels Ltd. Independent Director

2 Kalyani Investment Company Ltd. Independent Director

3 Hikal Ltd. Independent Director

6 Mr. J. K. Hemade - - -

7 Mr. B. S. Mitkari 1 BF Investment Ltd. Non Independent Director

*Mr. B. B. Hattarki ceased as Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from end of business hours on
March 31, 2024 after completing his 2nd consecutive term as Independent Director
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Notes :

1. Directorships held in unlisted public Companies, foreign companies, private limited companies, one person
companies and companies under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 / under Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have not been considered.

2. None of the Directors on the Board is a Director of more than seven listed companies.

Mr. B. N. Kalyani and Mr. A. B. Kalyani, are related to each other.

No other Director is related to any other Director of the Company within the meaning of Section 2(77) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereof.

Shareholding of Directors as on March 31, 2024:

Sr. No. Name of Director Category Equity Shares of Rs.5 each

1 Mr. B. N. Kalyani NED 7212

2 Mr. A. B. Kalyani NED NIL

3 Mr. B. B. Hattarki ID NIL

4 Ms. A. A. Sathe ID NIL

5 Mr. S. K. Adivarekar ID NIL

6 Mr. J. K. Hemade ID NIL

7 Mr. B. S. Mitkari ED NIL

NED - Non-Executive Director; ID - Independent Director; ED - Executive Director

Apart from the above, no Director holds any shares in the Company. The Company has not issued any convertible
instruments.

None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairperson of more than 5
Committees (Committees being Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee) as per Regulation
26(1) of the SEBI (Listing Regulations) across all the public companies in which he/she is a Director. All the
Directors have made the requisite disclosures regarding committee positions held by them in other companies.

None of the Directors hold office in more than 10 public limited companies as prescribed under Section 165(1) of
the Act. No Director holds directorships in more than 7 listed companies. None of the Non-Executive Directors is
an Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies as required under the SEBI Listing Regulations. Further,
the CEO does not serve as Independent Director in any listed company.

Key Skills, Expertise and Competencies of the Board of Directors

The Board of the Company is highly structured to ensure a high degree of diversity by age, education/qualifications,
professional background, sector expertise, special skills and geography. The Board of Directors have, based on
the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, identified the following core skills/
expertise/competencies as required in the context of the businesses and sectors of the Company for its effective
functioning and the same is mapped against each of the Directors

Skill Skill definitions

Business Acumen Ability to understand business environment and identify new business opportunities

Leadership Ability to lead a large team of professionals

Technology Passion for technology upgradation

Legal and Regulatory Understanding of regulatory and legal frameworks in Taxation
knowledge

Disclosure of Expertise or Skills of Directors

Following are the core skills / expertise / competencies as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s)
for it to function effectively:

General Management, Finance and Accounting, Corporate Laws, Automotive Industry, Operations, Corporate
Strategy, Finance and Corporate Treasury, Manufacturing, Engineering, Business
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The following table states the identified core skills/expertise/competencies mapped for each of the Director:

Sr. Name of Directors Expertise, Skills in specific functional areas

1 Mr. B. N. Kalyani Business acumen, leadership, Automotive Industry, Corporate Strategy and
Business Management, Technology

2 Mr. A. B. Kalyani Business acumen, leadership, Automotive Industry, Corporate Strategy and
Business Management, Technology

3 Mr. B. B. Hattarki Automotive Industry, Operations and Manufacturing

4 Ms. A. A. Sathe Corporate Laws, Legal and Taxation

5 Mr. S. K. Adivarekar Taxation, Corporate laws, Finance Accounting

6 Mr. J. K. Hemade General Law, laws relating to land

7 Mr. B. S. Mitkari Finance & Accounting, Corporate laws, Legal and Operations.

Board Procedure

For seamless scheduling of Meetings, the calendar of Meetings of the Board and Committees is circulated and
agreed upon at the beginning of the year.

The Company Secretary tracks and monitors the Board and Committee proceedings to ensure that the terms of
reference/charters are adhered to, decisions are properly recorded in the minutes and actions on the decisions
are tracked. The terms of reference/charters are amended and updated from time to time in order to keep the
functions and role of the Board and Committees at par with the changing statutes. Meeting effectiveness is
ensured through clear agenda, circulation of material in advance and as per statutory timelines, detailed
presentations at the Meetings.

The Board plays a critical role in the strategy development of the Company. To enable the Board to discharge its
responsibilities effectively and take informed decisions, the CEO apprises the Board on the overall performance
of the Company every quarter.

The Board periodically reviews the strategy, annual business plan, business performance of the Company.
Amongst other things, the Board also reviews the compliance reports of the laws applicable to the Company,
internal financial controls and financial reporting systems, adoption of quarterly/half-yearly/annual results,
minutes of the Meetings of the Audit and other Committees of the Board.

In addition to the information required under Regulation 17(7) read with Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing
Regulations which is required to be placed before the Board, the Directors are also kept informed of major
events.

Independent Directors

All Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined in Regulations 16(1) of SEBI (LODR).

The Company has 4 Non-Executive Independent Directors (including 1 Woman Director) which comprise 57.14%
of the total strength of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2024

During the year under review, Mr. B. B. Hattarki ceased as Non-Executive Independent Director with effect
from end of business hours on March 31, 2024 after completing his 2nd Consecutive Term as Independent
Director

Independence of Directors

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria
of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed
that they are not aware of any circumstances or situations which exist or may be reasonably anticipated that
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions of independence specified in the Act
and the SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.

Further, the Independent Directors have in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, confirmed that they have enrolled themselves in the
Independent Directors' Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs ('IICA'). They are
exempt from the requirement to undertake the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by IICA.

Meeting of Independent Directors

During the year under review, one (1) meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on
February 09, 2024 as required under Schedule IV to the Act (Code of Independent Directors) and Regulation
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25(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. At their Meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of
Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole including the Chairman of the Board after taking the
views of other Non-Executive Directors and also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of
information between the Company's management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform their duties.

The Meeting was attended by all the Independent Directors as on that date and Mr. B. B. Hattarki chaired the
said Meeting.

Terms and Conditions of appointment of Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations. Formal letters of appointment are issued to the Independent Directors after their
appointment by the Members. As required by Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the terms and
conditions of their appointment have been disclosed on the website of the Company at https://bfutilities.com/
pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Terms%20of%20Appointment%20of%20Independent%20Directors.pdf

Induction and Familiarisation Programme for Directors

The Company has a familiarisation programme for its Independent Directors. The objective of the programme
is to familiarise the Independent Directors to enable them to understand the Company, its operations, strategies,
business, functions, policies, industry and environment in which it functions and the regulatory environment
applicable to it. These include orientation programme upon induction of new Directors as well as other initiatives
to update the Directors on a continuous basis.

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company imparted various familiarisation
programmes to its Directors.

Pursuant to Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the details of such familiarisation programme during
FY 2023-24 are available on the website of the Company at

https://www.bfutilities.com/familiarization.html

Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors

As required under Regulation 26(4) and Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards
- 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, particulars of Directors seeking
appointment/re-appointment at this AGM are given in the Notice of the AGM which forms part of this Integrated
Annual Report.

Code of Conduct

The Company has formulated Code of Conduct for its Directors, Senior Management Personnel and other
Executives which is available on the website of the Company at https://bfutilities.com/code-of-conduct.html

The Board has also adopted a Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors, which incorporates the duties of
Independent Directors as laid down in Schedule IV to the Act ('Code for Independent Directors') and Regulation
17(5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the same is available on the website of the Company at https://
bfutilities.com/code-of-conduct.html

As on March 31, 2024, all the Board Members and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance
with their respective Codes of Conduct. A declaration to this effect duly signed by the CEO forms part of this
Report.

Apart from reimbursement of expenses incurred in discharging their duties and the remuneration that the
Directors would be entitled under the Act as Non-Executive Directors, except for Mr. B. N. Kalyani (being
promoter) and Mr. A. B. Kalyani none of the Directors have any other material pecuniary relationships or
transactions with the Company, its Promoters, its Directors or its Senior Management during the two immediately
preceding financial years.

Particulars of senior management including the changes therein since the close of the previous
financial year:

Senior Management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material,
financial and/or commercial transactions between them and the Company which could have potential conflict of
interest  with the Company at large.



19BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

Sr . Name of Person Category Designation Changes during FY
No. 2023-24

1. B. S. Mitkari KMP - Chief Executive Officer No change
- Chief Financial Officer
- Company Secretary and
   Compliance Officer

2 . S. S. Joshi SMP -Sr. Manager- Finance No change

3 . K. V. Lodekar SMP -Windmill site in charge No change

Committees of the Board

As on March 31, 2024, the Company has Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Risk Management Committee. The
Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles, which
are considered to be performed by the members of the respective Board Committees. The Company's guidelines
relating to Board Meetings are also applicable to Committee Meetings. Each Committee has the authority to
engage outside experts, advisors and counsels to the extent it considers appropriate to assist in its work.
Minutes of the proceedings of the Committee Meetings are placed before the Board Meeting for perusal and
noting. The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary of all the Board Committees.

1 . Audit Committee

The Audit Committee's role is to assist the Board, fulfil its Corporate   Governance   and   overseeing   responsibilities
in relation to the Company's financial reporting process carried out by the Management, internal control system,
risk management system and internal and external audit functions. The Audit Committee functions according
to its terms of reference that defines its composition, authority, responsibilities and reporting functions. All the
items listed in Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18(3) read with Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing
Regulations are covered in its terms of reference.

Terms of Reference

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for supervising the Company's internal controls and financial
reporting process and inter alia, performs the following functions:

i.) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

ii.) reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) matters required to be included in the director's responsibility statement to be included in the
board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f) disclosure of any related party transactions;

g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

iii.) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency, monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or
qualified institutions placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps
in this matter;

iv.) Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

v.) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

vi.) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

vii.) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

viii.) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

ix.) reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems;
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x.) Reviewing of the Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

xi.) Discussing with internal auditor  any significant finding and follow up on such issues;

xii.) Discussing with the external auditors before the audit commences on the nature and scope of audit, as
well as having post audit discussion to ascertain any areas of concern;

xiii.) Reviewing any changes in accounting policies or practices as compared to last completed financial year and
commenting on any deviation from accounting standards;

xiv.) Reviewing details of related party transactions exceeding 1% of last year's turnover;

xv.) Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management policies;

xvi.) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by Statutory Auditors;

xvii.) Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval;

xviii.)Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal Audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

xix.) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularities or failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;

xx.) To look into the reason for substantial default in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (incase of non payment of declared Dividends) and creditors;

xxi.) To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

xxii.) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole time finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after accessing the qualifications, experience and background,
etc. of the candidate;

xxiii.) reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding Rupees 100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including
existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision;

xxiv.) consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders;

xxv.) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of audit committee.

The detailed terms of reference is disclosed on the Company's website https://www.bfutilities.com/pdf/
Policies%20and%20Terms/Audit%20Committee%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf

Further, pursuant to Regulation 18(2)(c) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Audit Committee is empowered to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, seek information it requires from any employee, obtain
outside legal or other Independent professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if considered necessary. Apart from the above, the Audit Committee also exercises the role and
powers entrusted upon it by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Meetings Held

During FY 2023-24, six (6) Meetings of the Audit Committee were held on the following dates:

� June 5, 2023 � June 21, 2023

� July 17, 2023 � August 11, 2023

� November 10, 2023 � February 13, 2024

The gap between two Meetings did not exceed 120 days. Necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings of
the Committee.
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Composition and Attendance

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held during tenure attended

Mr. S. K. Adivarekar (Chairperson) ID 6 6

Mr. A. B. Kalyani NED 6 3

Mr. B. B. Hattarki ID 6 6

Ms. A. A. Sathe ID 6 1

ID - Independent Director; NED - Non-Executive Director

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The composition of the Committee is in
conformity with Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee has one-on-one meetings both with the Internal Audit Team and the
Statutory Auditors on a periodic basis to discuss key concerns, if any.

The Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Statutory Auditor, Internal Auditor
attend and participate in all the Meetings of the Committee. Internal Audit Reports are discussed. During the
year under review, the Committee reviewed the key audit findings covering operational, financial and compliance
areas, internal financial controls and financial reporting systems. The Committee reviewed Related Party
Transactions. During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the process and controls for Insider
Trading and also adopted a framework for levying penalties in case of any violation under the Insider Trading
Code .

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee briefs the Board at each Board Meeting about the significant discussions
at the Audit Committee Meetings including the internal audit matters. The minutes of each of the Audit
Committee Meetings are placed in the next Meeting of the Board after they are confirmed by the Committee.

Mr. S. K. Adivarekar, Chairperson of the Audit Committee, was present at the last e-AGM held on September
27, 2023.

2 . Nomination  and   Remuneration   Committee

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') is to oversee the selection of Directors and
Senior Management Personnel based on criteria related to the specific requirement of expertise and
independence. The NRC evaluates the performance of Directors and Senior Management Personnel based on
the expected performance criteria. The NRC also recommends to the Board the remuneration payable to
Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company.

Meetings Held

During FY 2023-24, Three (3) Meetings of the NRC were held on the following dates:

� July 17, 2023 � November 29, 2023 � February 13, 2024

The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings of the Committee.

Composition and Attendance

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held during tenure attended

Mr. B. B. Hattarki (Chairperson) ID 3 3

Mr. A. B. Kalyani NED 3 2

Mr. S. K. Adivarekar ID 3 3

ID - Independent Director; NED - Non-Executive Director

Mr. B. B. Hattarki, Chairman of the NRC, was present at the last e-AGM held on September 27, 2023.

The composition and terms of reference of the NRC are in compliance with the provisions of Section 178(1) of
the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Chairman of the NRC briefs the Board at each Board Meeting about the significant discussions at the NRC
Meetings.

Terms of reference:

(1) Determine size and composition of the Board to ensure that it is structured to make appropriate decision,
with a variety of prospective and skills, in the best interest of the Company as a whole;
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(2) Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and for evaluation of performance of independent directors and Board of Directors.

(3) Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel.

The Policy of the Company including the terms of reference is disclosed on the Company's website https://
bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Nomination_Renumeration_Policy.pdf

Board and Director Evaluation

In terms of the requirement of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, during the year under review, the Board
has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors as well
as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The exercise was led by the Chairman of the NRC along with
the Chairman of the Board.

Criteria for Evaluation

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. An indicative list of factors on which evaluation was carried out includes participation
and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, integrity and
maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behaviour and judgment.

The procedure followed for the performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and Individual Directors is
detailed in the Board's Report

Remuneration of Directors

The Company's philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel ('KMP') and all other
employees is to promote leadership, skill, development and innovation. The Company has adopted a Policy for
remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees, which is aligned to this philosophy.

The principles governing the Company's Remuneration Policy is provided in the Board's Report. The said Policy is
also uploaded on the website of the Company at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/
Nomination_Renumeration_Policy.pdf

3 . Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee ('SRC') looks into various aspects of interest of shareholders. The
Committee ensures cordial investor relations and oversees the mechanism for redressal of investors' grievances.

Meetings Held

During FY 2023-24, Thirty (30) Meetings of the SRC were held on the following dates:

� April 10, 2023 � April 24, 2023 � May 2, 2023

� May 15, 2023 � May 22, 2023 � July 3, 2023

� July 10, 2023 � July 31, 2023 � August 7, 2023

� August 28, 2023 � September 11, 2023 � September 18, 2023

� September 25, 2023 � October 3, 2023 � October 9, 2023

� October 16, 2023 � October 23, 2023 � November 6, 2023

� November 20, 2023 � November 27, 2023 � December 11, 2023

� December 18, 2023 � January 8, 2024 � January 29, 2024

� February 5, 2024 � February 19, 2024 � February 26, 2024

� March 4, 2024 � March 11, 2024 � March 18, 2024

The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings of the Committee.

Brief terms of reference:

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/
duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by
the shareholders of the company.
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The terms of reference is disclosed on the Company's website https://bfutilities.com/pdf/
Policies%20and%20Terms/Stakeholders%20Relationship%20Committee%20Terms%20of%20Reference.pdf

Composition and Attendance

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held during tenure attended

Mr. B. B. Hattarki (Chairperson) ID 30 30

Mr. B. N. Kalyani NED 30 0

Mr. S. K. Adivarekar ID 30 30

ID - Independent Director; NED - Non-Executive Director

The Chairperson of the SRC briefs the Board at each Board Meeting about the significant discussions at the SRC
Meetings.

Mr. B. B. Hattarki, Chairperson of the SRC, was present at the e-AGM of the Company held on September 27,
2023.

Status of Investor Complaints

The status of investor complaints as on March 31, 2024 as reported under Regulation 13(3) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations is as under:

Complaints as on April 1, 2023 0

Received during the year 1

Resolved during the year 1

Pending as on March 31, 2024 0

The complaints have been resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders. The correspondence identified as
investor complaints are letters received through statutory/regulatory bodies.

Name, designation and address of the Compliance Officer

Mr. B. S. Mitkari
Company Secretary
BF Utilities Limited
Mundhwa,
Pune - 411 036
Tel. No.: +91 77190 04777
Email:  Secretarial@bfutilities.com

Details of Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer for FY 2023-24

                                                                                                           Amount in Million

Particulars of Remuneration Mr. B. S. Mitkari Total
Amount

Gross Salary:

Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of 13.90
the Income Tax Act, 1961

Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.03

Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -

Stock Option -

Sweat Equity - 14.33

1. Commission -

- As % profit

- Others, specify ...

Others, please specify 0.40

(Company's contribution towards Provident Fund and Superannuation)

Total 14.33 14.33
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Chief Executive Officer

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, allowances (variable pay) to its Chief Executive Officer.
Annual increments are recommended by the NRC and are effective April 1 each year.

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings.

Non-Executive Directors are eligible for a commission within the ceiling of 1% per annum of the net profits of
the Company as computed under the applicable provisions of the Act. The said commission is decided each year
by the Board of Directors and distributed amongst the Non-Executive Directors based on their attendance and
contribution at the Board and Committee Meetings. However, for F.Y. 2023-24, the Company has not proposed
any Commission. The Company also reimburses out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Directors for attending
the Meetings.

Details of sitting fees paid and commission payable to the Non-Executive Directors for FY ended March 31, 2024
is given below:

Amount in Rs.

Name of the Director Sitting Fees,etc. paid Commission (for FY 2023-24
during FY 2023-24  payable in FY 2024-25)

Mr. B. N. Kalyani 30,000 NIL

Mr. A. B. Kalyani 30,000 NIL

Mr. B. B. Hattarki 45,000 NIL

Ms. A. A. Sathe 5,000 NIL

Mr. S. K. Adivarekar 45,000 NIL

Mr. B. S. Mitkari NA NIL

Mr. J. K. Hemade 15,000 NIL

Total 1 ,70,000 NIL

As per the practice, commission to the Directors, if recommended is paid after the annual accounts are adopted
by the Members at the AGM. The Company has not granted any stock options to its Directors.

Service Contract, Severance Fees and Notice Period

Terms of Agreement Mr. B S Mitkari, CEO

Period of Contract April 1, 2022 upto March 31, 2025

Severance fees/notice period The Agreement may be terminated earlier, without any cause, by either
Party by giving to the other Party 90 days notice of such termination or
the Company paying 90 days basic salary in lieu of notice.

There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees.

Succession Plan

The Company has succession plans for the senior management. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
works on leadership succession plan

Retirement Policy for Directors

The Directors retirement policy is in compliance with the prevailing rules and regulations.

4 . Corporate  Social   Responsibility   Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') Committee of the Board is constituted in accordance with the provisions
of Section 135 of the Act. The CSR Committee has been entrusted with the specific responsibility of reviewing
corporate social responsibility programmes. The scope of the CSR Committee also includes approving the budget
of CSR activities, reviewing the CSR programmes, formulation of annual action plan and monitoring the CSR
spends

The Policy of the Company including the terms of reference is disclosed on the Company's website

https://www.bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf

The CSR Report is attached to the Director's Report.
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Meetings Held

During FY 2023-24, two (2) Meetings of the CSR Committee were held on August 11, 2023 and February 9, 2024.

The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings of the Committee.

Composition and Attendance

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held during tenure attended

Mr. B. B. Hattarki (Chairperson) ID 2 2

Mr. B. N. Kalyani NED 2 2

Mr. A. B. Kalyani NED 2 0

ID - Independent Director; NED - Non-Executive Director

The Chairman of the CSR Committee briefs the Board at each Board Meeting about the significant discussions at
the CSR Meetings.

Mr. B. B. Hattarki, Chairman of the CSR Committee, was present at the last e-AGM held on September 27, 2023.

5 . Risk Management Committee

Regulation 21 of  the  SEBI  Listing  Regulations  mandate  top 1000 listed entities, determined on the basis of
market capitalisation  as  at  the  end  of  the  immediate  previous financial year, to constitute a Risk Management
Committee ('RMC') with effect from April 1, 2019. However, the Company had voluntarily constituted a RMC in
November 28, 2014. The primary role of the RMC is that of assisting the Board of Directors in overseeing the
Company's risk management processes and controls additionally the Committee may seek information from
any employee, obtain outside legal or other professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

The Policy of the Company including the terms of reference is disclosed on the Company's website https://
bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Risk%20Management%20Policy%2001042019.pdf

Meetings Held

During FY 2023-24, two (2) Meetings were held on

� July 10, 2023 � January 2, 2024

The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings of the Committee.

Composition and Attendance

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held during tenure attended

Mr. B. B. Hattarki (Chairperson) ID 2 2

Mr. A. B. Kalyani NED 2 0

Mr. S. K. Adivarekar ID 2 2

ID - Independent Director; NED - Non-Executive Director

The Chairman of the RMC briefs the Board at each Board Meeting about the significant discussions at the RMC
Meetings.

6 . Independent Directors Meeting

In terms of Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of the
Independent Directors was held, inter alia, to discuss:

a) Evaluation of the Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;

b) Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Non-
Executive Directors; and

c) Evaluation of the quality, content and timeliness of flow on information between the Management and
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

All Independent Directors were present at the Meeting.

Meetings Held

During FY 2023-24, One (1) Meeting was held on February 9, 2024.

The necessary quorum was present for the Meeting of the Committee.
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Composition and Attendance

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held during tenure attended

Mr. B. B. Hattarki (Chairperson) ID 1 1

Mr. S. K. Adivarekar ID 1 1

Ms. A. A. Sathe ID 1 1

Mr. Mr. J. K. Hemade ID 1 1

ID - Independent Director.

General Body Meetings

A ) Annual General Meetings:

Annual General Meetings held and Special Resolution(s) passed:

Day, date, time and venue of AGMs held during the last 3 years and Special Resolutions passed are given
as below:

Year Day, Date and Time Venue Special Resolution(s)

2022-23 Wednesday, VC/OAVM Re-appointment of Mr. B. N. Kalyani
September 27, 2023 at Deemed Venue: (DIN: 00089380) as Director of
11:00 a.m Mundhwa, the Company

Pune Cantonment,
Pune - 411 036

2021-22 Thursday, VC/OAVM 1. Appointment of Mr. B. S. Mitkari
September 29, 2022 at Deemed Venue: (DIN: 03632549) as a Whole Time
11:00 a.m Mundhwa, Diretor.

Pune Cantonment, 2. Re-appointment of Mr. Shrikrishna K.
Pune - 411 036 Adivarekar as an Independent Director

of the Company.

2020-21 Wednesday, VC/OAVM NA.
September 29, 2021 at Deemed Venue:
11:00 a.m Mundhwa,

Pune Cantonment,
Pune - 411 036

All resolutions moved at the last AGM were passed by the requisite majority of Members.

B) Postal Ballot

Pursuant to Section 110 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read together with the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (the Rules), the Company conducted postal ballot during
the year to obtain approval of its Members on January 20, 2024. In compliance with Regulation 44 of
Listing Regulations and provisions of Section 108, Section 110 of the Act, read with Rule 20 and 22 of the
Rules, the Company had offered e-Voting facility to all its Members to exercise their right to vote. For this
purpose, the Company had availed the services of National Securities Depository Limited ("NSDL") for
facilitating e-Voting. The Company had appointed Mr. Sridhar Mudaliar (Membership No. FCS 6156), Partner
of M/s. SVD & Associates, Company Secretaries, Pune as Scrutiniser for conducting the postal ballot process
(which includes e-Voting) in fair and transparent manner. The results of the postal ballots were declared
on January 22, 2024. Special Resolution was declared passed with requisite majority by the Shareholders
for the postal ballot dated January 20, 2024. Voting particulars of the said special resolution are as under:

Particulars / Description Appointment of Mr. Jayant Kumodchandra Hemade
of item No (DIN: 10331350) as an Independent Director of the Company

Votes in favour of Number of members voted 138
the resolution

Number of valid votes cast (shares) 2,16,99,662

Votes against the resolution Number of members voted 8

Number of valid votes cast (shares) 3,601

Invalid votes Total number of members whose votes 1
were declared invalid

Total number of invalid votes cast (shares) 500

Percentage of total number of valid votes cast 99.98%
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Procedure for postal ballot:

The Company carries out Postal Ballot as per the provisions of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and other
applicable rules read with relevant Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Circulars
issued by the SEBI and applicable provisions of Listing Regulations.

No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot as on the date of this report.

Means of Communication

Stock Exchange Intimations

All submissions to the Stock Exchanges are made through the respective electronic filing systems. All
unpublished price sensitive information, material events or information as detailed in Regulation 30 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations are disseminated to the Stock Exchanges by filing them with the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited ('NSE') through NEAPS and with BSE Limited ('BSE') through BSE Online Portal.

They are also displayed on the Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/disclosure-under-regulation-
46-of-sebi-(lodr)-regulations.html

Financial Results

The quarterly/half-yearly/annual financial results are published in the Financial Express (English) all India
edition and Loksatta (Marathi), Pune edition. They are displayed under 'Investors' section of the Company's
website viz. https://bfutilities.com/financial-results.html

They are also filed with the NSE through NEAPS and with BSE through BSE Online Portal.

Company's Website

The Company's website is in line with the requirements laid down under Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The section on 'Investors' serves to  inform  the  Members by giving complete financial details,
annual reports, shareholding patterns, stock exchange intimations, Company policies, etc.

The proceedings of the 23rd AGM held on September 27, 2023 are also available under the 'Investors'
section.

Transfer of unpaid dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereof, any money transferred to the
Unpaid Dividend Account of a company, which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years,
shall be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

Since the Company has not declared any dividend in past, this clause is not applicable.

Transfer of equity shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

Pursuant to provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereof as amended from
time to time, all shares, in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive
years or more, shall be transferred by the company in the name of Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) alongwith a statement containing such details as may be prescribed.

Since the Company has not declared any dividend in past, this clause is not applicable.

Procedure for dealing with unclaimed shares

Pursuant to Regulation 39(4) of the Listing Regulations, the Company had in past sent reminder letters to
those shareholders, whose share certificates have returned undelivered by the postal authorities due to
insufficient / incorrect information and are lying with the Company. These share certificates will be sent to
eligible shareholders, if these shareholders submit necessary documents to the Company.

Nominations in respect of shares held in physical form / electronic form

Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical form can nominate a person in whose
name the shares shall be vested in the event of death of the registered shareholder(s). The prescribed
nomination form can be obtained from the Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

Nomination facility for shares held in electronic form is available with the depository participant as per the
bye laws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL.

Register Your National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) Mandate

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has initiated NECS for credit of Dividend directly to the Bank Account of
shareholders. Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode are requested to register their latest Bank
Account details with their Depository Participant and in physical form with the Company's R & T Agent viz.
Link Intime India Private Limited.

KYC details:

 According to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/
P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023, the members holding shares in physical form, requested to furnish
Self attested PAN card and bank  and nomination details.
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General Shareholder Information

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Pune. The Corporate Identity Number
(CIN) allotted to the Company by the MCA is L40108PN2000PLC015323

Annual General Meeting and other details

Day, Date and Time Tuesday, 24th December, 2024 at 11.00 a.m. (IST)

Venue In accordance with the General Circular issued by the MCA on May 5, 2020
read with General Circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and January
13, 2021, December 28, 2022, September 25, 2023 and September 19, 2024,
the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM only

Financial Year April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024

Book Closure Date Tuesday, 24th December, 2024 as annual closure for the purpose of AGM

Last date for receipt of In terms of the relaxations granted by MCA and SEBI, the facility for
Proxy Forms appointment of Proxies by Members will not be available at the ensuing

e-AGM

Listing  on Stock The Company's Ordinary Shares are listed on the following Stock
Exchanges Exchanges:

(1 ) BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

(2 ) The National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400 051

The Company has paid the listing fees to these Stock Exchanges for
FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25

Stock Code BSE Limited : 532430

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited : BFUTILITIE

International Securities INE243D01012 (Ordinary Shares)
Identification Number
(ISIN) in NSDL and CDSL

Market Price Data

Market price data - monthly high/low, number of shares traded and number of trades of BSE/NSE depicting
liquidity of the Company's Ordinary Shares on the said exchanges is given hereunder:

Stock Exchange BSE N S E

Month High Low Traded High Low Traded
Rs. Rs. Volume Rs. Rs. Volume

Apr-23 342.10 299.35 348791 342.45 298.95 2396258

May-23 370.95 332.50 296221 371.00 332.10 3796218

Jun-23 394.75 357.55 366402 394.00 357.25 4762514

Jul-23 405.45 366.60 294042 405.00 366.30 4337751

Aug-23 689.40 372.60 1584042 689.45 372.15 22647228

Sep-23 816.00 631.30 619475 815.10 636.00 6504100

Oct-23 667.45 537.00 432469 668.00 537.15 3476880

Nov-23 706.75 601.20 387223 707.00 601.00 2930115

Dec-23 693.25 586.00 313394 695.05 580.10 3476021

Jan-24 623.00 557.00 304146 624.00 557.30 3763478

Feb-24 978.00 599.00 2590399 977.95 597.80 24943041

Mar-24 966.95 681.65 856280 967.70 682.50 8748378

[Source: This information is compiled from the data available on the websites of BSE and NSE]
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Performance of the Company's average monthly share price data in comparison to broad-based
indices like BSE Sensex in FY 2023-24

BFUL Price in Rs.

Note : Share price of BF Utilities Limited and BSE Sensex have been indexed to 100 as on first working day of
financial year 2023-24 i.e. 1st April, 2023.

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Members are requested to correspond with the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent - Link Intime India
Private Limited, quoting their folio no./DP ID and Client ID at the following addresses:

For transmission, transposition and other correspondence:

Link Intime India Private Limited
Registrar & Transfer Agent
Block No.202, 2nd Floor, Akshay Complex,
Off Dhole Patil Road,
Pune 411 001.
Phone No.: 020-26161629
Email : pune@linkintime.co.in
Website: https://www.linkintime.co.in

Business Hours: 10.00 a.m. to 3.30 p.m. (Monday to Friday)

Share Transfer Process

Effective April 1, 2019, requests for effecting the transfer of listed securities were required to be processed
only in dematerialised form with a Depository.

The Company had stopped accepting any fresh transfer requests for securities held in physical form with effect
from the said date. In order to address the issue of transfer requests filed prior to April 1, 2019 but rejected due
to deficiency in documents, etc., the Company accepted transfer requests up to March 31, 2021 in accordance
with SEBI Circular dated September 7, 2020. After March 31, 2021, the Company has stopped accepting any
transfer requests.

Dematerialisation of holdings will, inter alia, curb fraud in physical transfer of securities by unscrupulous entities
and improve ease, convenience and safety of transactions for investors. In view of the aforesaid, Members who
are holding shares in physical form are hereby requested to dematerialise their holdings.

Secretarial Audit

M/s. SVD & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Peer review No. 669/2020), has conducted a Secretarial
Audit of the Company for FY 2023-24.

The observations of Secretarial Auditors are given in the Directors' Report along with Board's explanations to
the same.
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In accordance with the SEBI Circular dated February 8, 2019 read with Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Company has obtained an Annual Secretarial Compliance Report from M/s. SVD & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries.

Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, certificate has been issued, on a yearly basis, by M/
s. SVD & Associates, Company Secretary in practice, certifying due compliance of share transfer formalities by
the Company.

Subhash Y. Joshi & Co., Chartered Accountant in practice has carried out a quarterly Reconciliation of Share
Capital Audit, to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and the total issued and listed capital.
The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid-up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number
of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialised form (held with NSDL and CDSL).

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

M/s. SAW & Associates , Practicing Company Secretaries, has issued a certificate confirming that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of Company's by SEBI/MCA or any such statutory authority. The said Certificate is annexed to the
Director's Report.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024

Range Number of Amount % to Number of % to total
Shares Capital Shareholders Shareholders

Up to 5,000 5174031 25870155.00 13.74 54247 96.82

5,001 to 10,000 1337997 6689985.00 3.55 900 1.61

10,001 to 20,000 1324152 6620760.00 3.51 467 0.83

20,001 to 30,000 794300 3971500.00 2.11 160 0.29

30,001 to 40,000 440717 2203585.00 1.17 64 0.11

40,001 to 50,000 491878 2459390.00 1.31 53 0.09

50,001 to 100,000 964983 4824915.00 2.56 66 0.12

100,001 and above 27139570 135697850.00 72.05 74 0.13

Total 37667628 188338140.00 100.00 56031 100.00

Category of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024

Category No. of Shares % of Shareholding

1. Promoter and Promoter Group 2,13,71,765 56.74

2. Mutual Funds / UTI 1,709 0.01

3. Financial Institutions / Banks 3,139 0.01

4. Bodies Corporate 21,40,047 5.68

5. Foreign Portfolio Investors 3,33,093 0.88

6. Clearing Members 2,398 0.01

7. Non Resident Indians 2,42,136 0.64

8. General Public 1,35,73,341 36.03

Total 3,76,67,628 100.00

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form and are available for dematerialisation
on both the depositories viz. NSDL and CDSL.

(% of total issued capital)

Shares held in As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023

Physical form 1.23 1.34

Electronic form with NSDL 80.78 81.52

Electronic form with CDSL 17.99 17.14

Total 1 0 0 100

The Company's Ordinary Shares are regularly traded on BSE and NSE
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Outstanding Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) or American Depository Receipts (ADRs) or
warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs or ADRs or warrants or any convertible instruments during the year
under review.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

Commodity Price Risk

The Company's operations do not involve commodity price risk.

Foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The Company's operations do not involve Foreign exchange and hedging risk.

Address for Correspondence

BF Utilities Ltd
Mundhwa, Pune Cantonment,
Pune - 411 036,
Tel. No.: +91 77190 04777
Email: Secretarial@bfutilities.com
Website: www.bfutilities.com

Plant locations : The Company's wind farms are located at Padekarwadi, Ghatewadi, Pawangaon, Maloshi and
Kadve Khurd Dist- Satara, Maharashtra State

Credit Ratings obtained by the Company - Nil

Other Disclosures

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during FY 2023-24 were on arm's length basis, in the
ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing
Regulations. There were no material significant related party transactions entered into by the Company with
Promoters, Directors, KMPs or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest
of the Company at large. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the
Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/
Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf

i) The particulars of transactions between the Company and its related parties are in accordance with Ind AS
24 & set out in Note No.29 to the Accounts. These transactions are in the ordinary course and are not likely
to have any conflict with the interest of the Company.

ii) There were no pecuniary relationships or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the Company,
other than payment of Board fees/commission and investments (if any) in shares / securities of the Company.

iii) There were no material transactions of the Company with its promoters, directors, management or their
relatives that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Policy for determining material subsidiary

The Company have identified Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Limited, Nandi Economic Corridor
Enterprises Ltd. and Nandi Highway Developers Limited as its material Subsidiaries on Consolidated Accounts
basis.

The Company has adopted a Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 16(1)(c) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations''). The Policy,
as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/
Policies%20and%20Terms/Policy%20on%20Material%20Subsidiary.pdf

Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and Statutory Authority on all
matters related to capital markets. During the last three years, no penalties or strictures have been imposed on
the Company by these authorities except as disclosed in the Secretarial Compliance Report issued by SVD &
Associates, Company Secretaries which is available on the Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/
Secretarial%20Compliance/Annual%20Secretarial%20Compliance%20Report%2031032024.pdf

None of the Company's listed securities is suspended from trading.
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Whistleblower Policy and Vigil Mechanism

The Company has adopted a  Whistleblower  Policy  and  Vigil Mechanism to provide a formal mechanism to the
Directors, employees and other external stakeholders to report their  concerns  about  unethical  behaviour,
actual  or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct. The Policy provides for adequate
safeguards against victimisation of employees who avail of the mechanism. No personnel of the Company has
been denied access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The Whistleblower Policy and Vigil Mechanism ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained in such cases and
no unfair treatment is meted out to a Whistleblower.

The Whistleblower Policy as adopted by the Company is available on the Company's website at https://
bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Whisle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted the Model Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading under the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 ('Code'). The Code lays down guidelines for procedures to be
followed and disclosures to be made while trading in securities of the Company

Mr. B. S. Mitkari, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer for ensuring the compliance with and for the
effective implementation of the SEBI PIT Regulations and the Code across the Company.

The Company has in place a digital platform for ensuring compliance with the provisions of the SEBI PIT Regulations
and the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading.

Other Policies under the SEBI Listing Regulations

Policy   on   Retention and Archival of Documents   as required under Regulation 9 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations is available on the website of the Company at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/
Policy%20for%20prevention%20of%20Records.pdf

Policy on Determination of Materiality of Events/ Information for Disclosures of Events or Information
as per Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations is available on the website of the Company at
h t t p s : / / b f u t i l i t i e s . com/pdf /Po l i c i e s%20an d %20Terms /Po l i c y%20fo r%20d ete rmin at ion%
20of%20materiality%20of%20events%20information_13112023.pdf

Policy on Dividend Distribution as required under SEBI Listing regulations is available at
https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Dividend%20Distribution%20Policy.pdf

Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements

The Company has prepared the Financial Statements in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and the relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable, save and except as disclosed and explained
elsewhere in the Annual Report.

CEO/CFO Certification

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in accordance with
Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II to the SEBI Listing Regulations pertaining to CEO/CFO certification
for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account

(a) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the
beginning of the year - Nil

(b) number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares from suspense account during
the year- Nil

(c) number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during the year- Nil

(d) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the end of
the year- Nil

(e) that the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the
shares - Nil

The Company had complied all the disclosures of the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements
specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations
(relating to disclosure on the website of the Company) except as mentioned in the Independent Auditor's
Certificate on Compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements under SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 appearing herein below.
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Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities:

The Agreements that require disclosure under clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of Schedule III of the Listing
Regulations were intimated to the Stock Exchanges and are available on the Company's website at the link:

h t t p s : / / w w w . b f u t i l i t i e s . c o m / p d f / A N N O U N C E M E N T S % 2 0 U N D E R % 2 0 R E G % 2 0 3 0 /
Disclosure_Reg30A_BFUL_14082023.pdf

Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutional
placement

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement
during the year under review.

Acceptance of recommendations of Committees by the Board of Directors

In terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations, there have been no instances during the year under review, when the
recommendations of any of the Committees were not accepted by the Board.

Fees paid to G. D. Apte & Co., Statutory Auditors and all entities in the network firm of the
Statutory Auditors

During FY 2023-24, a total fee of Rs.11.80 Lacs (incl. of taxes) was paid by the Company, for all services to G. D.
Apte & Co., Statutory Auditors and all entities in the network firm/entity of which they are a part.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013

In terms of provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a Policy to prevent Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace. During
the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of 'Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount:

The disclosure of 'Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested
by name and amount given in Note no 30 to consolidated financials statements.

Details  of  material  subsidiaries  of  the  listed  entity;  including  the  date and  place  of
incorporation  and  the  name  and  date  of  appointment  of  the statutory auditors of such
subsidiaries:

Sr . Name of Material Date of Place of Name of Date of
N o Subsidiaries Incorporation Incorporation statutory appointment of

auditor statutory auditor

1 Nandi Infrastructure 19/01/1996 Bangalore M/s S. Panna Raj 30th September
Corridor Enterprise & Associates 2022
Limited

2 Nandi Highway 19/01/1996 Bangalore M/s S. Panna Raj 21st August 2020
Developers Limited & Associates

3 Nandi Economic 17/04/2000 Bangalore M/s Walker 7th September
Corridor Enterprises Chandiok & Co 2022
Ltd. LLP

Green Initiative

In order to enable us to further extend our support towards paperless compliance as a part of Green Initiative
in the Corporate Governance, which was introduced by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in the year
2011, the shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to register their
e-mail addresses.

In respect of shares held in physical form, shareholders are requested to register their e-mail addresses with the
Company / R & T Agent (with Depository Participants in case of shares held in dematerialized form).

Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations relating to
Corporate Governance, except otherwise disclosed elsewhere in the Annual Report.

Shareholder Rights: The quarterly/half-yearly/financial performance of the Company are also available on
the Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/financial-results.html
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Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report:

During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Company's Standalone Financial Statements.
The Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime of unmodified audit opinion. However, M/s. G.
D. Apte & Co., Statutory Auditors have given an adverse opinion in their Audit Report on Consolidated Accounts.
The observations given in the Consolidated Audit Report and Secretarial Audit Report are duly explained in the
Director's Report.

As regards a qualified opinion on compliance of Corporate Governance requirements, with respect to appointing
an Independent Director on the Board of Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd. and Nandi Highway Developers
Ltd., material subsidiaries of the Company, the subsidiaries have appointed Independent Director after close of
the Financial Year.

Further, there has been no instance of penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI
or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital market, during the last three years, other than
those mentioned in the Directors' report.

Reporting of Internal Auditor:

The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee

For BF Utilities Limited

B. S. Mitkari A. B. Kalyani
Place: Pune Whole time Director Director
Date: November 23, 2024 DIN: 03632549 DIN: 00089430



35BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

Independent Auditor's Certificate on Compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements under
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Members
BF Utilities Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by BF Utilities Limited ('the Company'), for
the year ended March 31, 2024, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46 (2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") as amended from time to time.

Management's Responsibility

The Management is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance.
This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls and procedures to
ensure compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Auditor's Responsibility

� Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

� We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company
for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements
by the Company.

� We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance
issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"), the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per
the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we
comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

� We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for Firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements issued by ICAI.

Qualified Opinion

Based on our examination as above and to the best of the information and explanations given to us and representations
provided by the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule
V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2024 except for Regulation 24(1) of Listing Regulations,
which requires holding company to appoint an independent director of holding company on the Board of Directors of
material unlisted subsidiaries, viz. Nandi Highway Developers Limited and Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd.

DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

To the members of BF Utilities Limited

I, B. S. Mitkari, Whole-time Director of BF Utilities Limited, hereby declare that all the members of the Board of
Directors and the Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, applicable to
them as laid down by the Board of Directors in terms of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year
ended March 31, 2024

For BF Utilities Limited

B. S. Mitkari
Place: Pune Wholetime Director
Date: November 23, 2024 (DIN : 03632549)
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We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on Use

The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the
Company to comply with the requirements of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any other person
or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior
consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this Certificate for any events or circumstances occurring after
the date of this Certificate.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 100 515W
UDIN: 24121007BKCKYZ6689

Anagha M Nanivadekar
Partner

Pune, November 11, 2024 Membership Number: 121 007
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BF UTILITIES LIMITED
CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/DIRECTOR AND

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE COMPANY

(under Regulation 17 read with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of BF Utilities
Limited, ("the Company") to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that :

a) we have reviewed the standalone financial statements and the cash flow statements of BF Utilities Ltd. for the
year 2023-24 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations, save and except as disclosed and
explained elsewhere in the Annual Report.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by BF Utilities Ltd. during the
year 2023-24 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting of BF Utilities
Ltd. and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of BF Utilities Ltd. pertaining
to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to
take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, with respect to BF Utilities Ltd.:

i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statement; and

iii) instances of significant fraud of which we are aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management

or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

B. S. MITKARI
Wholetime Director &

Pune CEO & CFO

November 23, 2024 DIN: 03632549
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2024

To,

The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Twenty Fourth Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company together with Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

1 . FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total Income 355.88  266.08 9,885.34  7,758.92

Total Expenditure 219.03  198.40 5,965.98  5,019.93

Profit / (Loss)for the year before 136.86  67.67 3,919.36  2,738.99
taxation

Provision for tax (including Deferred Tax) 35.99  9.95 884.28  172.47

Profit / (Loss) for the year after 100.87  57.73 3,035.08  2,566.52
taxation

Items of other comprehensive income 1.01  0.59 (5.61)  2.22
(net of Tax)

Total 101.88  58.32 3,029.47  2,568.74

Balance of profit  / (Loss) from previous 1,192.67  1,134.35 3,112.23  530.81
year

Adjustments in other equity - - (60 .94) 12.68

Balance available for appropriation 1,294.55  1,192.67 6,080.76  3,112.23

Appropriations - - - - -

Surplus retained in statement of 1,294.55  1,192.67 6,080.76  3,112.23
profit and loss

2 . KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Details of changes in key financial ratios including significant changes i.e. change of 25% or more as compared
to the immediately previous financial year along with detailed explanations:

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 Explanation for
significant

change

Debtors Turnover N A NA NA

Inventory Turnover N A NA NA

Interest Coverage Ratio N A NA  NA

Current Ratio  1.63%  1.18 % NA

Debt Equity Ratio  0.09%  0.13% NA

Operating Profit Margin (%) 6.63% 12.02% NA

Net profit Margin (%) 28.34% 21.70% NA

Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year:

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Return on Net Worth (%) 6.80% 4.18% 48.41% 77.76%

Return on net worth is computed as net profit by average net worth. The details for change, if any, in return on
net worth are explained in relevant sections above.
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3 . SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2024 stood at Rs.188.34 Million. During the year under
review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock options or
sweat equity. As on 31st March, 2024, none of the Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible into
equity shares of the Company.

4 . DIVIDEND & RESERVES

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend on the equity shares for the year ended 31st March, 2024.
Particulars of the amounts proposed to be carried to reserves have been covered as part of the financial
performance of the Company.

5 . MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a . Industry structure and developments and outlook:

International Scenario:

According to the latest Global Wind Report 2024, the world installed 117 gigawatts of new wind power
capacity in 2023, a 50% increase from the year before.

Key Highlights of Global Wind Report 2024:

� Year-on-Year Expansion: Observed across 54 countries on all continents.

� Cumulative Global Wind Power Capacity: Exceeded 1-terawatt (TW) milestone, reaching 1021GW,
with a 13% year-on-year increase.

� Global Wind Report 2024 Yearly Growth Rate: Needs to triple to install 320 GW of new capacity
yearly by 2030 to achieve net-zero emissions by 2050.

Domestic Scenario:

India globally ranks fourth after China, the US and Germany, in terms of installed wind energy capacity,
with 42.8 GW (onshore wind) as of April 2024.

Assessment by the National Institute of Wind Energy reveals an estimated wind power potential of 695.5
GW at 120 meters and 1,164 GW at 150 meters above ground level.

b.  Opportunities/Threats/Risks/Concerns in the Wind Energy Sector

� Supply Chain Constraints: Global supply chain disruptions have impacted the availability and cost of
wind turbine components, especially from dominant producers like China.

� Permitting and Regulatory Hurdles: Slow and complex permitting processes delay project deployments,
significantly hindering growth in the wind sector.

� Technological Limitations: Existing wind turbine technologies face limitations in efficiency, especially
in lower wind speed regions.

� Market and Financial Challenges: The wind sector often experiences financial instability due to
fluctuating policy support, market volatility, and competitive pricing pressures.

� Environmental and Social Impact Concerns: Wind projects can face opposition due to their
environmental impact on wildlife and the local community concerns about noise and aesthetic
disruption.

� Interconnection and Grid Integration Issues: Integrating large-scale wind power into the existing grid
poses technical challenges due to the variability and location-specific nature of wind energy.

c. Company's Performance:

The Company ensures maximum capacity utilization by reducing machine downtimes. Preventive and
regular maintenance of turbines is done to ensure machine availability. The Company is putting maximum
efforts to reduce operating costs.

d. Segment-wise or product-wise performance:

It is given in the Segment Report section of Annual accounts

6 . COMPANY PERFORMANCE

During the Financial Year under review, on a standalone basis, your Company earned total income of Rs. 355.88
Mln. (previous year's Rs. 266.08 Mln.). The net profit / (Loss) after tax is Rs 100.87 Mln. (previous year's Rs. 57.73
Mln).
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During the Financial Year under review, on a consolidated basis, your Company earned total income of Rs.
9,885.34 Mln. (previous year's Rs. 7,758.92 Mln.). The net profit / (Loss) after tax is Rs. 3,035.08 Mlns. (previous
year's Rs. 2,566.52 Mlns).

7 . BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

The working conditions for wind mill continue to be difficult. Despite such problems, the Company was able to
generate 23.96 Million (Net) Units of power. The Company is making all efforts to maximize power generation
and reduce costs.

8 . FINANCE AND CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, the liquidity and cash positions were comfortable and were monitored with
reinforced focus and utmost importance was given to ensure the safety and liquidity of surplus cash.

Your Company has not done any Credit Rating.

9 . HUMAN RESOURCES

As on 31st March, 2024, the Company has 7 employees. The relations with Company's employees are cordial.

10 . CONCERNS AND THREATS

� The Company operates in a highly regulated environment. Any change in Government Policies will adversely
affect the operations of the Company.

� The Company depends on the service provider for operations and maintenance of Wind Turbines. Certain
litigations against the earlier service providers are pending before the judicial / quasi-judicial authorities.
Unfavorable outcome of these litigations will adversely affect our operations.

� The Company has only one customer for sale of power.

11 . PROSPECTS FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The Company is taking all efforts to improve wind power generation, reduce cost and improve realization.

12 . BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTANABILITY REPORT

Pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report initiatives taken
from an environmental, social and governance perspective in the prescribed format annexed as "Annexure
X" to this report. The same is also available on the Company's website at https://www.bfutilities.com/annual-
report.html

13 . INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control systems to ensure operational efficiency and accuracy in financial
reporting and compliance of various laws and regulations.

The internal control system is supported by the internal audit process. The internal audit is conducted by a
Chartered Accountant in practice. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the Internal Audit process and the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit and controls periodically.

14 . SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

The Company ensures safety of all its employees working at different places. Necessary safety gadgets are
provided to the employees requiring the same.

15 . CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis, describing
the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may constitute "forward looking statements"
within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either
expressed or implied.

16 . SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company has four subsidiary companies as on 31st March, 2024.

There has been no material change in the business of subsidiaries except as disclosed elsewhere in the Annual
Report and accounts of Subsidiaries.

The Company's Policy on determining material subsidiaries, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the
Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Policy%20on%20Material%
20Subsidiary.pdf

According to this policy, there are three material subsidiaries of the Company viz. Nandi Infrastructure Corridor
Enterprise Limited, Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd and Nandi Highway Developers Limited.
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A report on the financial position of each of the Subsidiaries as per the Act is provided in Form No. AOC-1
attached hereto as "Annexure III" and also given in the Financial Statements.

17 . PARTICULARS OF INFORMATION FORMING PART OF THE BOARD'S REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION
197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Reports and Accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding the
information required under Rule 5(2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014. Any shareholder interested in obtaining the same may write to the Company Secretary
at secretarial@bfulilities.com.

The information  required pursuant to section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended ,has been
provided in Annexure 'IV'

18 . NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, Seven Board Meetings were convened and held. The details of which are given in
the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013.

19 . DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134 (3) and (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Directors'
Responsibility Statement, your Directors' to the best of their knowledge and ability state that:

a) in the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with the proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and applied
consistently. Further judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024 and of the profit of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were
operating effectively; and

f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were
adequate and operating effectively.

20 . A STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule (6) of The Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015  and also confirmed that they have complied with the Code of Independent Directors prescribed
in Schedule IV of The Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has laid down a Code for the Board of Directors and Senior Management of the Company. The
said Code is available on the website of the Company viz. https://bfutilities.com/code-of-conduct.html

All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct.

21 . COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS' AND KMP'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

Director's appointment and remuneration is done as per the policy for selection and appointment of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel and their remuneration. The Nomination &
Remuneration Policy is available on Company's website https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/
Nomination_Renumeration_Policy.pdf

22 . ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT

a . Statutory Auditors and Audit Report

M/s. G. D. Apte & Co. Chartered Accountant (Firm Registration No.100515W), are the Statutory Auditors
of the Company and will continue the audit for Financial year 2024-25. The Audit report of M/s. G. D. Apte
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& Co. on the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 is a part of the Annual
Report.

b. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. SVD & Associates,
Company Secretaries, Pune to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year 2023-24.

The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as Annexure 'V' to this Report. The Secretarial
Audit Reports of material subsidiaries viz. Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Limited, Nandi Economic
Corridor Enterprises Ltd. and Nandi Highway Developers Limited are enclosed in Annexure 'VI'

Further, as required under Section 204 of the Act and rules thereunder, the Board has appointed M/s. SVD
& Associates, Company Secretaries, Pune, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25.

c. Cost Auditor

The maintenance of cost records and Cost Audit Rules are not applicable to the Company.

d. Consolidated Accounts

The Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are enclosed. Further, a statement
containing the salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries in the prescribed Form AOC-1 is
appended as Annexure to Note No. 38 which forms part of this Report.

The Company will make the said financial statements and related detailed information available upon the
request by any Member of the Company. These financial statements will also be kept open for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act,
2013, the financial statements of the Company, consolidated financial statements along with relevant
documents and the financial statements of subsidiaries are available on the website of the Company at
https://bfutilities.com/financial-results.html & https://bfutilities.com/annual-report.html

The Company has adopted a Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 16(1)(c) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations'').
The Policy, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/
Policies%20and%20Terms/Policy%20on%20Material%20Subsidiary.pdf

e . Reporting of Fraud by auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors of the Company have not
reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its officers or employees, to the Audit
Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act.

23 . EXPLANATION ON COMMENTS ON STATUTORY AUDITORS' AND SECRETARIAL AUDITORS'
REPORTS

a) M/s. G. D. Apte & Co., Statutory Auditors have given an adverse opinion in their Audit Report on Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Statutory Auditors' adverse opinion and Board's explanation thereto are
summarized as under:

Statutory Auditors' adverse opinion on Boards' explanation
Consolidated Financial Statements

A ) Financial Audit - Boards' Explanation on the adverse opinion in the
Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Audit report:
Basis of Adverse opinion In respect of Nandi Economic Corridor
As described in the note 39 to the accompanying Enterprise Limited (NECE Ltd.)-
consolidated financial statements, the Step-down During the year ended 31 March, 2011, NECE Ltd.
subsidiary viz. Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises issued Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
Limited (NECE), had recorded equity of ("CCPS") to the Investor (i.e. AIRRO Mauritius Holdings
INR 3,113.00 million in earlier years which includes V, including its successors and assigns) amounting to
securities premium of INR 2,772.54 million against Rs. 4,999.85 Millions. These CCPS were recorded as a
original subscription amount of INR 4,999.85 financial liability on First-time Adoption of Indian
million paid by an Investor. NECE has continued to Accounting Standards i.e. the Ind AS (i.e. AS 101)
classify all equity shares, including such transition date being 01 April 2016 at Rs. 3,113.00
subscription, as equity instruments basis Millions with the difference of Rs. 1,886.85 Millions
re-evaluation performed by the Management of recorded as adjustment to retained earnings of NECE
NECE in the current year. However, in our opinion Ltd. These CCPS were converted into 3,40,45,692
and based on the adverse opinion on the (Three Crore, forty lakh, forty five thousand six
standalone financial statements of NECE for hundred ninety two) equity shares during the year
financial year 2023-24 expressed by their statutory ended 31 March 2017 and consequently Rs. 340.46
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Statutory Auditors' adverse opinion on Boards' explanation
Consolidated Financial Statements

auditors, basis the buyback option with minimum Millions was recorded as equity share capital and
IRR of 18% available with the Investor, in Rs. 2,772.54 Millions was recorded as share premium by
accordance with the terms of the Shareholders NECE Ltd.
Agreement, the buyback obligation should have During the current year, the management of NECE Ltd.
been classified and measured as liability in has re-evaluated the provisions of the shareholders
accordance with the principles enunciated under agreement between NECE Ltd., the Promoters, the
the Ind AS. Had the buy-back obligation been Sponsors and the Investor("SHA") and concluded that
classified as liability and measured according to despite the buy back rights for the Investor under SHA,
applicable accounting standards, there would have NECE Ltd. need not recognise any financial liability
been a material and pervasive impact on total because the Investor has not exercised the buy back
equity and non-current liabilities as at April 1, which is triggered upon issuance of a buy back notice
2022, March 31, 2023 and March  31, 2024 and containing a clear intention to exercise the buy back
profit for the years ended March 31, 2023 and along with prescribed details, following the procedure
March 31, 2024 along with consequential effects outlined under the SHA and in accordance with the
thereof on the Standalone Financial Statements of procedure prescribed by applicable law. NECE Ltd. is
NECE and on the accompanying Consolidated also aware that the Investor, Promoters and Sponsors
Financial Statements, which we are unable to are in advanced discussions with regards to exploring
quantify due to absence of valuation of aforesaid alternative exit options. Therefore, the management
financial liability as at the respective reporting of NECE Ltd. continues to believe that none of the
yearends. equity shares issued by NECE Ltd. need to be classified

as a financial liability.

b) M/s. SVD & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, in their Secretarial Audit Report have made certain
qualifications. The auditor's qualifications and Board's explanation thereto are summarized as under:

Secretarial Auditors' Qualifications Boards' explanation

1. There has been delay in submission of consolidated The delay was for reasons beyond the control of the
financial results along with the standalone results Company and the Company has taken necessary action
under Regulation 33 of LODR for the quarter and for submission of financial results and has paid the fine
year ended March 31, 2023. Consequently, the amount within prescribed time.
Company received notices from BSE Limited (BSE)
vide email dated June 30, 2023 and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) vide letter dated
June 30, 2023 imposing a fine of INR. 1,29,800/-
each. The Company has duly paid the fine imposed.

2. There has been a delay in intimation under The delay was inadvertent and management shall take
Regulation 30 of LODR read with Schedule III and necessary measures to avoid such delay in future.
SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-1/P/CIR/
2023/123 dated July 13, 2023 filed with the BSE
Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE) regarding appointment of Director
dated November 29, 2023 beyond 30 minutes from
the conclusion of Meeting of Board.

3. The standardized reporting of violation related to The submission was inadvertent and management shall
code of conduct under SEBI (PIT) Regulations in the take necessary measures to avoid such error in future.
matter of one of the KMP of the subsidiary has
been submitted to SEBI instead of stock exchanges
where securities of the listed entity are listed.

4. The Company has filed e form-CSR 2 on May 04, The observation is self-explanatory.
2023 for the financial year 2021-2022 which was
beyond the prescribed time.

5. Pursuant to requirements of Regulation 24(1) of The management took necessary measures to appoint
LODR the Board has approved appointment of Independent Director and shall avoid such delay in
Independent Director Mr. Jayant Hemade on the future.
Board of Material subsidiaries viz Nandi Economic
Corridor Enterprises Ltd. and Nandi Highway
Developers Ltd. However the appointment was
effected after close of the Financial Year.



44 BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

24 . PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186

During the year, the Company has not made any investments, other than the Current Investments. The closing
balances of investments which would be covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are disclosed in
the Schedule of Non-Current Investments in the Financial Statements. The details of loans and guarantees, if
any, are disclosed in the financial statement of 2023-24.

25 . PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN
SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with Related
Parties have been done at arm's length and are in the ordinary course of business. Particulars are being provided
in Form AOC - 2 in Annexure 'VII'. Related Party Disclosures as per AS -18 have been provided in to Note No.29
to the Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions which is available on the Company's
website at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf
. All related party transactions entered into during FY 2023-24 were  on  arm's  length  basis  and  in  the  ordinary
course  of business.

All transactions with related parties were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. Omnibus approval
is obtained for related party transactions which are of repetitive nature and entered in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm's length basis. A statement giving details of all related party transactions entered
pursuant to omnibus approval so granted is placed before the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis for its
review. The related party transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are also
reviewed by the internal audit team on a half-yearly basis.

The details of the transactions with related parties are also provided in the accompanying Financial Statements.

26 . STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Discussion on state of Company's affairs has been covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis above

27 . MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BALANCE SHEET AND
THE DATE OF REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial Statements relate
and the date of the report, except as disclosed in the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
and elsewhere in this report.

28 . CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo,
as required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are annexed herewith as Annexure 'VIII' to this report.

29 . DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY :

In term of Regulations 43A of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a
Dividend Distribution Policy which can be accessed on the website of the Company at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/
Policies%20and%20Terms/Dividend%20Distribution%20Policy.pdf

30 . RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management at BF Utilities Ltd. forms an integral part of Management focus.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) oversees the risk management process in the Company. The RMC is
chaired by an Independent Director and the Chairperson of the Audit Committee is also a member of the RMC.

Some of the risks identified are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis and this report which forms
part of this Integrated Annual Report.

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business
objectives. Major risks identified are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.
These are discussed at the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company. The
Risk Management Policy is available on Company's website:  https://www.bfutilities.com/pdf/
Policies%20and%20Terms/Risk%20Management%20Policy%2001042019.pdf
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31 . CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') activities of the Company are governed through the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy ('CSR Policy') approved by the Board. The CSR Policy guides in designing CSR activities for
improving quality of life of society and conserving the environment and biodiversity in a sustainable manner.
The CSR Committee of the Board oversees the implementation of CSR Projects in line with the Company's CSR
Policy. The CSR Policy is available on Company's website https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/
Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf

The Annual Report on CSR activities for FY 2023-24 is enclosed as 'Annexure I' to this Report.

32 . PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

The details in prescribed format of 'Form AOC-1' are given in Annexure 'III' and at the relevant places in the
Financial Statements

33 . CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There has been no change in the nature of business during the Financial Year under review.

34 . DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

Directors appointed during the year

Name of Director Designation Term of appointment

Mr. B. S. Mitkari Executive Director Appointed in Annual General Meeting held on September
27, 2023 as Director, liable to retire by rotation

Mr. B. N. Kalyani Non-Executive Reappointed in AGM dated September 27, 2023 as
Director Director for continuation of holding of office of Director

upon attaining the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years

Mr. Jayant K. Independent Director Appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director for
Hemade 5(five) consecutive years with effect from November 29,

2023 to November 28, 2028 by way of Postal Ballot notice
dated December 07, 2023

Mr. B. B. Hattarki Independent Director Ceased as Non-Executive Independent Director with effect
from end of business hours on March 31, 2024 after
completing his 2nd Consecutive Term as Independent
Director

None of the Directors of the Company resigned during the year.

Independent Directors

The Company  has  received  declarations  from  all the Independent Directors confirming that  they  meet  the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations  and  are  independent  of   the   management. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may
be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgment and without any external influence. The Board   of Directors of the Company has taken
on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due
assessment of the veracity of the same. They are not liable to retire by rotation in terms of Section 149(13) of
the Act.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications,
experience and expertise in the fields of technology, strategy, finance, engineering and Law, etc. and that they
hold highest standards of integrity

The Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have enrolled themselves in the Independent
Directors' Databank maintained with  the  Indian  Institute  of Corporate Affairs ('IICA') in terms of Section 150
of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. They are
exempt from the requirement to undertake the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by IICA.

Details of Familiarisation Programme for the Independent Directors are provided separately in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms a part of this Integrated Annual Report.



46 BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

Key Managerial Personnel ('KMP')

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Act, the following is the KMP of the Company:

� Mr. B. S. Mitkari - CEO / CFO & Company Secretary

Employees designated as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the year

NIL

Directors and KMP's resigned during the year

None of the Directors and KMPs resigned during the year ended March 31, 2024.

Procedure for Nomination and Appointment of Directors.

The NRC is responsible for developing competency requirements for the Board based on the industry and
strategy of the Company. The Board composition analysis reflects in-depth understanding of the Company,
including its strategies, environment, operations, financial condition and compliance requirements.

The NRC conducts a gap analysis to refresh the Board on a periodic basis, including each time a Director's
appointment or re-appointment is required. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing the profiles of
potential candidates vis-a-vis the required competencies and meeting the potential candidates, prior to making
recommendations of their nomination to the Board. At the time of appointment, specific requirements for the
position including expert knowledge expected is communicated to the appointee.

The list of core skills, expertise and competencies of the Board of Directors as are required in the context of the
businesses and sectors applicable to the Company are identified by the Board and are available with the Board.
The Company has also mapped each of the skills, expertise and competencies against the names of the Board
Members possessing the same. The same is disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this
Integrated Annual Report.

Criteria for determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and Independence of a Director

The NRC has formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Directors in terms of provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The relevant
information has been given in 'Annexure II' which forms part of this Report. The Policy on Nomination &
Remuneration Policy is available on the website of the Company https://bfutilities.com/pdf/
Policies%20and%20Terms/Nomination_Renumeration_Policy.pdf

Board Evaluation

The Board has carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees and
individual Directors for the year pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The performance of the Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all
the Directors. The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included aspects such as Board composition
and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, contribution in the long-term strategic planning, etc. The
performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee Members.
The criteria for performance evaluation are broadly based on the Guidance Note issued by SEBI on Board
Evaluation which included aspects such as structure and composition of Committees, effectiveness of Committee
Meetings, etc.

The Chairman of the Board had one-on-one meetings with each Independent Director and the Chairman of the
NRC had one-on-one meetings with each Executive and Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors.

In a separate meeting, the Independent Directors evaluated the performance of Non-Independent Directors
and performance of the Board as a whole including the Chairman of the Board. The NRC reviewed the
performance of the Board, its Committees and of the Individual Directors. The same was discussed in the Board
Meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors and the NRC, at which the feedback received
from the Directors on the performance of the Board and its Committees was also discussed.

The Company follows a practice of addressing each of the observations and suggestions by drawing up an action
plan and monitoring its implementation through the Action Taken Report which is reviewed by the Board of
Directors from time to time.

35 . Directors proposed to be appointed and re-appointed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

1) Mr. A.B. Kalyani (DIN: 00089430) retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The brief resumes and other details relating to Directors who are proposed to be appointed / re-appointed, as
required to be disclosed under 'Regulations 2015', form part of the Notes setting out material facts annexed to
the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.
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36 . NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

There were no new companies which have become or ceased to be its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies during the year

37 . DETAILS OF DEPOSITS WHICH ARE NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER
V OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not accepted Public Deposits under chapter V of The Companies Act, 2013.

38 . DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

The Company has neither received nor is aware of any such order from Regulators, Courts or Tribunals during
the year.

There are no application made or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as at the
end of the financial year, nor has the Company done any one time settlement with any Bank or Financial
Institutions.

39 . DISCLOSURE REGARDING MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED BY THE CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to maintenance of cost records.

40 . DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has suitable internal control system comprising of proper checks and balances, policies and
procedures. This includes code of conduct, whistle blower policy, MIS and internal audit mechanism.

The Audit Committee along with Management review the internal audit and internal controls on a regular
basis. The internal audit is conducted by an Independent Chartered Accountant.

The Audit Committee deliberated with the members of the management, considered the systems as laid down
and met the internal audit team and statutory auditors to ascertain, their views on the internal financial control
systems.  The Audit Committee satisfied itself as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial
control system as laid down and kept the Board of Directors informed. However, the Company recognizes that
no matter how the internal control framework is, it has inherent limitations and accordingly, periodic audits and
reviews ensure that such systems are updated on regular intervals.

41 . COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of the Board and Audit Committee has been mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report
forming part of this Report.

42 . COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE

The CSR Committee comprises 3 Members out of which 1 is Independent Director. During the year under review,
2 meetings of the CSR Committee were held, details of which are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.
The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/
Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf During the year under review, there were no instances
when the recommendations of the CSR Committee were not accepted by the Board.

Since the Company is not satisfying any of the conditions of Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, there is
no CSR obligation on the Company for the FY 2023-24.

43 . WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formulated and implemented the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism. This has provided
a mechanism for directors and employees of the Company and other persons dealing with the Company to
report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee; any instance of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct. The aforesaid policy has also been uploaded on the Company's
website https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Whisle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf

44 . CASH FLOW

A Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2024 is attached to the Balance Sheet.

45 . CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the Corporate Governance, along with the certificate of compliance from the Auditors, forms part
of the Annual Report. The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
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Company have certified to the Board on financial statements and other matters in accordance with the Regulation
17 (8) of the Listing Regulations pertaining to CEO/CFO certification for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

46 . OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

In terms of provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a Policy to prevent Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace. During
the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. No cases were pending at the beginning of the year and no
complaint was pending at the end of the financial year.

The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee under the POSH Act and during the year under
review, no complaints were received by the Committee

47 . SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable.

48 . CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY:

The Company has received a certificate from M/s. SAW & Associates, Company Secretaries confirming that none
of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified by MCA or SEBI or any such
statutory authority from being appointed / continuing as Director and the same is appended as 'Annexure 'IX'
to the Directors' Report.

49 . ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2024 is
available on the Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/annual-return.html

50 . ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

Your Directors wish to place on record, their appreciation for the contribution made and support provided to
the Company by the shareholders, employees and bankers, during the year under the report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For BF Utilities Limited

A. B. Kalyani B.S. Mitkari
Pune Director Whole-time Director
November 23, 2024 DIN: 00089430 DIN:03632549
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Annexures to Director’s Report:

Annexure No Particulars

I Annual Report on CSR Activities

I I Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and Independence of Directors

III AOC-1

IV Ratio of Remuneration pursuant to section 197(12) of the Companies act, 2013, read

with rule 5 of the companies (appointment and remuneration of managerial personnel)

rules, 2014

V Secretarial Audit Report (MR-3) of Company

VI Secretarial Audit Reports (MR-3) of Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Limited,

Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd.  and Nandi Highway Developers Limited

VII AOC-2

VIII Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

IX Certificate of non-disqualification of directors

X Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report
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ANNEXURE I

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended]

1 . Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

BF Utilities Limited ('the   Company')   is committed to upholding the highest standards of Corporate Social
Responsibility ('CSR'). The Company has identified training and education and hygiene as thrust areas for CSR
activities.

The Company has  framed  a  CSR  Policy  in  compliance  with  the  provisions  of  the  Act,  which  is  available  on
the Company's website at https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Corporate%20Social%
20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf

2 . Composition of CSR Committee as on March 31, 2024:

S l . Name of Director Designation/ Nature Number of meetings Number of meetings
N o . of Directorship of CSR Committee of CSR Committee

held during the year  attended during the
year

1 Mr. B. B. Hattarki (Chairman) Independent Director 2 2

2 Mr. B. N. Kalyani Non-Executive 2 2
Non-Independent Director

3 Mr. A. B. Kalyani Non-Executive 2 0

Non-Independent Director

3 . Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

a) https://bfutilities.com/board-committees.html;

b) https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility%20Policy.pdf

4 . Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable

5 . (a ) Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 27, 96,179.90/-

(b)  Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 55,924/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: N.A.

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] : NIL as the net profit of the Company is less than
Rs. 5 crores in immediate preceding financial year.

6 . (a ) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
Ni l

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] : Nil

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
for the Financial

Year (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified
CSR Account as per subsection (6) under Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5)

of Section 135. of section 135.

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

Nil - - - - -
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( f ) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

(1 ) (2 )                       (3)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) Nil
of section 135

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Nil

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Nil

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of Nil
the previous Financial Years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

7 . Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sl. Preceding Amount transferred Balance Amount Amount Spent Amount transferred to Amount remaining Deficiency,
No Financial to Unspent CSR in Unspent CSR in the Financial a Fund as specified under to be spent in if any

Year(s) Account under Account under Year (in Rs) Schedule VII as per succeeding
subsection (6) subsection (6) of second proviso to Financial
 of section 135 section 135 subsection (5) of Years (in Rs)

 (in Rs.) (in Rs.) section 135, if any

Amount Date of
(in Rs) Transfer

1 FY-1 Nil NA Nil Nil NA Nil NA

2 FY-2 Nil NA Nil Nil NA Nil NA

3 FY-3 Nil NA Nil Nil NA Nil NA

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount: No

9 . Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section
135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For BF Utilities Limited

J. K. Hemade A.B. Kalyani
Pune Chairman CSR Committee Director
November 23, 2024 DIN: 10331350 DIN:00089430
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ANNEXURE II

Criteria for Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes and Independence of Directors

1 . Definition of Independence

1. A director will be considered as an 'Independent Director' ('ID') if the person meets with the criteria for
'Independent Director' as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations').

2. The definition of Independent Director is as provided in the Act and Listing Regulations.

3. Ex-employees of a Kalyani Group company  may be considered as independent only if he/she has or had  no
pecuniary relationship with the Company (due to employment/receipt of  monthly  pension  by  way of
Special  Retirement  Benefits/holding   consultant  or advisor positions) during the three immediately
preceding financial years or during the current financial year.

2 . Qualifications of Directors

1. Boards will ensure that a transparent board nomination process is in place that encourages diversity of
thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender.

2. It is expected that boards have an appropriate blend of functional and industry expertise.

3. While recommending appointment of a director, it is expected that the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee ('NRC') consider  the  manner  in  which  the function and domain expertise of the individual
contributes to the overall skill-domain mix of the Board.

4. IDs ideally should be thought/practice leaders in their respective functions/domains.

3 . Positive attributes of Directors

Directors are expected to comply with duties as provided in the Act. For reference, the duties of the Directors
as provided by the Act are as follows:

1. Act in accordance with the articles of the company.

2. Act in good faith in order to promote the objects of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole
and in the best interests of the company, its employees, the shareholders, the community and for the
protection of environment.

3. Exercise duties with due and reasonable care, skill and diligence and exercise independent judgement.

4. Not be involved in a situation in which he may have a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly
may conflict, with the interest of the company.

5. Not achieve or attempt to achieve any undue gain or advantage either to himself or to his relatives,
partners, or associates.

6. Not assign his office.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

B. N. Kalyani
Chairman

Pune, November 23, 2024 (DIN:00089380)
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ANNEXURE III

FORM AOC - 1

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries /
Associate Companies / Joint Ventures

Part "A" : Subsidiaries

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary : Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Limited

The Date since when subsidiary was acquired : 1st March, 2001

Reporting Period for the subsidiary concerned, : 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024
if different from the holding company's
reporting period

Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on : INR
the last date of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries

Share Capital : 10,409.37

Reserves & Surplus : (2053.03)

Total Assets : 14,828.92

Total Liabilities : 6,472.58

Investments : 11,335.63

Turnover : -

Profit before Taxation : (882.64)

Provision for taxation : 189.04

Profit after Taxation : (1,071.68)

Proposed Dividend : -

% of shareholding : 74.52%

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary : Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited

The Date since when subsidiary was acquired : 1st March, 2001

Reporting Period for the subsidiary concerned, : 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024
if different from the holding company's
reporting period

Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on : INR
the last date of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries

Share Capital : 20,904.67

Reserves & Surplus : 19,474.66

Total Assets : 2,13,709.95

Total Liabilities : 1,73,330.62

Investments : 5,417.31

Turnover : 82,386.86

Profit before Taxation : 29,885.54

Provision for taxation : 6,638.87

Profit after Taxation : 23,246.67

Proposed Dividend : -

% of shareholding : 42.16%
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary : Nandi Highway Developers Limited

The Date since when subsidiary was acquired : 1st March, 2001

Reporting Period for the subsidiary concerned, : 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024
if different from the holding company's
reporting period

Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on : INR
the last date of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries

Share Capital : 3,750.00

Reserves & Surplus : 24,829.25

Total Assets : 30,989.42

Total Liabilities : 2,410.17

Investments : 9,638.71

Turnover : 12,605.28

Profit before Taxation : 9,619.96

Provision for taxation : 1,655.02

Profit after Taxation : 7,964.94

Proposed Dividend : -

Dividend  Paid 2,000.00

% of shareholding : 69.53%

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary : BFUL Resources Private Limited

The Date since when subsidiary was acquired : 16th March, 2016

Reporting Period for the subsidiary concerned, : 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024
if different from the holding company's
reporting period

Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on : INR
the last date of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries

Share Capital : 1.02

Reserves & Surplus : 53.15

Total Assets : 55.87

Total Liabilities : 17.00

Investments : -

Turnover : 7.26

Profit before Taxation : 5.54

Provision for taxation : -

Profit after Taxation : 5.54

Proposed Dividend : -

% of shareholding : 100%

For further details refer Note No. 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ANNEXURE IV

INFORMATION FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Name of Director/Key Managerial Personnel Ratio to median % increase in
remuneration/ remuneration over

sitting fees previous year

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. B. N. Kalyani NIL NA

Mr. A. B. Kalyani NIL NA

Mr. B. B. Hattarki NIL NA

Ms. A. A. Sathe NIL NA

Mr.S. K. Adivarekar NIL NA

Mr. J. K. Hemade NIL NA

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. B. S. Mitkari - Whole time Director 1:1 4%

A . Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in FY 2023-24: 5%

B. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2024: Seven

C. Comparison of average percentile increase in salary of employees other than the managerial
personnel and the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration :

Particulars % change in
remuneration

Average increase in salary of employees (other than managerial personnel) 9%

Average increase in remuneration of managerial personnel 5%

D . Affirmation:

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is as
per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Mr. B.S. Mitkari was not in receipt of any remuneration or commission from holding and/or subsidiary companies.

E . Statement showing the names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and
the names of every employee who -

(i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the
aggregate, was not less than One Crore Two Lakhs Rupees;

Mr. B. S. Mitkari - As per the information given in the Corporate Governance Report.

(ii) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a
rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand Rupees per month; - Not
applicable

(iii) if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year
which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn
by the Managing Director or Whole-time Director or Manager and holds by himself or along with his
spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the Company. - Not
applicable

On behalf of the Board of Directors

B. N. Kalyani
Chairman

Pune, November 23, 2024 (DIN:00089380)
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ANNEXURE V

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
And

[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members,
BF Utilities Limited,
Mundhwa, Pune Cantonment,
Pune 411 036

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by BF Utilities Limited having CIN: L40108PN2000PLC015323 (hereinafter called "the
Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowings and Overseas Direct Investment, wherever applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act'):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018 (not applicable to the Company during the audit  period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021 (not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021(not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (not applicable to the Company during
the audit period);

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (not applicable
to the Company during the audit period); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to
the Company during the audit period) and

(vi) The management has identified and confirmed the compliance of the following law as specifically applicable to
the Company:

a) The Electricity Act, 2003

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses and regulations of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by 'The Institute of Company Secretaries of India'; and

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(LODR)
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During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards etc. mentioned above except the following:

1. There has been delay in submission of consolidated financial results along with the standalone results under
Regulation 33 of LODR for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2023. Consequently, the Company received
notices from BSE Limited (BSE) vide email dated June 30, 2023 and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) vide letter dated June 30, 2023 imposing a fine of INR. 1,29,800/- each. The Company has duly paid the fine
imposed.

2. There has been a delay in intimation under Regulation 30 of LODR read with Schedule III and SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/123 dated July 13, 2023 filed with the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) regarding appointment of  Director dated November 29, 2023 beyond 30
minutes from the conclusion of Meeting of Board.

3. The standardized reporting of violation related to code of conduct under SEBI (PIT) Regulations in the matter of
one of the KMP of the subsidiary has been submitted to SEBI instead of stock exchanges where securities of the
listed entity are listed.

4. The Company has filed e form-CSR 2 on May 04, 2023 for the financial year 2021-2022 which was beyond the
prescribed time.

5. Pursuant to requirements of Regulation 24(1) of LODR the Board has approved appointment of Independent
Director Mr. Jayant Hemade on the Board of Material subsidiaries viz Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd.
and Nandi Highway Developers Ltd. However the appointment was effected after close of the Financial Year.

We further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Further, in the incidences
where, for the purpose of any Board or Committee Meeting, notice, agenda or notes to agenda are circulated with
shorter period of less than seven days, all the Directors including Independent Directors have consented to the
shorter period of circulation of the same.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of
the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events / actions having a major bearing on
the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. except
the following:

i) A Special resolution has been passed in the 23rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 27, 2023 for
approving the re-appointment of Mr. B N Kalyani (DIN: 00089380) as Director, for continuation of holding of
office of Director upon attaining the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years upto the expiry of his term.

FOR SVD & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Sheetal S Joshi
Partner

FCS No.: 10480
 C P No.:11635

Place: Pune Peer Review No: 669/2020
Date: November 11, 2024 UDIN: F010480F002015824

Note:

This report is to be read with letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.
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'ANNEXURE A'

To,

The Members,
BF Utilities Limited,
Mundhwa, Pune Cantonment,
Pune 411 036

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management's Responsibility

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the
systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by
the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's management is adequate and
appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. We have relied on the documents and evidences provided physically and through electronic mode.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events, etc.

Disclaimer

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

FOR SVD & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Sheetal S Joshi
Partner

FCS No.: 10480
 C P No.:11635

Place: Pune Peer Review No: 669/2020
Date: November 11, 2024 UDIN: F010480F002015824
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ANNEXURE VI

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members
Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprises Limited
(CIN : U85110KA1996PLC019619)
No.1, Midford House, Midford Gardens
Off M.G. Road, Bangalore - 560 001, Karnataka

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprises Limited (hereinafter called "the Company"). The
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me with a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under; (Not applicable to
the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company)

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent
applicable;

(v) I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of
the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with
other Acts, Laws, Policies and Regulations applicable specifically to the Company.

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act'):

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011 (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,1992 (Not
applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public
Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not
applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not applicable to the Company as the
Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable
to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company); and
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� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable
to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company).

(vii) I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings (SS-1) and
General Meetings (SS-2);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ("LODR") and amendments made thereunder to the extent applicable. (The Company is material
subsidiary of BF Utilities Ltd, a listed entity).

I have not examined compliance by the Company relating to the applicable financial laws, such as direct and indirect
tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors during the Audit Period. The changes in the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent in advance of the meetings and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out with requisite majority as per the minutes,
as duly recorded and signed by the Chairman of the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board;

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Hari Babu Thota
Company Secretary in Practice

FCS No.12204; CP No.15090

Place: Bengaluru Peer Review Cert.No.:2210/2022
Date:  29.08.2024 UDIN No. F012204F001152411

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-1 and forms an integral
part of this report
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ANNEXURE-1

To
Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprises Limited
Bengaluru

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

(2)  I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

(3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

(4) Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management conducts the affairs of the Company.

Hari Babu Thota
Company Secretary in Practice

FCS No.12204; CP No.15090

Place: Bengaluru Peer Review Cert.No.:2210/2022
Date:  29.08.2024 UDIN No. F012204F001152411
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members
Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited
(CIN: U85110KA2000PLC026939)
No.1, Midford House, Midford Gardens Off,
M.G. Road, Bangalore - 560 001, Karnataka

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited (hereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me with a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under; (Not applicable to
the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company).

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent
applicable;

(v) I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of
the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with
other Acts, Laws, Policies and Regulations applicable specifically to the Company.

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act'):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011 - (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 - (Not
applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009 - (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 - (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted
Public Company);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - (Not
applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client - (Not applicable to the Company as the
Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - (Not applicable
to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 1998 - (Not applicable
to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company).
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(vii) I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings (SS-1) and
General Meetings (SS-2);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ("LODR") and amendments made thereunder - (Not applicable to the Company as the Company
is an Unlisted Public Company).

I have not examined compliance by the Company relating to the applicable financial laws, such as direct, indirect tax
laws and Cost Accounts, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated
professionals.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors during the Audit Period. The changes in the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent in advance of the meetings and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out by requisite majority as per the minutes, as
duly recorded and signed by the Chairman of the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as
the case may be.

There are adequate systems and processes commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period:

During the reporting period, the Company filed an application before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT), Bengaluru Bench, vide CP No. 14(BEN)2024, seeking an extension of the tenure of its 7% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares from 20 years to 30 years. The application has been duly approved by the Hon'ble NCLT at the
hearing held on 09th August 2024, and the extension has been granted for 33,37,500 number of Preference Shares
amounting to Rs. 3,33,75,000/- having maturity date of 28.10.2024 is extended by a period of ten years.

I further report that, during the audit period, the Company has not undertaken any activity having a major bearing
on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc.

Hari Babu Thota
Company Secretary in Practice

FCS No.12204; CP No.15090

Place: Bengaluru Peer Review Cert.No.:2210/2022
Date: 29.08.2024 UDIN No. F012204F001152750

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-1 and forms an integral
part of this report.



64 BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

ANNEXURE

To
Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited,
Bengaluru

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

(2)  I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

(3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

(4) Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management is conducted the affairs of the Company.

Hari Babu Thota
Company Secretary in Practice

FCS No.12204; CP No.15090

Place: Bengaluru Peer Review Cert.No.:2210/2022
Date: 29.08.2024 UDIN No. F012204F001152750
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members
Nandi Highway Developers Limited
(ClN: U85110KA1996PLC019621)
No.1, Midford House, Midford Gardens,
Off M.G. Road, Bangalore - 560 001, Karnataka

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Nandi Highway Developers Limited (hereinafter referred as "the Company"). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under; (Not applicable to
the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company)

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent
applicable;

(v) I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of
the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with
other Acts, Laws, Policies and Regulations applicable specifically to the Company.

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act'): -

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011 (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,1992 (Not
applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public
Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not
applicable to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not applicable to the Company as the
Company is an Unlisted Public Company);

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable
to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company); and

� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable
to the Company as the Company is an Unlisted Public Company).
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(vii) I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings (SS-1) and
General Meetings (SS-2);

b) During the year under review, the following are the observations on the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR"):

� As per the Regulation 24 (1), at least one independent director on the board of directors of the listed
entity shall be a director on the board of directors of an unlisted material subsidiary. The Company
has appointed Mr. Jayant Kumodchandra Hemade as Additional independent director on its Board
on with effect from 30th April 2024 which is subsequent to the financial year under review.

I have not examined compliance by the Company relating to the applicable financial laws, such as direct and indirect
tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors during the Audit Period. The changes in the Board of
Directors that took place during the audit period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and
requisite re-constructions of Board Committees have been noted.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent in advance of the meetings and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out with requisite majority as per the minutes,
as duly recorded and signed by the Chairman of the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board;

I further report that:

� The Board of Directors of the Company at their board meeting held on 28th May 2019 approved and adopted
the Scheme of Amalgamation between Nandi Infrastructure Capital Company Limited ("Transferor Company")
(NICCL) and Nandi Highway Developers Limited (NHDL) ("Transferee Company") and their respective Shareholders
and Creditors. The Hon'ble NCLT has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation vide its order CP (CAA) No.21/BB/
2020 dated 18th December, 2020 (Copy of the order received as on 12th January 2021).

Pursuant to the approved Scheme of Amalgamation, the authorized share capital of NHDL stands increased
from Rs. 38,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty-Eight Crores Only) to Rs. 48,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty-Eight Crores Only).

The transferor and transferee Companies had filed the above stated NCLT order in e-form INC-28 vide SRN
R93223667 and R85702512 respectively with the Registrar of Companies, Bengaluru and a resubmission remark
was received for both the INC-28. The resubmission remarks stated as follows:

INC-28 of Transferor Company: "SYSTEM ERROR: Form cannot be registered unless a Form INC-28 having SRN of
this form is already approved. Obtain condonation of delay from Central Govt (Ministry) u/s 460 of the Act and
the same in another INC-28 within stipulated time giving reference of this SRN in the relevant column.

INC-28 of Transferee Company: "Approval of the form is not allowed unless all other forms filed by the Transferor
Company are closed. Pending SRN's of Transferor Companies: R93223667."

In compliance with the above, the transferor company filed an application with the Hon'ble NCLT, Bengaluru
Bench for condonation of delay vide C.A No. 94/2022 in C.P.(CAA)No. 21/BB/2020 and the Hon'ble NCLT was
pleased to allow the said application vide its order dated 29.11.2022. Further, the said order was filed by the
Transferor Company with the Registrar of Companies, Bengaluru in e-form INC-28 vide SRN: F54510888 dated
24.12.2022 and the same is approved.

However, the authorized share capital of NHDL on the MCA portal is still shown as Rs.38,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Thirty-Eight Crore Only). The company has already taken steps by filing the CRF form under SRN no: AA9996395.
It is informed that the Company is actively following up with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, to resolve
this issue.

Hari Babu Thota
Company Secretary in Practice

FCS No.12204; CP No.15090

Place: Bengaluru Peer Review Cert.No.:2210/2022
Date:  20.09.2024 UDIN No. F012204F001270186

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as and forms an integral part of this
report.
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ANNEXURE

To
Nandi Highway Developers Limited
Bengaluru

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

(2)  I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

(3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

(4) Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management is conducted the affairs of the Company.

Hari Babu Thota
Company Secretary in Practice

FCS No.12204; CP No.15090

Place: Bengaluru Peer Review Cert.No.:2210/2022
Date:  20.09.2024 UDIN No. F012204F001270186



68 BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

ANNEXURE VII

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions
under third proviso thereto

1 . Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Nil

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Nil

c. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions Nil

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including Nil
the value, if any

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions Nil

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board Nil

g. Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as Nil
required under first proviso to Section 188

2 . Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Bharat Forge Limited

b. Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions Sale of Wind Power

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions On going basis from April 1, 2020

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or In tune with market parameters,
transactions including the value, if any Estimated annual value of Rs. 500 Million

e. Date(s) of approval by the board, if any N.A.

f. Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

For BF Utilities Limited

A.B. Kalyani B. S. Mitkari
Pune Director Whole-time Director
November 23, 2024 DIN:00089430 DIN : 03632549
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ANNEXURE VIII

Information as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A . Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

i) Steps taken for Conservation of Energy :

The operations of the Company do not consume much energy

ii) Steps taken for utilizing alternate source of energy ;

The Company is in the business of generating wind energy.

iii) The Capital Investment on energy conservation equipment :

Nil during the year under reference.

B. Technology Absorption :

i) Efforts made towards technology absorption :   N.A.

ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development, import
substitution :  N.A.

iii) In case imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial
year) :

Details of Technology Year of Import Has technology If not fully absorbed,
imported (product) been fully absorbed areas where absorption

has not taken place and
the reasons thereof

NIL NIL NIL NIL

iv) Expenditure on Research and Development :  NIL.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo :

(a) Activities relating to Exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export markets
for products and services and export plans : N.A.

(b) Total foreign exchange earnings and outgo for the financial year is as follows:

i) Total Foreign Exchange earning : NIL

ii) Total Foreign Exchange outgo : NIL
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ANNEXURE IX

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of
BF Utilities Limited
Mundhwa,
Pune Cantonment,
Pune - 411 036

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of BF
Utilities Limited having CIN L40108PN2000PLC015323 and having registered office at Mundhwa, Pune Cantonment,
Pune - 411036 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for
the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
other Statutory Authority.

Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment
No. in Company

1. Babasaheb Neelkanth Kalyani 00089380 15/09/2000

2. Amit Babasaheb Kalyani 00089430 01/08/2005

3. *Bhalchandra Basappa Hattarki 00145710 16/06/2001

4. Aarti Arun Sathe 06925030 31/03/2015

5. Shrikrishna Kiran Adivarekar 06928271 30/05/2018

6. Bhalchandra Shankar Mitkari 03632549 01/04/2019

7. #Jayant Kumodchandra Hemade 10331350 29/11/2023

* Mr. Bhalchandra Basappa Hattarki ceased as Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from end of business
hours on March 31, 2024 after completing his 2nd Consecutive Term as Independent Director.

# Mr. Jayant Kumodchandra Hemade appointed as Non-Executive, Independent Director for 5(five) consecutive years
with effect from November 29, 2023 to November 28, 2028 by way of Postal Ballot notice dated December 07, 2023

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

                                                                                                                                                          Signature:
Name: Sunny Arun Warghade

Membership No.: 12058
Place: Pune CP No.: 11426
Date : 18th November, 2024 UDIN: F012058F002274714
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ANNEXURE -X

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

I . Details of the listed entity

1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity L40108PN2000PLC015323

2 Name of the Listed Entity BF UTILITIES LIMITED

3 Year of incorporation 15-09-2000

4 Registered office address MUNDHWA PUNE 411036

5 Corporate address MUNDHWA PUNE 411036

6 E-mail secretarial@bfutilities.com

7 Telephone 7719004777

8 Website www.bfutilities.com

9 Financial year for which reporting is being done April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024

10 Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed BSE LTD. AND NATIONAL STOCK
EXCHANGE OF INDIA LTD.

11 Paid-up Capital (In Rs) Rs. 188,338,140/-

12 Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of Mr. B. S. MITKARI
the person who may be contacted in case of any queries on Company Secretary and
the BRSR report Compliance Officer

Contact : 7719004777
Email : Secretarial@bfutilities.com

13 Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report Standalone basis
made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the entity) or on
a consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and all the entities
which form a part of its consolidated financial statements,
taken together).

14. Name of assurance provider NA

15. Type of assurance obtained NA

II. Products/Services

16 . Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover)

S . Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity % of Turnover
No. of the entity

1 Power generation Wind power generation 100.00%

17 . Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity's Turnover)

S . Product/Service NIC Code % of total Turnover
No. contributed

1 Wind Power 27160000 96.00%

2 Renewable Energy Certificate 490700 4.00%

III. Operations

18 . Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total

National 1 1 2

International 0 0 0
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1 9 Markets served by the entity

a . Number of locations

Locations Number

National (No. of States) 1

International (No. of Countries) 0

b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of 0.00%
the total turnover of the entity?

C. A brief on types of customers

BF Utilities Limited serves B2B customer namely Bharat Forge Ltd. for meeting their energy
requirements for the  plants located in state of Maharashtra.

IV. Employees

2 0 Details as at the end of Financial Year

A . Employees and workers (including differently abled)

S. Particulars Total Male Female
No. (A)

No. % No. %
(B) (B / A) (C) (C / A)

EMPLOYEES

1 Permanent (D) 7 5 71.43% 2 28.57%

2 Other than permanent (E) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

3 Total employees(D + E) 7 5 71.43% 2 28.57%

WORKERS

4 Permanent (F) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

5 Other than permanent (G) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

6 Total workers (F + G) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

B. Differently abled Employees and workers:

S. Particulars Total Male Female
No. (A)

No. % No. %
(B) (B / A) (C) (C / A)

DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES

1 Permanent (D) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

2 Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

3 Total differently abled employees (D + E) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS

4 Permanent (F) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

5 Other than Permanent (G) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

6 Total differently abled workers (F + G) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
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2 1 Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women

Total (A) No. and percentage of Females

No. (B) % (B / A)

Board of Directors 6 1 16.67%

Key Management Personnel 1 0 0.00%

2 2 Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers (Disclose trends for the past 3 years)

Turnover rate in Turnover rate in Turnover rate in the year
current FY (2023-24) previous FY (2022-23) prior to the previous

FY (2021-22)

Male Fema le Other Total Male Fema le Other Total Male Fema le Other Total

Permanent Employees 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 12.00% 0.00% 0.00% 12.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Permanent Workers 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

2 3 (a ) Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

S . Name of the holding / Indicate whether % of Does the entity
No. subsidiary/associate holding/ shares indicated at column A,

companies/joint Subsidiary/ held participate in the
ventures (A) Associate/ by listed Business Responsibility

Joint Venture entity initiatives of the listed
entity? (Yes/No)

1 Nandi Infrastructure Subsidiary 74.52% No
Corridor Enterprises Ltd.

2 Nandi Economic Corridor Subsidiary 42.16% No
Enterprises Ltd.

3 Nandi Highway Subsidiary 69.53% No
Developers Ltd.

4 BFUL Resources Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary 100.00% No

VI. CSR Details

24 (i) Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, No
2013: (Yes/No)

(ii) Turnover (in Rs.) Rs. 355,861,558/-

(iii) Net worth (in Rs.) Rs. 1,482,854,889/-
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VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

2 5 Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National
Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct

FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Stakeholder group Grievance Number of Number of Remarks Number of Number of Remarks
from whom complaint Redressa l complaints complaints complaints complaints
is received Mechanism in f i l ed pending f i l ed pending

Place (Yes/No) during resolut ion during resolut ion
(If Yes, then the year at close of the year at close of
provide web- the year the year
link for
gr ievance
redress policy)

Communities NO 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Investors (other than shareholders) NO 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Shareholders YES* 1 0 Nil 2 0 Nil

Employees and workers YES# 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Customers NO 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Value Chain Partners NO 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Other (please specify) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

* http://www.bfutilities.com/investors-grievance.php

# http://www.bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20Terms/Whisle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf

2 6 Overview of the entity's material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining
to environmental and social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business,
rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its
financial implications, as per the following format

S . Material Indicate Rationale for In case of risk, Financial
No. issue whether identifying the approach to implications of

identified risk or risk / opportunity adapt or the risk or
opportunity mit igate opportunity
(R/O) (Indicate positive

or negative
implications)

1 Green energy O Company is in Wind NA Positive
Energy business

2 Climate Strategy O Transition to renewables is an opportunity for Positive
BF Utilities to add value to society by providing
Clean and Green Power and achieving its
climate target

3 change in R The Company operates Flexibility to adopt Negative
Government Policies in a highly regulated Change

environment

4 Customer Base R Company is in Wind Need to increase Negative
Energy business customer base

5 New Business O Opportunity to expand the customer base Positive
Opportunities through new business services

6 Digitalisation and R Access to sensitive Strong information Negative
Cyber security data by miscreants and security architecture

loss of data integrity and rigour of
implementation with
access points exercised
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

Disclosure Questions P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

Policy and management processes

1. a. Whether your entity's policy/policies Yes No Yes No No No No Yes No
cover each principle and its core
elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/No)

b. Has the policy been approved by Yes No Yes No No No No Yes No
the Board? (Yes/No)

c. Web Link of the Policies, if available - - - - - -

2. Whether the entity has translated the Yes No Yes No No No No Yes No
policy into procedures. (Yes / No)

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your No No No No No No No No No
value chain partners? (Yes/No)

4. Name of the national and international No No No No No No No No No
codes/certifications/labels/ standards
(e.g. Forest Stewardship Council,
Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustea)
standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS)
adopted by your entity and mapped to
each principle.

5. Specific commitments, goals and targets Our organisation acknowledges the significance of establishing
set by the entity with defined timelines, targets to assess advancement towards achieving all the principles
if any. of the National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct

(NGRBC). Considering that we are in our initial year of ESG
adoption, we intend to specify our objectives and targets in the
upcoming reporting period. We recognise the need to align our ESG
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efforts with our business goals, and we are committed to
implementing a comprehensive and effective ESG strategy that
ensures sustainability and creates long-term value for all our
stakeholders. We are dedicated to enhancing our ESG practices and
performance and look forward to sharing our progress in the
future

6. Performance of the entity against the We are committed to providing comprehensive performance
specific commitments, goals and targets updates in the forthcoming years. As we navigate through the
along-with reasons in case the same are future, we intend to diligently communicate our achievements,
not met. financial results and strategic advancements.

Governance, leadership and oversight

7. Statement by director responsible for Dear Stakeholders,
the business responsibility report, I am pleased to present the BRSR report for BF Utilities Limited
highlighting ESG related challenges, (BFUTILITIE), a Company engaged in the generation of electricity
targets and achievements (listed entity through wind mills. Corporate governance is of utmost importance
has flexibility regarding the placement to us and we are dedicated to achieving transparency and
of this disclosure) governance goals. We adhere to established policies and

frameworks that guide ethical decision-making in all our
engagements. Considering that we are in our initial year of ESG
adoption, we intend to specify our objectives and targets in the
upcoming reporting period. We recognise the need to align our ESG
efforts with our business goals, and we are committed to
implementing a comprehensive and effective ESG strategy that
ensures sustainability and creates long-term value for all our
stakeholders. We are dedicated to enhancing our ESG practices and
performance and look forward to sharing our progress in the
future.

Thank you for your continued support and partnership.

Sincerely,

Mr. Amit Kalyani
Director
DIN : 00089430
BF Utilities Limited

8. Details of the highest authority Mr. Amit Kalyani, Director is responsible for the implementation
responsible for implementation and and oversight of Business Responsibility Policy.
oversight of the Business Responsibility
policy (ies).

9. Does the entity have a specified Yes
Committee of the Board/ Director
responsible for decision making on
sustainability related issues? (Yes / No).

If yes, provide details. The Company has a well-established internal governance structure
to ensure implementation of various policies. We review the
implementation of policies through our internal audit, Risk
management process, monitoring of KPI's in-line with established
policies

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company

Subject for Review Indicate whether review was Frequency (Annually / Half yearly /
undertaken by Director/ Quarterly/ Any other-please
Committee of the Board/ specify)
Any other Committee

P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9 P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

Performance against Yes. The Performance is reviewed by Annually
above policies and follow Board or any other committee
up action authorized by the Board.

Compliance with statutory There have been no instances of Annually
requirements of relevance rectification of non-compliances.
to the principles and
rectification of any
non-compliances
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11. Has the entity carried out independent assessment/ evaluation P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9
of the working of its policies by an external agency? (Yes/No). No No No No No No No No No
If yes, provide name of the agency.

If yes, provide name of the agency. Not Applicable

12. If answer to question (1) above is "No" i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

Quest ions P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

The entity does not No Yes No No No No No No No
consider the
Principles material
to its business
(Yes /No)

The entity is not at Yes No No No No No No No No
a stage where it is
in a position to
formulate and
implement the
policies on
specified principles
(Yes /No)

The entity does not Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
have the financial
or/human and
technical resources
available for the
task (Yes/No)

It is planned to be Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No
done in the next
financial year
(Yes /No)

Any other reason The Company This clause - This clause This clause This clause This clause - The Company
(please specify) is already in is not is not is not is not is not is always

compliance applicable applicable applicable applicable applicable responsive to
with ethical considering considering considering considering considering its customer
standards by nature of nature of nature of nature of nature of needs.
adopting business. business. business. business. business.
code of
conduct for
Senior
management
and KMP and

Board

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements
with key processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as "Essential" and "Leadership". While the
essential indicators are expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership
indicators may be voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be
socially, environmentally and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that
is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the financial year:

Segment Total number of Topics/principles covered %age of persons in respective
training and awareness under the training and category covered by

programmes held its impact the awareness programmes

Board of 1 Awareness programme for all 50.00%
Directors Independent directors informing

them about their roles, rights and
responsibilities
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Segment Total number of Topics/principles covered %age of persons in respective
training and awareness under the training and category covered by

programmes held its impact the awareness programmes

Key 0 NA 0.00%
Managerial
Personnel

Employees 0 NA 0.00%
other than
BoD and
KMPs

Workers 0 NA 0.00%

2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in proceedings (by
the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, in the financial
year, in the following format

Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity's website:

Monetary

NGRBC Name of the Amount Brief of Has an
Principle regulatory/ (in Rs.) the Case appeal

enforcement been
agencies/ preferred?
judicial (Yes/No)
institutions

Penalty/ Fine Regulation 33 1.National Rs. 1,29,800 The listed entity had not filed No
of SEBI LODR Stock the Standalone &

Exchange of Consolidated financial results
India Limited: for the quarter and year

2.BSE Limited: Rs. 1,29,800 ended March 31, 2024 within
the prescribed period as per
Regulation 33 of SEBI LODR

Sett lement NA NA NA NA NA

Compounding NA NA NA NA NA
F e e

Non-Monetary

NGRBC Name of the Amount Brief of Has an
Principle regulatory/ (in Rs.) the Case appeal

enforcement been
agencies/ preferred?
judicial (Yes/No)
institutions

Imprisonment NA NA NA NA NA

Punishment NA NA NA NA NA

3. Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where monetary
or non-monetary action has been appealed

Case Details Name of the regulatory/ enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions

No appeal or revision is preferred by the Company against the monetary actions and has duly paid amount
of requisite penalty or settlement amount.

4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief Provide a web-link
to the policy, if available

- The Company does not have anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy.



79BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

5 . Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law
enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

FY 2023-24 (Current Financial Year) FY 2022-23 (Previous Financial Year)

Directors 0 0

KMPs 0 0

Employees 0 0

Workers 0 0

6 . Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Number Remarks Number Remarks

Number of complaints received in relation to issues
of Conflict of Interest of the Directors 0 Nil 0 Nil

Number of complaints received in relation to issues
of Conflict of Interest of the KMPs 0 Nil 0 Nil

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action taken
by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest:

Company is making all the efforts to not repeat the violation resulting in fines.

8. Number of days of accounts payables ((Accounts payable *365) / Cost of goods/services procured) in the
following format:

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Number of days of accounts payables 0 0

9. Open-ness of business

Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading houses, dealers, and related parties along-
with loans and advances & investments, with related parties, in the following format:

Parameter Metrics FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Concentration of a. Purchases from trading houses as % of 0 0
Purchases total purchases

b. Number of trading houses where 0 0
purchases are made from

c. Purchases from top 10 trading houses 0 0
as % of total purchases from trading
houses

Concentration of Sales a. Sales to dealers / distributors as % 0 0
of total sales

b. Number of dealers / distributors to 0 0
whom sales are made

c. Sales to top 10 dealers / distributors as 0 0
% of total sales to dealers / distributors

Share of RPTs in a. Purchases (Purchases with related 0 0
parties / Total Purchases)

b. Sales (Sales to related parties / 95.72% 88.40%
Total Sales)

c. Loans & advances (Loans & advances 100% 100%
given to related parties / Total loans
& advances)

d. Investments  ( Investments in related 99.30% 99.39%
parties / Total Investments made)
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PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the
environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by the
entity, respectively.

FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23) Details of improvements in environmental and
social impacts

R&D 0.00% 0.00% NA

Capex 0.00% 0.00% NA

2. a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No) No

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling Not applicable
and disposing at the end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste considering nature of
(c) Hazardous waste (d) other waste business

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity's NA
activities (Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the
Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards?
If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those
in their value chains

1 . a . Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

Category % of employees covered by

Tota l Heal th Accident Matern i ty Pate rn i t y Day Care
(A) insurance insurance benef i t s Benef i t s f a c i l i t i e s

Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %
(B) (B / A) (C) (C / A) (D) (D / A) (E ) (E / A) ( F ) (F / A)

Permanent
employees

Male 5 5 100.00% 5 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 2 2 100.00% 2 100.00% 2 100.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 7 0 100.00% 7 100.00% 2 28.570% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other than
permanent
employees

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
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b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

Category % of workers covered by

Tota l Heal th Accident Matern i ty Pate rn i t y Day Care
(A) insurance insurance benef i t s Benef i t s f a c i l i t i e s

Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %
(B) (B / A) (C) (C / A) (D) (D / A) (E ) (E / A) ( F ) (F / A)

Permanent workers

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other than permanent
workers

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

c. Spending on measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent and other
than permanent) in the following format:

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Cost incurred on wellbeing measures as a % of total revenue of 0.14% 0.13%
the Company (Staff welfare plus Insurance other)

2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current FY and Previous Financial Year

Benefits FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

No.of No. of Deducted and No. of No. of Deducted and
employees workers deposited with employees workers deposited with
covered as covered as the authority covered as covered as the authority

a % of total a % of total (Y/N/N.A.) a % of total a % of total (Y/N/N.A.)
employees workers employees workers

PF 100.00% 0.00% Yes 100.00% 0.00% Yes

Gratuity 100.00% 0.00% NA 100.00% 0.00% Yes

ESI 0.00% 0.00% NA 0.00% 0.00% NA

Others - 28.00% 0.00% NA 28.00% 0.00% Yes
Superannuation

3. Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken by
the entity in this regard.

- Not Applicable as the Company does not have any differently abled employees. Further, the Company will
make necessary arrangements as specified under Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016 as and
when the Company hires any such differently abled employees

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If so,
provide a web-link to the policy. - Not Applicable
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5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.

- Not Applicable

Permanent employees Permanent workers

Gender Return to work rate Retention rate Return to work rate Retention rate

Male Not Applicable as there are no such cases.

Female

Other

Total

6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees and
worker?

If yes, give details of the mechanism Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of
in brief. the mechanism in brief)

Permanent  Workers No NA

Other than Permanent Workers No NA

Permanent  Employees Yes https://bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20
and%20Terms/Whisle%20Blower%20
Policy.pdf

Other than Permanent Employees No NA

7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity:

Not Applicable

Category FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Total No.of % (B / A) Total No. of % (D / C)
employees/ employees / employees / employees /
workers in workers in workers in workers in
respective respective respective respective
category (A) category, who category (C) category,who

 are part of are part of
association(s) association(s)
or Union (B) or Union (D)

Total Permanent 'Not Applicable' as there are no such associations or organizations.
Employees

Male

Female

Other

Total Permanent
Workers

Male

Female

Other
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8. Details of training given to employees and workers:

Category FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Total (A) On Health On Skill Total (D) On Health On Skill
and safety upgradation and safety upgradation
measures measures

No. (B) % No. (C) % No. (E) % No. (F) %
(B / A) (C / A) (E / D) (F / D)

Employees

Male 5 5 100.00% 5 100.00% 5 5 100.00% 5 100.00%

Female 2 2 100.00% 2 100.00% 2 2 100.00% 2 100.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 7 0 100.00% 7 100.00% 7 0 100.00% 7 100.00%

Workers

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:

Category FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Total (A) No. (B) % (B/ A) Total (D) No. (E) % (E / D)

Employees

Male 5 5 100.00% 5 5 100.00%

Female 2 2 100.00% 2 2 100.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total 7 7 100.00% 7 7 100.00%

Workers

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

10. Health and safety management system:

a.  Whether an occupational health and safety Yes
management system has been implemented by
the entity? (Yes/ No).

If yes, the coverage such system? The Company acknowledges that there are no
occupational health and safety hazzards associated
with its business opeations. However, the well-being
of its employees remain a top priority. We ensure
the availability of first aid kit at our location. We
conduct annual health check ups of our employees.

b. What are the processes used to identify In light of our business operations, hazard
work-related hazards and assess risks on a identification is not applicable.
routine and non-routine basis by the entity?

c. Whether you have processes for workers to No
report the work related hazards and to remove
themselves from such risks?

d. Do the employees/ worker of the entity have No
access to non-occupational medical and
healthcare services?
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11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format: No such case

Safety Incident/Number Category FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) Employees 'Not Applicable' as there are no
(per one million-person hours worked) Workers incidents.

Total recordable work-related injuries Employees
Workers

No. of fatalities Employees
Workers

High consequence work related injury or Employees
ill-health (excluding fatalities) Workers

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

The Company ensures the availability of first aid kit at our location. We conduct annual health check ups of our
employees.

13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Filed during Pending Remarks Filed during Pending Remarks
the year resolution the year resolution

at the end at the end
of year of year

Working Conditions 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Health & Safety 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory
authorities or third parties)

Health and safety practices Not Applicable as the Company is not subject to any such inspection.

Working Conditions

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) and on
significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working conditions. -
Not Applicable

PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

We place great emphasis on stakeholder identification Our stakeholder identification process remains a
continuous undertaking, enabling us to remain informed, engaged, and responsive to the ever-evolving needs
of our stakeholders.
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2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each stakeholder
group.

Sr Stakeholder Whether Channels of Frequency of Purpose and Scope of
Group identified as Communication Management engagement including key

vulnerable & (Email, SMS, News topics and concerns raised
Marginalized Paper, Pamphlets, during such engagement
Group Advertisements,
(Yes / no) Community

Meetings, Notice
Board, Website),
Other

1 Shareholders No � Quarterly and Others - To share updates of the
annual financial please specify - Company during AGM
results Annually

� Annual reports

� Annual general

meetings

2 Investors No Website Others - To share updates of the

please specify - Company
At required
frequency

3 Customers No E-mail Others - To share updates of the
please specify Company

4 Employees No E-mail Others - To share updates of the
please specify Company and work related

updates

5 Government and No E-mail Others - To update on various
Regulators please specify compliances and to seek

approvals

PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

Essential Indicators

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the entity, in
the following format:

Category FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Total  (A) No.of % (B / A) Total (C) No. of % (D / C)
employees / employees /

workers workers
covered covered

(B) (D)

Employees

Permanent 7 7 100.00% 0 7 100.00%

Other than permanent 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Employees 7 7 100.00% 0 7 100.00%

Workers

Permanent 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Other than permanent 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Total Workers 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
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2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:

Category FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Total (A) Equal to More than Total (D) Equal to More than
Minimum Minimum Minimum Minimum

Wage Wage Wage Wage

No. (B) % No. (C) % No. (E) % No. (F) %
(B / A) (C / A) (E / D) (F / D)

Employees

Permanent 7 0 0.00% 7 100.00% 7 0 0.00% 7 100.00%

Male 5 0 0.00% 5 100.00% 5 0 0.00% 5 100.00%

Female 2 0 0.00% 2 100.00% 2 0 0.00% 2 100.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other than 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Permanent

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Workers

Permanent 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other than 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Permanent

Male 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Female 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

- All the employees are paid wages above the minimum wage limit

3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages:

a. Median remuneration / wages

Male Female Other

Number Median Number Median Number Median
remuneration/ remuneration/ remuneration/

salary/ wages of salary/ wages of salary/ wages
respective category respective category of respective

 (Amount in Mln)  (Amount in Mln) category

Board of Directors (BoD) 4 0.40 1 0.01 0 0

Key Managerial Personnel 1 14.70 0 0 0 0

Employees other than BoD 4 0 2 0 0 0
and KMP

Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0

b. Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the entity, in the following format:

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages 8.15% 7.99%

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues
caused or contributed to by the business? - Yes

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.

The employees can directly share their feedback, ideas and grievances with HR.HR will revert with relevant
solutions.
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6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Filed Pending Remarks Filed Pending Remarks
during resolution during resolution

the year at the the year at the
end of end of

year  year

Sexual Harassment 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Discrimination at workplace 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Child Labour 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Wages 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil

Other human 0 0 Nil 0 0 Nil
rights related issues

7. Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013, in the following format:

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Total Complaints reported under Sexual Harassment on of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 (POSH) Nil Nil

Complaints on POSH as a % of female employees / workers NA NA

Complaints on POSH upheld NA NA

8. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases.

The Company has internal complaint committee under Section 4 (1) of Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

9. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? No

10. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed
(by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Child labour 0.00%

Forced/involuntary labour 0.00%

Sexual harassment 0.00%

Discrimination at workplace 0.00%

Wages 0.00%

Others - please specify NA

11. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from
the assessments at Question 10 above : Not Applicable
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PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

Essential Indicators

1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

The electricity consumption is 'Negligible' and the figures of the same cannot be procured as the rent paid by the
Company covers the cost of electricity.

Parameter FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

From renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (A) Nil Nil

Total fuel consumption (B) Nil Nil

Energy consumption throughother sources (C) Nil Nil

Total energy consumption(A+B+C) Nil Nil

From non-renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (D) Nil Nil

Total fuel consumption (E) Nil Nil

Energy consumption through other sources (F) Nil Nil

Total energy consumed from non-renewable Nil Nil
sources (D+E+F)

Total energy consumed (A+B+C+D+E+F) Nil Nil

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover Nil Nil
(Total energy consumed / Revenue from operations)

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover Nil Nil
adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP)
(Total  energy consumed / Revenue from operations
adjusted for PPP)

Energy intensity in terms of physical output Nil Nil

Energy intensity (optional) - therelevant metric may Nil Nil
be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out No
by an externalagency?

If yes, name of the external agency. Not Applicable

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under : No
the Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India?

If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case : NA
targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the
following format: The water consumption is 'Negligible'

Parameter FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(i) Surface water Nil Nil

(ii) Groundwater Nil Nil

(iii) Third party water Nil Nil

(iv) Seawater / desalinated water Nil Nil

(v) Others Nil Nil

Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) Nil Nil
(i + ii + iii + iv + v)

Total volume of water consumption(in kilolitres) Nil Nil

Water intensity per rupee ofturnover (Total water
consumption / Revenue from operations) Nil Nil

Water intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for
Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) (Total water consumption /
Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP) Nil Nil

Water intensity in terms of physical output Nil Nil

Water intensity (optional) - the relevant metric may be selected

by the entity Nil Nil

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?

No

If yes, name of the external agency. NA
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4. Provide the following details related to water discharged:

Parameter FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment
(in kilolitres)

(i) To Surface water NA NA

- No treatment NA NA

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment NA NA

(ii) To Groundwater NA NA

- No treatment NA NA

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment NA NA

(iii) To Seawater NA NA

- No treatment NA NA

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment NA NA

(iv) Sent to third-parties NA NA

- No treatment NA NA

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment NA NA

(v) Others NA NA

- No treatment NA NA

- With treatment - please specify level of treatment NA NA

Total water discharged (in kilolitres) N A N A

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency?
(Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. NA

5. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? No

If yes, provide details of its coverage and implementation. NA

6. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

The Company's operations do not result in any of the abovementioned air emissions.

Parameter Please specify FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)
unit

NOx NA Nil Nil

SOx NA Nil Nil

Particulate matter (PM) NA Nil Nil

Persistent organic pollutants (POP) NA Nil Nil

Volatile organic compounds (VOC) NA Nil Nil

Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) NA Nil Nil

Others - please specify NA

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried No
out by an external agency? (Y/N)

If yes, name of the external agency. NA
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7. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following
format:

Parameter Unit FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into NA Nil Nil
CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs,SF6, NF3, if available)

Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of the GHG NA Nil Nil
into CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, PFCs,SF6, NF3, if available)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per NA Nil Nil
rupee ofturnover (Total Scope 1 and Scope 2
GHG emissions / Revenue from operations)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity NA Nil Nil
per rupee of turnover adjusted or Purchasing
Power Parity (PPP) (Total Scope 1 and Scope 2
GHG emissions / Revenue from operations adjusted
for PPP)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity NA Nil Nil
in terms of physical output

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity NA Nil Nil
(optional)- the relevant metric may beselected by
the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried No
out by an externalagency? (Y/N)

If yes, name of the external agency. NA

8. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? No

If Yes, then provide details. NA

9. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format: No such case

Parameter FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

Plastic waste (A) Nil Nil

E-waste (B) Nil Nil

Bio-medical waste (C) Nil Nil

Construction and demolition waste (D) Nil Nil

Battery waste (E) Nil Nil

Radioactive waste (F) Nil Nil

Other Hazardous waste. Please Nil Nil
specify, if any. (G)

Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Nil Nil
Please specify, if any.
(Break-up by composition i.e. by
materials relevant to the sector)

Total (A+B + C + D + E + F + G + H) Nil Nil

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover (Total waste generated Nil Nil
/ Revenue from operations)

Waste intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Nil Nil
Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) (Total waste generated /
Revenue from operations adjusted for PPP)

Waste intensity in terms of physical output Nil Nil

Waste intensity (optional) – the relevant metric may be Nil Nil
selected by the entity
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Parameter FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)

For each category of waste generated, total
waste recovered through recycling, re-using or
other recovery operations (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Recycled Nil Nil

(ii) Re-used Nil Nil

(iii) Other recovery operations Nil Nil

Total Nil Nil

For each category of waste generated, total
waste disposed by nature of disposal method
(in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Incineration Nil Nil

(ii) Landfilling Nil Nil

(iii) Other disposal operations Nil Nil

Total Nil Nil

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out No
by an external agency? (Y/N)

If yes, name of the external agency. NA

10. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy adopted
by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and processes and the
practices adopted to manage such wastes. Nil

11. If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife
sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where
environmental approvals / clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

Sr. No. Location of Type of Whether the conditions of environmental
operations/ offices operations approval / clearance are being complied with?

(Y/N)If no, the reasons thereof and corrective
action taken, if any

Not Applicable

12. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in
the current financial year:

Name and brief EIA Date Whether conducted Results Relevant
details of project Notification by independent communicated in Weblink

No. external agency public domain
(Yes / No) (Yes/ No)

Not applicable

13. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the Water
(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection
act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format:

Sr. Specify the law / Provide details Any fines / penalties / Corrective action
No. regulation/ guidelines of the non- action taken by taken, if any

which was not compliance regulatory agencies
complied with such as pollution control

boards or by courts

Yes, the Company is 100% compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India
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PRINCIPLE 7 Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in
a manner that is responsible and transparent

Essential Indicators

1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of such
body) the entity is a member of/ affiliated to.

S. No. Name of the trade and industry Reach of trade and industry
chambers/ associations chambers/ associations

(State/National/International)

1 Nil NA

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti-competitive conduct by
the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities

Name of the Authority Brief of the Case Corrective action taken

Not Applicable

PRINCIPLE 8 Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

Essential Indicators:

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the
current financial year.

Name and brief SIA Date of Whether conducted Results Relevant
details of project Notification notification by independent communicated in Weblink

No. external agency public domain
(Yes / No) (Yes/ No)

As per applicable laws, SIA is not applicable for any of the projects undertaken by the Company

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being undertaken
by your entity, in the following format:

Name of Project State District No. of Project % of PAFs Amounts paid to
for which R&R is Affected covered by PAFs in the FY
ongoing Families (PAFs) R&R (In Rs.)

No such project undertaken

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress Step 1: Beneficiaries grievances are usually
grievances of the community. addressed by our implementing partner at their

level.

Step 2 : If unresolved they may contact CSR
committee or visit our location.

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by FY (2023-24) PY (2022-23)
value) sourced from suppliers:

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small producers 0 0

Directly from within India 0 0
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5. Job creation in smaller towns - Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or workers
employed on a permanent or non-permanent / on contract basis) in the following locations, as % of total wage
cost

Location FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Rural NA NA

Semi Urban NA NA

Urban NA NA

Metropolitan NA NA

(Place to be categorized as per RBI Classification System - rural / semi-urban / urban / metropolitan)

PRINCIPLE 9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible
manner

1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

The Company has only one consumer belonging to same group of companies. As a result, Company and the
Consumer are in direct communication and there is no need to establish a  separate mechanism to receive and
respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry information
about:

Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from As a percentage to
all products/service that carry information about total turnover

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product 0.00%

Safe and responsible usage 0.00%

Recycling and/or safe disposal 0.00%

3. Number of consumer FY (2023-24) Remark PY (2022-23) Remark
complaints in respect
of the following

Received Pending Received Pending
during resolution during resolution

the year at end the year at end
of year of year

Data privacy 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Advertising 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Cyber-security 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Delivery of essential
services 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Restrictive Trade
Practices 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Unfair Trade
Practices 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

Other 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

4. Details of instances of product recalls on Number Reasons for recall
account of safety issues

Voluntary recalls Nil NA

Forced recalls
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5. Does the entity have a framework/ policy on Yes
cyber security and risks related to data privacy?

If available, provide a web-link of the policy http://www.bfutilities.com/pdf/Policies%20and%20
Terms/Risk%20Management%20Policy%
2001042019.pdf

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or The Company has taken corrective action after
underway on issues relating to advertising, and making payment of penalty and settlement amount.
delivery of essential services; cyber security and We ensure to reply to the regulators for any
data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of information as required by regulators.
instances of product recalls; penalty / action
taken by regulatory authorities on safety of
products / services.

7. Provide the following information relating to
data breaches:
a. Number of instances of data breaches a. Nil

b. Percentage of data breaches involving b. NA
personally identifiable information of
customers

c. Impact, if any, of the data breaches c. NA
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T o
The Members of
BF Utilities Limited,
Pune.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

1 . Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of BF Utilities Limited ("the Company"),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of Changes in Equity and statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred as 'the Standalone Financial Statements')

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, ('the Act') in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024, the profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

2 . Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('the ICAI')
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

3 . Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements:

a. Management review of certain litigations by and against the Company does not warrant recognition of
any provision in the books of account as at March 31, 2024. The Company shall continue the review in
future and if required carry out the necessary accounting adjustments.

b. One of the investors of Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited (NECE), a step-down subsidiary of the
Company has in terms of Shareholders' Agreement (SHA) dated December 24, 2010, exercised a default
put option of its equity shares held in NECE, on the Company, which the Company has denied as wrongful
and has rejected and disputed its invocation. As on the date of approval of these financial statements, the
purchase price of such shares of NECE cannot be estimated since the invocation of the put option is under
dispute.

c. Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Limited (NICE) and Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited.
(NECE) which are subsidiaries of the Company, have not yet submitted the audited financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024 to the Company. The Company will publish the consolidated financial
statements, once the audited financial statements of the above subsidiaries are made available to the
Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

4 . Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the financial year ended March 31 2024. We have determined that
there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

5 . Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance and Director's Report
but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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as stated above is expected to be made available to us after the date of this report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Upon reading of the other information made available to us, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

6 . Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a  true  and  fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") specified
under Section 133 of the Act read with companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

7 . Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

� Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system with the reference to the Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

� Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
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disclosures in the standalone financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

8 . Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1,"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024,
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure 2" to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements.

(g) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the books of
account of the Company, we report that, the managerial remuneration has been paid and provided
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 and Schedule V of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2024 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements- Refer Note 24 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c. Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused them to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination which
included appropriate test checks, we report that the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has the feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, we did not come across any instance of tampering of the audit trail
feature during the course of our audit.

As per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023 reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation
of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 100515W

Anagha M. Nanivadekar
Partner

Place: Pune Membership Number: 121 007
Date: May 30, 2024 UDIN: 24121007BKCKSF5267
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 8 (1) under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2024 of BF Utilities Limited

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment .

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not have any intangible assets as at March 31, 2024 and
as such reporting under clause i(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has carried out physical verification of significant items of its property, plant and equipment
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. During the year the
Company has carried out physical verification of land aggregating to 64.75 hectares located at Bhoposhi,
Pawangoan, District Satara out of the total land of 106.81 hectares and the discrepancies noticed on
physical verification were not material. According to information given to us the physical verification of
remaining land parcels will be carried out by the Company in FY 2024-25. In our opinion, the periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on
the examination of registered documents provided to us, we report that, the title deeds comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date, subject to dispute of title in respect of land admeasuring 64.75 hectares
situated at Bhoposhi, District Satara which is under litigation.

(d) Based on the audit procedures conducted by us and according to the information and explanations given
to us we report that, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment during the year.

(e) Based on the audit procedures conducted by us and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we report that no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

ii. (a) The Company has carried out physical verification of inventories in the nature of spare parts during the
year and no materials discrepancies in excess of 10% or more were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable.

(b) Based on the audit procedures conducted by us and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we report that the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or
financial institutions at any point of time during the year. As such, reporting under paragraph 3 (ii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. Based on the audit procedures conducted by us and according to the information and explanations provided to
us, during the year the Company has not made any investments in or has not provided any guarantee or security
or has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. As such, reporting under paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provision of Section 185 of the Act. The provision of section 186 of the Act, except sub-section 1 are not
applicable to the Company being Company providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule VI to the
Act. We further report that the provision of sub-section 1 of section 186 are complied with.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits to which the provisions
of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under
apply. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

vi. The maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the Company pursuant to the provisions of sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii. a. The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value added tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into Goods and
Services Tax.

ANNEXURE "1" TO  THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, employee state insurance, duty of customs, goods
and services taxes, cess and other material statutory dues as applicable with appropriate authorities.
According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the books of
account and the records of the Company, we report that there were no undisputed statutory dues as at
the last day of the financial year which were outstanding for a period of more than six months from the
date, they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books of
account and records of the Company, we report that there are no dues in respect of provident fund,
income tax, employees state insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, goods and services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books of account
and records of the Company, we report that no income has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and as such there are no such transactions, which
are not recorded in the books of account.

ix. a. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of unsecured, interest free inter corporate loans repayable
on demand. The Company has not taken any loans from banks or financial institutions.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books of
account and records of the Company, we report that the Company has not been declared to be a wilful
defaulter by any lender.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books of
account and records, the Company has not availed term loans during the year. As such, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) shall not be applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books of
account and records, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

f. Based on the audit procedures conducted by us and according to the information and explanations provided
to us we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries. As such reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x. a. During the year, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). As such, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) is not applicable.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. As such reporting under clause 3(x)(b) is not applicable.

xi. a. Based on the procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the Financial
Statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, we report that, no whistle- blower complaints
were received during the year by the Company.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company within the meaning of Section 406 of the Act. As such, reporting under
clause 3 (xii) (a) to (c) is not applicable.

xiii. Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per the information and explanations given to us, we report
that the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
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applicable and the details as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards have been disclosed in the
Standalone Financial Statements.

xiv. a. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

b. The internal audit reports of the Company have been considered by us during the course of the audit.

xv. Based upon the audit procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we report that the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions of the nature as described in
Section 192 of the Act.

xvi. a. The Company is not required to be registered under the section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act,1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, the provision of clause xvi (a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b. The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year.

c. The Company would not be classified as a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, the group has two Core Investment Companies
as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

xvii. On the basis of examination of books of account and records of the Company and overall examination of the
Standalone Financial Statements, we report that the Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year
2023-24 and in the immediately preceding financial year 2022-23.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting under
clause 3 (xviii) is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us and based on the audit procedures
carried out by us, we report that the Company is not required to incur expenditure on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of the Act, since the Company does not satisfy any criteria of applicability
of CSR provision as specified under Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 100515W

Anagha M. Nanivadekar
Partner

Place: Pune Membership Number: 121 007
Date: May 30, 2024 UDIN: 24121007BKCKSF5267
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Annexure-2 referred to in paragraph 8(2)(f) under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' of our report on even date on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Standalone Financial statement under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

To the Members of BF Utilities Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements of BF Utilities
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial statements, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI). Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements .

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

ANNEXURE "2" TO  THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 100515W

Anagha M. Nanivadekar
Partner

Place: Pune Membership Number: 121 007
Date: May 30, 2024 UDIN: 24121007BKCKSF5267
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As at 31  st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023
Note No. Million Rs. Million Rs.

A S S E T S

I Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 31.50 38.39

(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 3 1,107 .89 1,107.13

(ii) Other financial assets 4 1 .12 1.12

(c) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 18.44 18.00

(d) Income tax assets (net) - -

(e) Other non current assets 6 370 .00 370.00

1,528 .95 1,534.64

I I Current assets

(a) Inventories 7 0 .51 0.44

(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 3 1 .50 1.23

(ii) Trade receivables 8 - -

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 16.92 6.59

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 9 377 .10 334.44

(v) Other financial assets 4 22.31 17.31

(c) Other current assets 6 4 .52 4.69

422 .86 364.70

Total assets 1 ,951 .81 1,899.34

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

E q u i t y

(a) Equity share capital 10 188 .34 188.34

(b) Other equity 11 1,294 .55 1,192.66

Total equity 1 ,482 .89 1,381.00

I Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Other financial liabilities 13 210 .10 210.10

(b) Provisions 16 0 .24 0.60

Total Non-current liabilities 210 .34 210.70

I I Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12 130 .00 186.30

(ii) Trade payables 15

Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and 0 .64 0.61
small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than 29.88 27.13
Micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities 13 1 .74 1.67

(b) Income tax liabilities (net) 4 .02 4.76

(c) Other current liabilities 14 1 .70 0.93

(d) Provisions 16 90.61 86.24

Total current liabilities 258 .59 307.64

Total liabilities 468 .93 518.34

Total equity and liabilities 1 ,951 .82 1,899.34

Summary of material accounting policies 1

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G.D. Apte & Co. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A. B. KALYANI B. S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No.: 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 30 May, 2024 Pune, 30 May, 2024
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Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2024

Year ended 31 st Year ended 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Note No. Million Rs. Million Rs.

I n c o m e

I. Revenue from operations 17 193 .97 180.29

II. Other income 18 161 .91 85.78

III. Total income (I + II) 355 .88 266.07

IV. Expense s

Changes in inventories 19 ( 0 . 0 8 ) (0.05)

Employee benefits expense 20 20.10 19.47

Finance costs 21 0 .02 0.35

Depreciation and amortization expenses 2 7 .10 7.11

Other expenses 22 191 .88 171.52

Total expenses (IV) 219 .02 198.40

V. Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax(III-IV) 136 .86 67.67

VI. Exceptional items - -

VII. Profit / (Loss) before tax (V + VI) 136 .86 67.67

VIII. Tax expense :

(a) Current tax

- pertaining to profit for the year 38.50 22.00

- MAT Credit utilised in relation to earlier years - (9.90)

Tax for the year 38.50 12.10

(b) (Excess) / Short provision of earlier years ( 1 . 8 1 ) -

(c) Deferred tax ( 0 . 7 0 ) (2.15)

Total Tax expense 35.99 9.95

IX. Profit / (Loss) for the year (VII-VIII) 100 .87 57.72

X. Other Comprehensive Income

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss :

Gain/ (Loss) on Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 0 .25 0.26

Gain/ (Loss) on fair valuation of financial instruments 1 .03 0.49

1 .28 0.75

Income Tax on above 0 .27 0.16

1 .01 0.59

(b) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

Total Other comprehensive Income/ (loss) 1 .01 0.59

XI. Total comprehensive income for the year (IX + X) 101 .88 58.31

XII. Earnings / (Loss)  per share:

(Face value per equity share Rs.5)

Basic & Diluted 23 2 .68 1.53

Summary of material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G.D. Apte & Co. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A. B. KALYANI B. S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No.: 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 30 May, 2024 Pune, 30 May, 2024
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Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31th March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit / (Loss) before tax 136 .86 67.67

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortization expense 7 .10 7.11

Profit on sale of Investments - (0.24)

Finance cost on sales tax deferrals - 0.34

Interest income ( 2 2 . 7 1 ) (15.30)

Dividend received (139 .06 ) (69.61)

Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipments ( 0 . 0 2 ) -

Finance Income on sales tax deferrals - (0.34)

Operating Profit / (Loss) before working capital changes ( 1 7 . 8 3 ) (10.37)

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories ( 0 . 0 8 ) (0.05)

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables - 0.30

(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets ( 1 . 3 8 ) (2.79)

(Increase) / Decrease in Other current assets 0 .45 0.25

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 2 .77 1.41

Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 0 .06 0.20

Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities 0 .76 (0.46)

Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 4 .01 0.90

Operating Profit / (Loss) after working capital changes ( 1 1 . 2 4 ) (10.61)

Direct taxes (paid) / Refund ( 3 7 . 4 2 ) (13.89)

Net cash generated from / (Used in) Operating Activities ( A ) ( 4 8 . 6 6 ) (24.50)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Payment towards purchase of Property, plant and equipments ( 0 . 2 2 ) (0.10)

Net Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipments 0 .02 -

Maturity proceeds of/(investments in) fixed deposits with banks ( 4 2 . 6 6 ) (47.94)

Sale proceeds from Investments - 2.95

Interest received on Fixed deposits with Banks 19.09 13.70

Dividend received 139 .06 69.61

Net cash generated from / (used in) Investing Activities ( B ) 115 .29 38.22

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Repayment of Borrowings ( 5 6 . 3 0 ) (23.20)

Net cash generated from / (used in) Financing Activities ( C ) ( 5 6 . 3 0 ) (23.20)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C) 10.33 (9.48)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6 .59 16.07

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16.92 6.59

Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND
AS) -7, 'Statement of Cash Flows' as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2. Direct Taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investment and financing
activities.

3. All figures in brackets indicate cash outflow

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G.D. Apte & Co. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A. B. KALYANI B. S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No.: 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 30 May, 2024 Pune, 30 May, 2024
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Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended 31st March, 2024

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G.D. Apte & Co. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A. B. KALYANI B. S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No.: 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 30 May, 2024 Pune, 30 May, 2024

A ) Equity Share Capital Million Rs.

Particulars  As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2 0 2 4  2023

Balance as at the beginning of the year 188.34 188.34

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -

Restated balance at the beginning of the year 188.34 188.34

Changes in equity share capital during the year - -

Balance as at the end of the year 188.34 188.34

B) Other equity Million Rs.

Particulars Surplus/ (Deficit) Equity instruments Total
in Statement of through Other

Profit & Loss  Comprehensive
Income

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 1,127.60 6.75 1,134.35

Changes in accounting policy or prior - - -
period errors

Restated balance as at 1 April, 2022 1,127.60 6.75 1,134.35

Profit/(Loss) for the year 57.72 - 57.72

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit plan 0.19 - 0.19
(net of Tax)

Measurement of Investments at FVTOCI - 0.40 0.40
(net of Tax)

Accumulated gain transferred to Retained 2.11 (2.11) -
Earnings on disposal of an Investment in equity
shares measured at FVTOCI

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) 60.02 (1.71) 58.31
for the Year

Balance as at 31 March, 2023 1,187.62 5.04 1,192.66

Balance as at 1 April, 2023 1,187.62 5.04 1,192.66

Changes in accounting policy or prior - - -
period errors

Restated balance as at 1 April, 2023 1,187.62 5.04 1,192.66

Profit/(Loss) for the year 100.87 - 100.87

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit plan 0.19 - 0.19
(net of Tax)

Measurement of Investments at FVTOCI - 0.83 0.83
(net of Tax)

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) 101.06 0.83 101.89
for the Year

Balance as at 31 March, 2024 1,288.69 5.86 1,294.55
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :

Corporate Information:

BF Utilities Ltd. ("the Company" or "BFUL") is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated on 15 September,
2000 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 ("the Act"). The Company's shares are listed on National stock
exchange of India and BSE Limited. The Company is engaged in the generation of electricity through wind mills. The
Company's CIN is L40108PN2000PLC015323. The registered office of the Company is located at BF Utilities Limited,
Mundhwa, Pune Cantonment, PUNE 411 036, Maharashtra, India.

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31st, 2024 were authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors on 30 May, 2024.

1 . Material accounting policies  :

a . Basis of preparation

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under historical cost
convention, except Defined Benefit Plan - Plan assets and certain financial Assets & Liabilities which are
measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments). The accounting policies
are consistently applied by the Company during the year and are consistent with those used in previous
year except for the changes in accounting policies required to be made on adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the accompanying disclosures, including the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity and
of items which are likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

c. Critical estimates and judgements

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or a group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions, (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The
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inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. For further details about determination of fair value
refer note 1(h).

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value
of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most
subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation
rates. Further details about defined benefit plans obligations are given in note 31.

Provisions

Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting
date. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. These estimates are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Estimate of current and deferred tax

The Company's tax charge on ordinary activities is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges.
The calculation of the Company's total tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgement
in respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been
reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final
resolution of some of these items may give rise to material profits/losses and/or cash flows.

The complexity of the Company's structure makes the degree of estimation and judgement more
challenging. The resolution of issues is not always within the control of the Company and it is often
dependent on the efficiency of the legal processes in the relevant taxing jurisdictions in which the Company
operates. Issues can, and often do, take many years to resolve. Payments in respect of tax liabilities for an
accounting period result from payments on account and on the final resolution of open items. As a result,
there can be substantial differences between the tax charge in the statement of profit and loss and tax
payments.

d. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

� Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

� Held primarily for the purpose of trading

� Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

� Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

� It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

� It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

� It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

� There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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e . Functional and presentation currency

The Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency'). The standalone
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) rounded off to nearest million (unless otherwise
stated), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

f . Foreign currencies

Transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to
the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange difference that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet
date of the Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as income or expenses in the
period in which they arise.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss are also recognised
in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

g. Investment in subsidiaries

The Company has accounted for its investment in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

h. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value on initial recognition.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

� In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

� In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

� Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

� Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

� Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The management decides, after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes. Please refer to Note No 30

� Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions

� Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

� Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

i . Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss (if any). Internally manufactured property, plant and equipment are
capitalised at cost, including non-cenvatable excise duty (blocked ITC credit under GST), wherever applicable.
All significant costs relating to the acquisition and installation of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based
on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised.

Depreciation

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives, the remaining asset is depreciated over
the life of the principal asset.

Depreciation for identified components is computed on Straight Line Method ('SLM') except in respect of
Furniture & Fixtures and Vehicles is computed on Written Down Value ('WDV') method based on useful
lives estimated by the management.

The management estimates the useful lives for the assets as follows:

Assets Useful lives

Building 60 Years

Plant & Machinery (Windmills) * 25 Years

Electrical Installation 10 Years

Testing Meters 5 Years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years

Tools and equipments 10 Years

Computers and mobile phones 3 Years

Office Equipments 5 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

Useful lives of the above assets are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

*The Company, based on technical assessments made by technical experts and management estimates

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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depreciates certain items of plant and machinery over estimated useful lives which are different from the
useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
likely to be used.

De-recognition / Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

j . Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset, as provided by another Ind-AS.

De-recognition / Disposal

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company
can demonstrate:

� The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale

� Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

� How the asset will generate future economic benefits

� The availability of resources to complete the asset

� The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Such capitalized expenditure is reflected as intangible under development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins
when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

k . Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the amount of transaction price excluding payment of taxes and duties collected on behalf of

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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the government. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration
on account of various discount and schemes offered by the Company

Any amount of income accrued but not billed to customers in respect of any contracts is recorded as a
contract asset. Such contract assets are transferred to trade receivables on actual billing to customers.

Company has received consideration or an amount of consideration is due from the customer. Such contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Revenue from sales of electricity is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been passed to the buyer, usually on the basis of electricity wheeled into MSEB grid and jointly
certified. In case of sale of electricity, revenue is recognised based on the transaction price.

Income from Certified Emission Reduction (CERs) units and Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) is recognised
in the period of its actual sales and is measured at its transaction price.

Claims / Insurance Claim etc. are accounted for when no significant uncertainties are attached to their
eventual receipt

Interest income

Interest on fixed deposits with banks, bonds, etc., is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. In case of significant uncertainty of receiving interest,
the same is not recognised though accrued and is recognised only when received. Interest income from
debt instruments is recognised using Effective Interest Rate method (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instruments
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Profit / Loss of the sale / redemption of investments is dealt with at the time of actual sale / redemption.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. Dividend income is included in other income in
the statement of profit and loss.

l . Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary
to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to
an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and is allocated to statement of profit and loss over the
periods and in the proportions in which depreciation on those assets is charged.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant
is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received.
The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

m . Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be   recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

� When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

� In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

� When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

� In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT)

MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. MAT credit available is
recognized as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.
In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset for Credit Available in respect of
Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement." The Company reviews the "MAT
credit entitlement" asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company
does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year
they occur.

o. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalized in accordance with the Company's general policy on the borrowing costs.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless the same is in line with inflation.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the same is in line with inflation. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

p. Inventories

Cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other cost
incurred in bringing the inventories of their present location and condition.

Stores and spares and loose tools are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, materials
and other items held for operation and maintenance of fixed assets are not written down below cost.

Costs are determined on unsold Certified Emission Reduction (CER) and Renewable Energy Certificate
(REC) are considered as Inventory and valued on the basis of costs which are directly allocated to it. The
cost is assigned to inventories on First in First Out (FIFO) basis. These CERs and RECs are valued at lower of
cost or net realisable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

q. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates
cashflow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the
market in which the asset is used.
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Intangible assets under development are tested for impairment annually. Impairment losses including
impairment on inventories are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For the assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

r . Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not
discounted to its present value (unless the effect of time value of money is material) and are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets, if any, are disclosed in the notes to accounts.

s . Post-employment and other employee benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits and short-term
employee benefits) that are payable after the completion of employment.

Provident fund

Provident fund is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The Company and the eligible
employees make a monthly contribution to the provident fund maintained by the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the eligible employees as per the
scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the
year when the contributions are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable
to the provident fund.

Gratuity

Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity fund,
which fully cover the same under cash accumulation policy of the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The
employee's gratuity is a defined benefit funded plan.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on the actuarial
valuation using the Projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet as asset/liability with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

� The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

� The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

� Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense
in the statement of profit and loss:

� Service costs comprising of current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

� Net interest expense or income

Superannuation

Superannuation is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The contribution to the
superannuation fund managed by the insurer is equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the
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eligible employees as per the scheme. The contribution to this scheme is charged to the statement of
profit and loss on an accrual basis. There are no other contributions payable other than contribution
payable to the respective fund.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date.

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The
Company presents the entire leave encashment liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the
extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting
date. Where the Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a
period beyond twelve months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

t . Financial instruments

The Company has elected to apply following exceptions/exemptions prospectively at the time of transition.

� Classification and measurement of financial assets have been done based on facts and circumstances
existed on transition date.

� Elected to continue carrying value of equity instruments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities as deemed cost on transition date.

� De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities have been applied prospectively.

� Applied the requirements of relating to accounting for difference between fair value of financial
asset or financial liability from its transaction price of Ind-AS 109 prospectively.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

� Debt instruments at amortized cost

� Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

� Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

� Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of profit and
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However,
the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss
in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch').

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. For all equity instruments not
held for trading, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

� The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

� The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
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b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS11 and Ind-AS 18

d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at
the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

� All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

� Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the
statement of profit and loss.

� The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:Financial assets
measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables:

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

� Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI:

Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced
from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed
to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 12.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

u. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts and cash credit facilities as they are
considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

v . Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferral or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from regular operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

w. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
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within the control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

x . Dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As
per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

y .  Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments' requires Management to determine the reportable segments for the
purpose of disclosure in financial statements based on the internal reporting reviewed by the Managing
Director, being Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to assess performance and allocate resource. The
standard also required Management to make judgments with respect to recognition of segments.

z . Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard 33 "Earnings per Share". Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss
for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the
extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation
of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :

3 Investments

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non Current Investments

Equity instruments (unquoted)

Investment in Subsidiaries

At cost

Investment in wholly owned subsidiary

10,200 (31 March 2023 : 10,200) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 65.17 65.17
up in BFUL Resources Pvt. Ltd.

Total 65.17 65.17

Investment in other subsidiaries

77,569,111 (31 March, 2023 : 77,569,111) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 775.69 775.69
fully paid up in Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Ltd. (Extent of
holding 74.52% (31 March, 2023 - 74.52%))

26,071,902 (31 March, 2023 : 26,071,902) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 260.72 260.72
fully paid up in Nandi Highway Developers Ltd. * (Extent of holding
69.53% (31 March, 2023 - 69.53%))

Total 1 ,036.41 1,036.41

Total Investment in Subsidiaries 1 ,101.58 1,101.58

Investment in other companies

Investments designated at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income

25,000(31 March, 2023 : 25,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully 6.31 5.55
paid up in SKH Metals Ltd.

Total   Investment in other companies 6 .31 5.55

Total Non Current Investments 1,107.89 1,107.13

Current Investments

Investments designated at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments (Quoted)

300 (31 March, 2023: 300) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up in - -
Metalyst Forging Ltd.# @

800 (31 March, 2023 : 800) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up 0.70 0.67
in MM Forging Ltd.

100 (31 March, 2023 : 100) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up in -                    -
EL Forge Ltd.

420 (31 March, 2023 : 420) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each fully paid up in 0.10 0.07
Finolex Industries Ltd.

140 (31 March, 2023 : 140) equity shares of Rs. 1/-each fully paid up in 0.08 0.06
Hindalco Industries Ltd.

112 (31 March, 2023 : 112) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid up in 0.62 0.43
Coforge Ltd. (Previously known as NIIT Technologies Ltd.)

Total current investments 1 .50 1.23

Total investments 1,109.39 1,108.36

* - (Previous Year 26,071,902 - shares were pledged with Banks for loans availed by NHDL, the said loan was
repaid by NHDL, during the year 2022-23)

# Investments are in the process of being transferred in the name of the Company.

@ Amount less than Rs. 5,000/-
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Details of quoted/ unquoted instruments :

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

(a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value
thereof;

Carrying value 1.50 1.23

Market value 1.50 1.23

(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Carrying value 1,107.89 1,107.13

(c) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

4 Other financial assets

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non-current
(at amortised costs)

Security Deposits 1.12 1.12

Total non current financial assets 1 .12 1.12

Current
(at amortised costs)

Energy credit receivable 9.70 8.33

Interest receivable 12.61 8.98

Total current financial assets 22.31 17.31

Total 23.43 18.43

5 Deferred tax assets / liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

I Deferred tax assets :

On account of timing difference

a) Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961 22.76 24.04

b) Provision for employee benefits (Compensated absences) 0.18 0.20

22.94 24.24
I I Deferred tax liabilities :

On account of timing difference

a) Depreciation 3.34 5.52

b) Financial instruments 0.99 0.61

c) Provision for employee benefits (Gratuity) 0.17 0.11

4.50 6.24

Deferred tax asset (Net)  (I - II) 18 .44 18.00

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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6 Other assets

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non-current

(Unsecured, considered good)

Loans and advances to related parties (Refer note no. 29)

Advances for purchase of land to Nandi Economic Corridor 370.00              370.00
Enterprises Ltd. (NECE) *

Total other non current assets 370.00 370.00

Current

Balances with statutory / government authorities 0.05 0.21

Gratuity plan asset 0.43 0.40

Prepaid expenses 2.69 2.76

Other advances 1.35 1.32

Total other current assets 4 .52 4.69

Total 374.52 374.69

* NECE has acquired land parcels with clear title to be allotted to BFUL as per mutual arrangements, as confirmed
by NECE.

7 Inventories

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Stock of renewable energy certificates (RECs) (Refer note below) 0.37                 0.16

Stock of consumables, stores and spares 0.14 0.28

Total 0 .51 0.44

Note: Quantitative details of Stock

Sr. no. Description Units Units

1 No. of RECs held as inventory 21,624 10,676

2 No. of consumables, stores and spares 1 8 106

8 Trade receivables

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Unsecured, considered good - -

Total - -

There are no debts due by the Director or other officer of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly
with any other person or debts due by firm including limited liability partnerships (LLP), Private company
respectively in which any director or other officer is a partner or a director or a member.

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :

For trade receivables outstanding, following is the ageing schedule:

As at 31 March 2024 Million Rs.

Part iculars Outstanding for following periods from Tota l
due date of payment

Less Than 6 Months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
6 Months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed trade Receivable - - - - - -
- Considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
- credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
-Considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
- credit impaired

For trade receivables outstanding, following is the ageing schedule:

As at 31 March 2023 Million Rs.

Part iculars Outstanding for following periods from Tota l
due date of payment

Less Than 6 Months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
6 Months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed trade Receivable - - - - - -
- Considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
- credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
-Considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
- credit impaired

9 Cash & bank balances :

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

i ) Cash & cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.01 0.02

Balances with banks - in current accounts 16.91 6.57

Fixed deposits with banks (having original maturity less than - -
three months)

Total cash & cash equivalents 16.92 6.59

i i) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

Balance with banks

Fixed deposits (original maturity more than three months but 377.10 334.44
less than twelve months)

Total other bank balances 377.10 334.44

Total 394.02 341.03
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :

1 0 Equity Share capital :

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Authorised

60,000,000 (31 March, 2023 : 60,000,000) Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each 300.00 300.00

Issued, subscribed & fully paid up

37,667,628 (31 March, 2023 : 37,667,628) Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each 188.34              188.34

Total 188.34             188.34

(a ) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023

No. of shares Million Rs. No. of shares Million Rs.

At the beginning of the year 37,667,628 188.34 37,667,628 188.34

Changes in equity share capital due to - - - -
prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of 37,667,628 188.34 37,667,628 188.34
the year

Issued /(reduction) if any during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 37,667,628 188.34 37,667,628 188.34

(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The
dividend, as and when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.  The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

The Company being ultimate holding company, there are no shares held by any other holding, ultimate holding
company and their subsidiaries/associates.

(d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and
shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

There are no bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back
during the period of five years immediately preceding reporting date.

(e ) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters :

( i ) Details of share holding of Promoters as at 31 March, 2024:

Sr . Promoter Name No. of % of total % Change
No. Equity Shares Equity Shares  during the year

1 Babasaheb Neelkanth Kalyani 7,212 0.02 -

2 Gaurishankar Neelkanth Kalyani 63,779 0.17 -

3 Ashok Kumar Kheny 5,472 0.01 -



128 BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

Sr . Promoter Name No. of % of total % Change
No. Equity Shares Equity Shares  during the year

4 Sunita Babasaheb kalyani 4,000 0.01 -

5 Rohini Gaurishankar Kalyani 2,000 0.01 -

6 Dr. Meera Kheny 700 0.00 -

7 Sugandha Jai Hiremath. - 0.00 -

8 Amit Babasaheb Kalyani - 0.00 -

9 Deeksha Amit Kalyani - 0.00 -

10 Ajinkya Investment and Trading Company 6,648,886 17.65 -

11 Kalyani Investment Company Limited 6,195,046 16.45 -

12 KSL Holding Pvt. Limited 4,353,472 11.56 -

13 PIH Finvest Company Limited 1,424,885 3.78 -

14 BF Investment Limited 1,187,903 3.15 -

15 Jannhavi Investment Private Limited 458,514 1.22 -

16 Sundaram Trading and Investment Pvt. Ltd. 239,373 0.64 -

17 Rajgad Trading Company Pvt. Ltd. 151,674 0.40 -

18 Kalyani Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 149,500 0.40 -

19 Dandakaranya Investment And Trading Pvt. Ltd. 93,700 0.25 -

20 Campanula Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 56,189 0.15 -

21 Cornflower Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 39,600 0.11 -

22 Hastinapur Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd. 4,567 0.01 -

23 Dronacharya Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd. 3,143 0.01 -

24 Kalyani Exports & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 145,250 0.39 -

25 Aboli Investment Pvt. Ltd. 136,900 0.36 -

26 Babasaheb Kalyani Family Trust - 0.00 -

21,371,765 56.74 -

(ii) Details of share holding of Promoters as at 31 March, 2023:

Sr . Promoter Name No. of % of total % Change
No. Equity Shares Equity Shares  during the year

1 Babasaheb Neelkanth Kalyani 7,212 0.02 -

2 Gaurishankar Neelkanth Kalyani 63,779 0.17 -

3 Ashok Kumar Kheny 5,472 0.01 -

4 Sunita Babasaheb kalyani 4,000 0.01 -

5 Rohini Gaurishankar Kalyani 2,000 0.01 -

6 Dr. Meera Kheny 700 0.00 -

7 Sugandha Jai Hiremath. - 0.00 -

8 Amit Babasaheb Kalyani - 0.00 -

9 Deeksha Amit kalyani - 0.00 -

10 Ajinkya Investment and Trading Company 6,648,886 17.65 -

11 Kalyani Investment Company Limited 6,195,046 16.45 -

12 KSL Holding Pvt. Limited 4,353,472 11.56 -

13 PIH Finvest Company Limited 1,424,885 3.78 -

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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Sr . Promoter Name No. of % of total % Change
No. Equity Shares Equity Shares  during the year

14 BF Investment Limited 1,187,903 3.15 -

15 Jannhavi Investment Private Limited 458,514 1.22 -

16 Sundaram Trading and Investment Pvt. Ltd. 239,373 0.64 -

17 Rajgad Trading Company Pvt. Ltd. 151,674 0.40 -

18 Kalyani Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 149,500 0.40 -

19 Dandakaranya Investment And Trading Pvt. Ltd. 93,700 0.25 -

20 Campanula Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 56,189 0.15 -

21 Cornflower Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 39,600 0.11 -

22 Hastinapur Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd. 4,567 0.01 -

23 Dronacharya Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd. 3,143 0.01 -

24 Kalyani Exports & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 145,250 0.39 -

25 Aboli Investment Pvt. Ltd. 136,900 0.36 -

26 Babasaheb Kalyani Family Trust - 0.00 -

21,371,765 56.74 -

Mrs. Sulochana Neelkanth Kalyani expried on 25/02/2023

( f ) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder* Equity shares

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023

No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
held holding held  holding

Ajinkya Investment & Trading Company 6,648,886 17.65 6,648,886 17.65

Kalyani Investment Company Ltd. 6,195,046 16.45 6,195,046 16.45

KSL Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 4,353,472 11.56 4,353,472 11.56

* The shareholding information is based on legal ownership of shares and has been extracted from the records
of the Company including register of shareholders / members.

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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1 1 Other equity

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5.04 6.75

Measurement of investments at FVTOCI (net of tax) 0.82 0.40

Less : Accumulated gain transferred to Retained Earnings on disposal - 2.11
of an Investment in equity shares measured at FVTOCI

Balance as at the end of the year 5 .86 5.04

Surplus/ (Deficit) in Statement of profit & loss :

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,187.62 1,127.60

Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year 100.87 57.72

Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax) 0.19 0.19

Add : Accumulated gain transferred to Retained Earnings on disposal - 2.11
of an Investment in equity shares measured at FVTOCI

Net Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 1,288.68           1,187.62

1,294.54           1,192.66

Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

This reserve represents cumulative gains / (Loss) arising on fair valuation of equity instruments measured
through Other Comprehensive income.

Surplus/ (Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss :

This reserves comprises of undistributed profit after taxes.

1 2 Borrowings

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Current borrowings

Loan from others * 130.00 186.30

130.00              186.30

* Represent interest free unsecured loans repayable on demand.
(includes loan from related parties, Refer Note No. 29)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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1 3 Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Other Non current financial liabilities

Security deposit * 200.00              200.00

Creditors for capital purchases 10.10               10.10

210.10              210.10

Other Current financial liabilities

Expenses and other payables 1.74                 1.67

1.74                 1.67

211.84              211.77

* Interest free security deposit received from related party (Refer note no. 29)

1 4 Other liabilities

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable 1.70                 0.93

1.70                 0.93

1 5 Trade payables

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Dues to micro and small enterprises 0.64 0.61

Dues to other than micro & small enterprises 29.88 27.13

30.52 27.74

For trade payables outstanding, following is the ageing schedule:

As at 31 March 2024 Million Rs.

Particulars Outstanding for following periods Total
from due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 1- 2 years 2 -3 years More than
1 year 3 years

(i) MSME 0.59 0.05 - - - 0.64

(ii) Others 12.50 4.12 0.16 - - 16.78

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Other - - - - 13.10 13.10

30.52

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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For trade payables outstanding, following is the ageing schedule:

As at 31 March 2023 Million Rs.

Particulars Outstanding for following periods Total
from due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 1- 2 years 2 -3 years More than
1 year 3 years

(i) MSME 0.59 0.02 - - - 0.61

(ii) Others 9.48 4.53 0.02 - - 14.03

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Other - - - - 13.10 13.10

27.74

1 6 Provisions

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non-current provisions

Compensated absences 0.24 0.60

0.24 0.60

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits :

Compensated absences 0.49 0.12

Other provisions :

Electricity duty 85.12 85.12

Others 5.00 1.00

90.61 86.24

90.85 86.84

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :

1 7 Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Wind power generated (Refer note no. 26) 187.03              162.17

Sale of Renewable energy certificate units (REC) 6.94                18.12

Total              193.97              180.29

1 8 Other income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Interest on deposits with Bank 22.72 15.30

Dividend received from Subsidiary company 139.05 69.52

Dividend received from others 0.01 0.08

Interest on income tax refund - 0.13

Finance income on sales tax deferral - 0.34

Profit on sale of Investments - 0.24

Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.02 -

Miscellaneous income 0.11 0.17

Total 161.91 85.78

1 9 Changes in inventories

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Opening stock of renewable energy certificates (RECs), 0.43 0.38
stores and spares

Closing stock of renewable energy certificates (RECs), 0.51 0.43
stores and spares

(Increase) / decrease in inventory: Total (0.08) (0.05)

2 0 Employee benefits expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Salaries, allowances etc. 18.88                18.39

Contribution to provident & other funds 0.70                 0.68

Gratuity 0.23                 0.25

Staff welfare expense 0.29                 0.15

Total 20.10                19.47
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :

2 1 Finance costs

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Finance cost on sales tax deferral -                 0.34

Interest on shortfall of advance tax & GST -                    -

Bank charges 0.02                 0.01

Total 0 .02                 0.35

2 2 Other expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Operating expenses

Operations, maintenance & CDM expenses- 30.41                27.61
wind mills

Open Access - Transmission charges 24.32                17.84

Open Access - Wheeling charges 14.75                13.26

Cross subsidy 40.94                36.28

Open Access - Other charges 36.78                32.15

Electricity duty 19.69                17.65

Other operating expenses 5.10                 4.27

Rent expense 0.73                 0.73

Insurance charges 1.36                 1.77

  (A) 174.08              151.56

Administrative expenses

Insurance charges - others 0.20                 0.19

Rates & taxes 1.45                 2.08

Repairs & maintenance (Machinery) -                 0.30

Repairs & maintenance (others) 0.03                 0.01

Director's sitting fees, etc. 0.17                 0.10

Professional & consultancy expenses 5.15                 9.64

Payment to auditors :

Audit fees 1.06                 1.06

Tax audit fees 0.12                 0.12

1.18                 1.18

Listing and custodial charges 1.42                 1.32

Fine and Penalties 0.26                 0.35

Miscellaneous expenses 7.94                 4.79

(B) 17.80                19.96

Total (A)+ (B) 191.88              171.52
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2 3 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the Net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by adjusting the Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding,
for effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The following reflects income and share data used in the basic and dilutive EPS calculations:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

(A ) Net profit / (Loss) attributable to equity 100.87                57.72
shareholders

(B) Total number of equity shares 37,667,628        37,667,628

(C) Weighted average number of equity shares 37,667,628        37,667,628

Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 5/- each 2.68                 1.53
(A)/(B) (in Rs.)

Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 5/- each 2.68                 1.53
(A)/(B) (in Rs.)
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24 . Contingent Liability and Commitments

Particulars of Contingent liabilities As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

I Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as 184.65 184.65
debt

b) Guarantee given by the Company on behalf of - -
other company

c) Others 0.00 0.00

Commitments

Particulars of Commitments As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be - -
executed on capital account and not provided for

(b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments - -
partly paid

25 . Amounts due to suppliers under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act):

The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:

(In Rs. Million)

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Total outstanding to MSME suppliers 0.64 0.61

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond - -
the appointed day, during the year

Interest due & payable to suppliers under MSMED act - -
for the payments already made

Interest due on principle amount remaining unpaid as - -
on year end date

Interest accrued & remaining unpaid at the end of - -
the year to suppliers under MSMED Act

26 . Revenue from contracts with customers

a. Revenue Streams

The Company generates revenue primarily from Sale of wind power.

(in Rs. Million)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers:

- Revenue from sale of wind power 187.03 162.17

Total 187.03 162.17

b. Disaggregation of Revenue

The entire revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at point in time and pertains to one
line of business i.e. wind power generation.



137BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :

c. The movement in contract assets during the year is as follows :

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31/03/2024 31/03/2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 8.33 5.54

Add : Energy credit receivable (Ref. Note 4) 9.70 8.33

Less : Invoiced during the period 8.33 5.54

Balance at the end of the year 9.70 8.33

27 . Provisions

The disclosure required by Ind AS 37- "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets"
prescribed by Rules, as amended are as follows.

(In Rs. Million)

Class of provision: Carrying Charge Amount Carrying
Electricity Duty amount during paid amount

as at the year during as at
beginning the year the end

of the year of the year

As at March 31, 2024 85.12 - - 85.12

As at March 31, 2023 85.12 - - 85.12

Nature of provision

In terms of various notifications/ circulars issued by Government of Maharashtra, electricity duty is payable in
respect of wind power sold to third parties.

28 . Un hedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Trade Receivables - -

Trade Payables - -

29 . Related party disclosures

Related parties, as defined under Clause 9 of Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures", have been identified on
the basis of representation made by the Key Management Persons and taken on record by the Board of
Directors. Disclosures of transactions with Related Parties are as under:

Name of the related parties and related party relationship

Subsidiaries Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Ltd. (NICE)
Nandi Highway Developers Ltd. (NHDL)
BFUL Resources Pvt. Ltd. (BFRPL)

Companies under same management control Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd. (NECE)
(Subsidiary of NICE)
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Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Enterprises under common control Bharat Forge Ltd.
BF Investment Limited

Directors Mr. B N Kalyani
Mr. A B Kalyani
Mr. B B Hattarki (up to 31st March, 2024)
Mr S K Adivarekar
Ms. A A Sathe
Mr. J K Hemade (w.e.f. 29th November, 2023)

Key management personnel Mr. B S Mitkari (CEO, CFO & CS)

Related party transactions

Sr Nature of transaction Name of Year ended Year ended
No the Related Party March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

I Income

A Sales Bharat Forge Ltd. 185.66 159.38

B Employee deputation cost BF Investment Ltd. 5.00 4.78
(including taxes)

C Dividend Received NHDL 139.05 69.53

I I Expenditure

A Reimbursement of expenses Bharat Forge Ltd. 135.76 117.16

B Rent BFUL Resources Pvt. Ltd. 0.73 0.73

C Remuneration paid to 14.31 13.83
Key Managerial Personnel

D Directors' sitting fees, etc. Mr. B.N Kalyani 0.03 0.02
Mr. A.B. Kalyani 0.03 0.02
Mr. B.B. Hattarki 0.05 0.03
Ms. A.A. Sathe 0.05 0.03
Mr.S.K.Adivarekar 0.04 0.03
Mr. J K Hemade 0.01 -

III Others

A Loan / ICD Taken / (Repaid) BF Investment Ltd. (44 .00) (10.00)

Balance outstanding as at the year ended

Sr Nature of transaction Name of March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No the Related Party Receivable / Receivable /

(Payable) (Payable)

Million Rs. Million Rs

1 Trade payable BFUL Resources Pvt. Ltd.  (0.81)  (0.68)

2 Loan / Inter Corporate Deposits BF Investment Ltd.
- Balance outstanding (130.00) (174.00)
- Maximum amount (174.00) (174.00)
  outstanding during the year

3 Security deposit Bharat Forge Ltd. (200.00) (200.00)

4 Advances for purchase of land NECE 370.00 370.00

5 Investments NICE 775.69 775.69
NHDL 260.72 260.72
BFUL Resources Pvt. Ltd. 65.17 65.17

6 Remuneration Payable to (0.15) (0.33)
Key Managerial Personnel
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30 . Financial Instruments

Capital management:

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern,
so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The capital structure of the Company consists of
debt and total equity of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term
product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and short-
term borrowings. The Company's policy is aimed at combination of short-term and long-term borrowings. The
Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the
overall debt portfolio of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Refer note 34 for information on ratios.

Fair Value Measurement

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and the fair value of the
Company's financial instruments as at 31 March 2024

Million Rs.

Particulars At Cost  Amortised Financial Total Total
cost  assets/ carrying fa i r

liabilities value value
at fair value
through OCI

Financial Assets

Investments 1,101.58 - 7.81 1,109.39 1,109.39

Trade receivables - - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 16.92 - 16.92 16.92
- Bank balance

Bank Balance other than above - 377.10 - 377.10 377.10

Other financial assets - 23.43 - 23.43 23.43

Total 1 ,101.58 417.45 7.81 1,526.84 1,526.84

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - 130.00 - 130.00 130.00

Trade Payables - 30.52 - 30.52 30.52

Other financial liabilities - 211.84 - 211.84 211.84

Total - 372.36 - 372.36 372.36

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and the fair value of the
Company's financial instruments as on 31 March 2023

Million Rs.

Particulars At Cost  Amortised Financial Total Total
cost  assets/ carrying fa i r

liabilities value value
at fair value
through OCI

Financial Assets

Investments 1,101.58 - 6.78 1,108.36 1,108.36

Trade receivables - - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents - 6.59 - 6.59 6.59
- Bank balance

Bank Balance other than above - 334.44 - 334.44 334.44

Other financial assets - 18.43 - 18.43 18.43

Total 1 ,101.58 359.46 6.78 1,467.82 1,467.82

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - 186.30 - 186.30 186.30

Trade Payables - 27.74 - 27.74 27.74

Other financial liabilities - 211.77 - 211.77 211.77

Total - 425.81 - 425.81 425.81
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The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables
and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. The fair values of quoted instruments are based on price quotations at the reporting date.

2. The Company has performed fair valuation of material investment in unquoted equity shares, other than
in subsidiary company, which has been classified as Investment carried at Fair Value through Other
comprehensive Income.

Financial risk management framework:

The Company is exposed primarily to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk which may adversely impact the
fair value of its financial instruments. The Company assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment
and seeks to mitigate potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the
interest rates and other market changes.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the
contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analyzing credit
limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after
obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The
Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks having good reputation and high-
quality credit ratings.

The Company has only one customer i.e. Bharat Forge Ltd. To mitigate the credit risk, the Company has taken
security deposit of Rs. 200 Million (Rs 200 Million as on March 31, 2023) which covers the sales made by the
Company to it over next year(s).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity
risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, liquid cash and bank balance by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial
liabilities:

(Million Rs.)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Less than More than Less than More than
1 Year 1 Year 1 Year 1 Year

Borrowings 130.00 - 186.30 -

Trade payables 17.26 13.26 14.62 13.12

Other financial liabilities 1.74 210.10 1.67 210.10

Fair Value Measurement

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the Ind AS 113 - Fair Value Measurement.

An explanation of each level is as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities

(Million Rs.)

Quantitative disclosure fair value Fair value measurement using
measurement hierarchy for assets

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable un-observable
market s Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Equity Instruments (Quoted)

March 31, 2024 1.50 - -

March 31, 2023 1.23 - -

Equity Instruments (Un-Quoted)

March 31, 2024 - 6.31 -

March 31, 2023 - - 5.55

31 . Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Gratuity plan

Funded scheme

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the Scheme framed by the Company. Under the Act, every employee who
has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the
employee's length of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five years but
not more than fifteen years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each
completed year of service as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has
completed fifteen years of service gets a gratuity on departure at one month's salary (last drawn) for each
completed year of service, subject to maximum for 20 months' salary as per the Scheme of the Company. The
scheme is funded with insurance companies in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

Risk exposure and asset-liability matching

Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed hereunder, as companies
take on uncertain long-term obligations to make future benefit payments.

1 ) Liability risks

a ) Asset-liability mismatch risk

Risk arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching
duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the Company is successfully able to neutralize valuation
swings caused by interest rate movements.

b) Discount rate risk

Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small,
but in practice can have a significant impact on the defined benefit liabilities.

c ) Future salary escalation and inflation risk

Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure
purposes. Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a
higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's
discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this increasing risk.

2 ) Asset risks

All plan assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by a public sector insurer viz. LIC of India and other
insurance companies. LIC has a sovereign guarantee and has been providing consistent and competitive
returns over the years. The Company has opted for a traditional fund wherein all assets are invested
primarily in risk averse markets. The Company has no control over the management of funds but this

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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option provides a high level of safety for the total corpus. A single account is maintained for both the
investment and claim settlement and hence 100% liquidity is ensured. Also, interest rate and inflation risk
are taken care of.

In respect of the above plans, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the
defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March 2024 by a member firm of the Institute of Actuaries
of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method

The following table summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit
and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plan is shown below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Mortality table IALM(2012-14) ult IALM(2012-14) ult

Discount rate 7.20% 7.30%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 7.50% 7.50%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.30% 6.30%

Expected average remaining working lives (in years) 3.22 3.89

Withdrawal rate (based on grade and age of employees)

Age upto 30 years 1 0 % 10%

Age 31 - 40 years 1 0 % 10%

Age 41 - 50 years 1 0 % 10%

Age above 50 years 1 0 % 10%

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation recognised in balance sheet are
as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of 4.32 4.54
the period

Interest expense 0.32 0.27

Current service cost 0.26 0.27

Benefits (paid) - (0.57)

Remeasurements on obligation [Actuarial (Gain) / Loss] (0.27) (0.19)

Closing defined benefit obligation 4.63 4.32

Changes in the fair value of plan assets recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Opening fair value of plan assets 4.72 4.90

Interest Income 0.35 0.30

Contributions 0.01 0.03

Benefits paid - (0.57)

Remeasurements - -

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in (0.01) 0.06
Interest Income - Gain / (Loss)

Closing fair value of plan assets 5.06 4.72

Actual return on plan assets 0.33 0.36
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Net Interest (Income/Expense)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Interest (Income) / Expense - Obligation 0.32 0.27

Interest (Income) / Expense - Plan assets (0.35) (0.30)

Net Interest (Income) / Expense for the period (0.03) (0.03)

Remeasurement for the year [Actuarial (Gain)/loss]

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Experience (Gain) / Loss on plan liabilities (0.28) (0.07)

Demographic (Gain) / Loss on plan liabilities - -

Financial (Gain) / Loss on plan liabilities 0.01 (0.12)

Experience (Gain) / Loss on plan assets 0.06 (0.04)

Financial (Gain) / Loss on plan assets (0.05) (0.02)

Amount recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Opening amount recognised in OCI outside (1.26) (1.00)
profit and loss account

Remeasurement for the year-Obligation (Gain)/Loss (0.27) (0.20)

Remeasurement for the year-Plan assets (Gain)/Loss 0.01 (0.06)

Total Remeasurement cost/(credit) for the period (0.25) (0.26)
recognised in OCI

Closing amount recognised in OCI outside (1.51) (1.26)
profit and loss account

The amounts to be recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 4.63 4.32

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period 5.06 4.72

Surplus/ (Deficit) 0.43 0.40

Current liability - -

Non-current liability 4.63 0.40

Net asset / (liability) to be recognised in balance sheet 0.43 0.40

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Current service cost 0.26 0.27

Net Interest (Income) / Expense (0.03) (0.03)

Net periodic benefit cost recognised in the statement of 0.23 0.24
profit and loss

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 :
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Reconciliation of net asset/ (liability) recognised:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Net asset / (liability) recognised at the beginning of 0.40 0.36
the period

Company contributions 0.01 0.03

Amount recognised outside profit & loss for the period 0.25 0.26

Expense recognised at the end of period (0.23) (0.25)

Net asset / (liability) recognised at the end of the period 0.43 0.40

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are
as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Funds managed by insurer 100 % 100 %

Sensitivity analysis

A ) Impact of change in discount rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100
basis points

Discount Rate As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

6.20%  (FY 23-24)/6.30% (FY 22-23) 4.73 4.44

8.20% (FY 23-24) /8.30% (FY 22-23) 4.54 4.21

B) Impact of change in salary increase rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by
100 basis points

Salary Increment Rate As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

6.50% 4.58 4.25

8.50% 4.68 4.40

C) Impact of change in withdrawal rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100
basis points

Withdrawal Rate As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

9.00% 4.64 4.33

11.00% 4.62 4.31

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period.
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The following are the expected benefit payments to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Within one year 3.47 0.47

After one year but not more than five years 0.68 3.67

After five years but not more than ten years 0.90 0.92

Weighted average duration of the plan (based on discounted cash flows using mortality, withdrawal and interest
rate) is 2.91 years.

Provident Fund

In accordance with the law, all employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund. Till the Financial Year 2016-17, the Company operated defined benefit plan. Under the defined benefit
plan, the Company contributes to the " BFUL Employees Provident Fund Trust. ". The Company has an obligation
to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trust and the notified
interest rate.

From the Financial Year 2017-18 onwards the Company operated defined contribution plan. Under the defined
contribution plan, provident fund is contributed to the government administered provident fund. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

32 . Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the Income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate
to the profit before tax is summarised below.

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Current tax

Current year 37.80 9.95

Earlier year (1.81) -

Total Income tax (income)/ expenses 35.99 9.95

(ii) Income Tax in Other Comprehensive income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Deferred tax related to Item recognised in OCI

Re-measurement Gain /(Loss) on defined benefit 0.06 0.07
obligations plan

Net Gain / (Loss) on equity instruments at FVTOCI 0.21 0.09

Total Income Tax charged to Other Comprehensive 0.27 0.16
Income
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(iii) Effective Tax Reconciliation

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax from operations 136.86 67.67

Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 27.82%

Computed tax expense at enacted tax rate 34.44 18.83

Effect of non-deductible expenses 3.35 1.03

Effect of MAT Credit availed - (9.90)

Short / (Excess) provision of earlier years (1.81) -

Tax expense reported in statement of 35.99 9.95
profit and loss

Tax rate applicable for current FY is 25.17% as Company has opted to pay tax under Section 115 BAA of
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(iv) Amount of deferred tax expense (income) relating to changes :

The applicable tax rate for the current FY is 25.17%, following the Company's decision to opt for taxation
under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, this change in tax rate, from 27.82% to 25.17%, has
resulted in a reduction of deferred tax expense by Rs.2.05 million for the current year.

33 . Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has formed Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and has also adopted a CSR Policy in
accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The Company has not met any of the thresholds prescribed under section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2020-21 and 2021-22. As such, provisions of Section 135 shall
not be applicable for immediately subsequent financial years 2022-23 and 2023-24, respectively.

(Million Rs)

Sr . Particulars Year ended Year ended
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company Nil Nil
during the year

2. Amount approved by the board to be spent Nil Nil
during the year

3. Amount spent during the year on:

1) Construction/Acquisition of any asset - -

2) On purchase other than (i) above - -

4. The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out - -
of the amount required to be spent by
the Company during the year

5. The total of previous years' shortfall amounts - -

6. The reason for above shortfalls - -

7. The nature of CSR activities undertaken by Refer annexure of Refer annexure of
the Company. Directors Report Directors Report

8. Where a provision is made with respect to a liability - -
incurred by entering into a contractual obligation,
the movements in the provision during the year
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34 . Ratios (Million Rs)

Particulars Numerator Denominator As at As at Variation
31 March 31 March in %

2 0 2 4 2023

Current Ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.64 1.19 37.41

Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.09 0.13 (32 .56)
(in times)

Debt Service Coverage Earnings available Debt services 1.99 2.81 (29 .24)
Ratio (in times) for debt service

Return on Equity (in %) Net profit after Average Shareholder's 7.04 4.27 64.98
taxes Equity

Trade Receivables Net Credit sales Average Accounts - - -
turnover ratio (in times) Receivables

Net Capital Turnover Net Sales Working Capital 1.75 3.16 (44 .52)
Ratio (in times)

Net Profit Ratio (in %) Net Profit Net Sales 52.00 32.01 62.45

Return on Capital Earnings before Capital Employed 8.59 4.34 97.92
Employed (in %) interest and taxes

Return on Investment Income generated Average funds invested 12.62 6.31 100.04
in equity shares (in %) from Investments

in Subsidiary

Return on Investment Income generated Average funds invested 1.45 8.56 (44 .81)
in equity shares (in %) from Investments

Return on investment Income generated Average funds invested 7.06 5.58 26.56
in Fixed deposits with from Fixed
Banks (in %) deposits

Note on Variation:

1. Current Ratio : Increase in cash and bank balances and reduction in current borrowings

2. Debt-Equity Ratio: Reduction in current borrowings

3. Debt-Service Coverage Ratio: Increase in total revenue and repayment of current borrowings during the
year

4. Return on Equity: Increase in total revenue due to increase in dividend income and improvement of equity
of the Company as compared to last year.

5. Net Capital Turnover Ratio: Increase in working capital

6. Net Profit Ratio: Increase in profit due to increase in dividend income during the year

7. Return on Capital Employed: Increase in profit due to increase in dividend income during the year

8. Return on Investment in equity shares (subsidiary) : Increase in dividend income during the year

9. Return on Investment in equity shares (other than subsidiaries) : Reduction in dividend income during the
year.

10. Return on investment in Fixed deposits with Banks: Increase in interest income during the year due to
increase in fixed deposits.

35 . Relationship with Struck off companies:

The Company did not enter into any transaction with Companies struck off from ROC records for the period
ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

36 . a. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign
entities (intermediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
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manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. No funds have been received by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign
entities (funding parties) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

37 .  a. Management review of certain litigations by and against the Company does not warrant recognition of
any provision in the books of account as at 31 March, 2024. The Company, shall continue the review in
future and if required carry out the necessary accounting adjustments.

b. One of the investors of Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited (NECE), a step-down subsidiary of the
Company, has in terms of Shareholders' Agreement (SHA) dated 24th December 2010, exercised a default
put option of its equity shares held in NECE, on the Company, which the Company has denied as wrongful,
and has rejected and disputed its invocation. As on the date of approval of these financial statements, the
purchase price of such shares of NECE cannot be estimated since invocation of the put option is under
dispute.

38 . The Company has advanced amounts aggregating to Rs. 370 million to Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises
Limited (NECE), subsidiary company, for purchase of developed parcels of land, which remain outstanding at the
balance sheet date. These have been considered as good and recoverable in these financial statements by the
management of the Company based on the balance confirmation received from NECE.

39 . Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Ltd. (NICE) and Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd. (NECE) which
are the subsidiaries of the Company, have not yet submitted the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March, 2024, to the Company.

The Company will prepare consolidated financial statements, once the audited accounts of all the above-
mentioned subsidiaries are made available to the Company.

40 . Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G.D. Apte & Co. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A. B. KALYANI B. S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No.: 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 30 May, 2024 Pune, 30 May, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members of BF Utilities Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of BF Utilities Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
"the Group" ) which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive loss), the consolidated statement of Changes in Equity and the
consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Financial Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
"the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, because of the
significance of matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements do not give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ('the Act') in the
manner so required and do not give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended including the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, its
consolidated profit and consolidated other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

As described in the note 39 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Step-down subsidiary viz.
Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited (NECE), had recorded equity of INR 3,113.00 million in earlier years
which includes securities premium of INR 2,772.54 million against original subscription amount of INR 4,999.85 million
paid by an Investor. NECE has continued to classify all equity shares, including such subscription, as equity instruments
basis re-evaluation performed by the Management of NECE in the current year. However, in our opinion and based
on the adverse opinion on the standalone financial statements of NECE for  financial year 2023-24 expressed by their
statutory auditors, basis the buyback option with minimum IRR of 18% available with the Investor, in accordance with
the terms of the Shareholders Agreement, the buyback obligation should have been classified and measured as
liability in accordance with the principles enunciated under the Ind AS. Had the buy-back obligation been classified as
liability and measured according to applicable accounting standards, there would have been a material and pervasive
impact on total equity and non-current liabilities as at April 1, 2022, March 31, 2023 and March  31, 2024 and profit
for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 along with consequential effects thereof on the Standalone
Financial Statements of NECE and on the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, which we are unable to
quantify due to absence of valuation of aforesaid financial liability as at the respective reporting year ends.

We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
'Responsibilities of Auditor for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
adverse opinion on the consolidated financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matter included in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements:

a. Management review of certain litigations by and against the Holding Company does not warrant recognition of
any provision in the books of account as at March 31, 2024. The Holding company shall continue the review in
future and if required carry out the necessary accounting adjustments.

b. One of the investors of Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited (NECE), a step-down subsidiary of the
Holding Company has in terms of Shareholders' Agreement (SHA) dated 24th December 2010, exercised a
default put option of its equity shares held in NECE, on the Holding Company which the Holding Company has
denied as wrongful, and has rejected and disputed its invocation. As on the date of approval of these financial
statements, the purchase price of such shares of NECE cannot be estimated since invocation of the put option is
under dispute.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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c. The toll operations of one of the Material Subsidiaries viz. Nandi Highway Developers Limited (NHDL) have
successfully concluded w.e.f. September 07, 2024, due to end of term of Concession agreement dated February
05, 1998 and Supplementary agreement dated June 21, 2024 between NHDL, Government of India and
Government of Karnataka. Considering the future business plans by the management of NHDL and positive net
worth of NHDL, the assets in the said subsidiary are considered good.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of the reports
of the other auditors on standalone financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiaries,
which were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We did not audit the
financial statements of the subsidiaries, as at and for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our identification and reporting of the Key Audit Matters, in so
far as it relates to these subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We report that except for the matters described in the Basis of Adverse Opinion section, there are no other Key Audit
Matters in our audit of Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion & Analysis, Report of the Board of Directors and the report
on Corporate Governance but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The other information as stated above is expected to be made available to us after the date of this report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Upon reading of the other information made available to us, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended including the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Responsibilities of Auditor for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
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accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

� Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

� Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial information we have
audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the standalone financial statements of Holding Company included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries and one step down subsidiary whose financial
statements, before consolidation adjustments, reflect Group's share of total assets of Rs. 25,958.42 Million as at
March 31, 2024, Group's share of total revenue of Rs. 9,679.85 Million, Group's share of total net profit after tax of
Rs. 3,014.55 Million and, Group's share of total comprehensive income of Rs. 3,007.92 Million for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and cash outflow of Rs. 47.32 Million for the year ended as on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors, whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the report of the
other auditors.
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Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the report
of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries as noted in the
'other matter' paragraph we report to the extent applicable that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section above and
non- availability of responses on group review questionnaires from the statutory auditors of one of the
subsidiaries viz. NECE.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and report of the other auditors except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis
for Adverse opinion section.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive loss), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis of Adverse opinion section, in our
opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended including the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019.

e. The matters described in Basis for Adverse opinion section, in our opinion may have an adverse effect on
the functioning of the Holding Company and step-down subsidiary viz. NECE.

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, none of the director of the Group companies is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

g. The Adverse remark relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the Basis of Adverse opinion section.

h. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer our separate Report in "Annexure 1" wherein we have expressed an Adverse opinion.

i. As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of books of account
of Holding Company and the reports of Statutory auditors of Subsidiaries, the managerial remuneration
has been paid and provided in accordance with the provisions of section 197 and Schedule V of the Act.

j. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries, as
noted in the 'other matter' paragraph:

i. Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis of Adverse opinion section, the Group has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2024, on its consolidated financial position
in its consolidated financial statements. Refer Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Holding Company and its subsidiaries during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iv. (a) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge or belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including
foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other



153BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (ultimate
beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge or belief, no funds have
been received by the Group from any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities
(funding parties) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Group shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances
carried out by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representation under clause (iv)(a) & (iv)(b) contain any material misstatements.

v. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Subsidiary Company during the year is in accordance
with section 123 of the Act.

vi. According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the audit
reports issued by other auditors, we report that the Holding company and its subsidiaries have used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has the feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same have operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the respective software. Further, no instances of tampering of the audit trail feature
were observed during the course of audit except in respect of a subsidiary viz. BFUL Resources Private
Limited where we are unable to report on the same since no reporting has been made by the
statutory auditors of the said subsidiary in respect of tampering of audit trail (edit log) feature in the
accounting software for the year ended March 31, 2024.

As per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable to the group for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

k. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (the "Order"/ "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the
Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and
based on the CARO reports issued by us for the holding Company and by other auditors of the subsidiaries
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, to which reporting under CARO is applicable,
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports except in case of
Holding Company viz. BF Utilities Limited where we have drawn attention to reported disclosure in clause
number 3(i)(c).

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar
Partner

Place : Pune Membership Number: 121 007
Pune, November 11, 2024 UDIN: 24121007BKCKYY3431
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ANNEXURE "1" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of BF Utilities Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of BF Utilities Limited (hereinafter referred to
as the "Holding Company") as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiaries are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ("Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding company and its subsidiaries based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their report referred to in 'Other Matter' paragraph below, in respect of Holding company and its subsidiaries
respectively, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse audit opinion on the internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
s tatements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) Provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) Provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Adverse Opinion

According to the information and explanations received by us and based on the audit reports issued by the statutory
auditors of subsidiary companies, the following material weakness have been identified as at March 31, 2024:

The step-down subsidiary viz. Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Limited (NECE) did not have appropriate internal
control system over classification and measurement of financial instruments in accordance with Ind AS, which has
resulted in a material and pervasive impact on the standalone financial statements of NECE and on the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements, as stated in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's
annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, because of the effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objective
of the control criteria, Group has not maintained adequate and effective internal financial controls with reference to
its consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by Group, considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing and
extent of audit procedures applied in the audit of consolidated financial statements of the group as at and for the
year ended March 31, 2024, and the material weakness as described above has affected our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements and we have issued an adverse opinion on such consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company.

Other Matter

Our report under Section 143 (3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the subsidiaries, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar
Partner

Place : Pune Membership Number: 121 007
Pune, November 11, 2024 UDIN: 24121007BKCKYY3431
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

As at 31  st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023
Note No. Million Rs. Million Rs.

A S S E T S

I Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 238 .65 182.79

(b) Capital work in progress 2.1 359 .21 359.21

(c) Goodwill 2.3 63.51 63.51

(d) Right of use assets 2.2 8 .06 16.13

(e) Other intangible assets 2.3 13,228.87 10,718.10

(f) Intangible assets - under development 2.4 183 .77 972.50

(g) Financial assets

(i) Investments 3 76.38 5.62

(ii) Loans 4 1 .02 1.01

(iii) Other financial assets 5 20.65 119.92

(h) Income tax assets (net) 142 .09 124.43

(i) Deferred tax asset (net) 6 46.43 50.63

(j) Other non current assets 7 4 ,573 .26 4,726.50

Total non current assets 18 ,941 .90 17,340.35

I I Current assets

(a) Inventories 8 2 ,448 .74 2,241.13

(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 3 543 .24 545.11

(ii) Trade receivables 9 36.63 16.78

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 502 .35 496.03

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10 1 ,443 .27 1,260.94

(v) Loans 4 244 .66 244.46

(vi) Other financial assets 5 30.15 63.43

(c) Other current assets 7 82.57 160.52

Total current assets 5 ,331 .61 5,028.40

Total assets 24 ,273 .51 22,368.75

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equ i ty

(a) Equity share capital 11 188 .34 188.34

(b) Other equity 12 365 .27 (1,105.41)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent 553 .61 (917.07)

(c) Non controlling interest 5 ,715 .48 4,217.64

Total equity 6 ,269 .09 3,300.57

I Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 11,927.18 13,438.76

(ia) Lease liability - 12.11

(ii) other financial liabilities 15 459 .78 459.78

(b) Provisions 18 146 .46 139.05

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 1 ,014 .60 340.98

(d) Other non-current liabilities 16 728 .21 823.55

Total Non-current liabilities 14 ,276 .23 15,214.23

I I Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 1 ,038 .05 1,363.63

(ia) Lease liability 12.11 9.56

(ii) Trade payables 17

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 14.77 10.09

Total outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises and 361 .21 345.83
small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 759 .90 605.94

(b) Income tax liabilities (net) 4 .02 5.35

(c) Other current liabilities 16 1 ,402 .67 1,382.22

(d) Provisions 18 135 .46 131.33

Total current liabilities 3 ,728 .19 3,853.95

Total liabilities 18 ,004 .42 19,068.18

Total equity and liabilities 24 ,273 .51 22,368.75

Summary of material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G D APTE & CO. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A.B. KALYANI B.S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No. 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 11 November, 2024 Pune, 11 November, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Year ended 31 st Year ended 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023
Note No. Million Rs. Million Rs.

Income

I. Revenue from operations 19 9 ,693 .19 7,591.16

II. Other income 20 192 .15 167.76

III. Total revenue (I + II) 9 ,885 .34 7,758.92

IV. Expenses

Changes in inventories 21 a. ( 0 . 08 ) (0.05)

Cost of sale of land and land development 21 b. - 7.35

Employee benefits expense 22 691 .88 589.50

Finance costs 23 1 ,418 .91 1,830.27

Depreciation and amortization expenses 2 - 2.3 660 .24 580.04

Other expenses 24 3 ,195 .03 2,012.82

Total expenses (IV) 5 ,965 .98 5,019.93

V. Profit / (Loss) before tax and exceptional items    (III-IV) 3 ,919 .36 2,738.99

VI. Exceptional items - -

VII. Profit / (Loss) before tax (V + VI) 3 ,919 .36 2,738.99

VIII. Tax expense :

 (a) Current tax

- pertaining to profit for the year 208 .54 155.53

- MAT Credit utilised in relation to earlier years ( 0 . 09 ) (9.98)

Tax for the year 208 .45 145.55

 (b) (Excess) / Short provision of earlier years ( 1 . 81 ) -

 (c) Deferred tax 677 .64 26.92

Total Tax expense 884 .28 172.47

IX. Profit / (Loss) for the year  (VII-VIII) 3 ,035 .08 2,566.52

X Other Comprehensive Income for the year

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss :

Gain / (Loss) on remeasurement of the defined benefit plans ( 6 . 37 ) 1.89

Gain / (Loss) on fair valuation of financial instruments 1 .03 0.49

( 5 . 34 ) 2.38

  - Income Tax on above 0 .27 0.16

( 5 . 61 ) 2.22

(b) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

( 5 . 61 ) 2.22

XI Total Comprehensive income for the year net of tax (IX + X) 3 ,029 .47 2,568.74

XII Of the total comprehensive income above,
Profit for the year attributable to :

Owners of the parent 1 ,473 .62 1,244.12

Non-controlling interests 1 ,561 .46 1,322.40

3 ,035 .08 2,566.52

XIII Of the total comprehensive income above,
Other comprehensive Income attributable to :

Owners of the parent ( 2 . 94 ) 1.84

Non-controlling interests ( 2 . 67 ) 0.38

( 5 . 61 ) 2.22

XIV Total Comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to :

Owners of the parent 1 ,470 .68 1,245.96

Non-controlling interests 1 ,558 .79 1,322.78

3 ,029 .47 2,568.74

XV Earnings per share:

Basic & Diluted    Rs. 25 39.12 33.03

Summary of material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G D APTE & CO. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A.B. KALYANI B.S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No. 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 11 November, 2024 Pune, 11 November, 2024
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

31 st  March, 2024 31th March, 2023
Million Rs. Million Rs.

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before tax 3,919 .36 2,738.99
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 660 .24 580.04
Finance cost 1,415 .07 1,826.75
Finance cost on sales tax deferrals - 0.34
Finance cost on lease liability 3 .84 3.17
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of assets 0 .25 -
Interest income (103 .36 ) (86.40)
Dividend income ( 0 . 0 1 ) (0.08)
Gain on sale of investments ( 5 1 . 9 4 ) (54.06)
Provision no longer required written back ( 0 . 2 6 ) -
Net (Gain) / Loss on fair valuation of investment 12.99 6.52
Interest income on sales tax deferral - (0.34)

Operating profit / (Loss) before working capital changes 5 ,856 .18 5,014.93
Movements in Working Capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (207 .61 ) 7.30
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables ( 1 9 . 8 5 ) (4.55)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets 38.15 16.40
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans - current ( 0 . 2 0 ) 0.07
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non-current assets 156 .35 (445.99)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current assets 71.58 0.46
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 11.80 6.61
Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities ( 7 4 . 8 8 ) 13.76
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 20.07 (73.21)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 207 .41 17.40

Operating Profit / (Loss) after working capital changes 6,059 .00 4,553.18
Direct taxes (Paid) / Refund (227 .51 ) (191.57)

Net Cash generated from / (used in) operating activities ( A ) 5 ,831 .49 4,361.61

Cash Flow from investing activities
Payment towards purchase of property, plant and equipments and (2 ,431 .36) (1,128.19)
intangible assets
(Purchase) / Net proceeds from sale of assets 1 .06 0.77
(Purchase) / Sale of mutual funds & shares (net) ( 3 0 . 2 2 ) 1,103.34
Interest received 139 .43 51.67
Dividend received 0 .01 0.08
(investment in) / Maturity Proceeds of Fixed deposit with banks (125 .73 ) (432.33)
Receipt of Inter-corporate deposits 1 .70 2.07

Net Cash generated from / (used in) investing activities ( B ) (2 ,445 .11) (402.59)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from / (Repayment of ) borrowings (net) (1 ,837 .19) (339.56)
Interest paid (1 ,468 .52) (2,352.00)
Payment of lease liabilities ( 1 3 . 4 0 ) (12.76)
Investment within Group - (810.00)
Dividend paid to shareholders representing non-controlling interest ( 6 0 . 9 5 ) (30.47)

Net Cash generated from / (Used in) financing activities ( C ) (3 ,380 .06) (3,544.79)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A + B + C ) 6 .32 414.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 496 .03 81.80

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 502 .35 496.03

Notes:
1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) -7 , 'Statement of

Cash Flows' as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.
2 Direct Taxes paid are treated as arising from operatinig activities and are not bifurcated between investment and financing activities.
3 All figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G D APTE & CO. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A.B. KALYANI B.S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No. 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 11 November, 2024 Pune, 11 November, 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended 31st March, 2024

A) Equity Share Capital Million Rs. Million Rs.
Par t i cu la r s As at 31 March, As at 31 March,

2024 2023

Balance as at the beginning of the year                188.34             188.34

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors                      -                   -

Restated balance as at the beginning of the year                188.34             188.34

Changes in equity share capital during the year                      -                   -

Balance as at the end of the year                188.34             188.34

B) Other equity

 Particulars Reserves and Surplus

S e c u r i t i e s Reserve Fund M e a s u r e m e n t G e n e r a l Surplus / E q u i t y T o t a l N o n T o t a l
P r e m i u m U/s 45 IC(1) of below R e s e r v e (Deficit) in I n s t r u m e n t s B e f o r e C o n t r o l l i n g O t h e r

of the RBI market rate S t a t e m e n t t h r o u g h N o n I n t e r e s t E q u i t y
Act, 1934 f i n a n c i a l of Profit o t h e r C o n t r o l l i n g ( N C I )

liability at & Loss C o m p r e h e n s i v e I n t e r e s t
fair value i n c o m e ( N C I )

Balance as at 01/04/2022 1 , 8 6 4 . 8 4 4 . 0 6 1 , 5 7 2 . 6 3 0 . 0 7 ( 5 , 3 4 8 . 2 2 ) 6 . 7 5 ( 1 , 8 9 9 . 8 7 ) 2 , 4 3 0 . 6 8 5 3 0 . 8 1

 Changes in Accounting Policy or prior - - - - - - - - -
period errors

 Restated Balance as on 1 , 8 6 4 . 8 4 4 . 0 6 1 , 5 7 2 . 6 3 0 . 0 7 ( 5 , 3 4 8 . 2 2 ) 6 . 7 5 ( 1 , 8 9 9 . 8 7 ) 2 , 4 3 0 . 6 8 5 3 0 . 8 1
0 1 / 0 4 / 2 0 2 2

Investment in NECE by NHDL - - - - (810.00) - (810.00) - (810.00)

Impact due to changes in NCI consequent to - - - - (1.46) 0.28 (1.18) 1.18 -
acquisition of shares in NECE by NHDL

Profit / (Loss) for the year - - - - 1,244.12 - 1,244.12 1,322.40 2,566.52

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan - - - - 1.50 - 1.50 0.38 1.88
(net of tax)

Remeasurement of financial liability - 359.69 - - - 359.69 493.46 853.15

Measurement of investment at FVTOCI - - - - - 0.33 0.33 - 0.33
(net of tax)

Accumulated gain transferred to Retained - - - - 2.11 (2.11) - - -
Earnings on disposal of an Investment in
equity shares measured at FVTOCI

Dividend paid - - - - - - - (30.46) (30.46)

Total Comprehensive Income / - - 3 5 9 . 6 9 - 1 , 2 4 7 . 7 3 ( 1 . 7 8 ) 1 , 6 0 5 . 6 4 1 , 7 8 5 . 7 8 3 , 3 9 1 . 4 2
(Loss) for the year

 Balance as at 31/03/2023 1 , 8 6 4 . 8 4 4 . 0 6 1 , 9 3 2 . 3 2 0 . 0 7 ( 4 , 9 1 1 . 9 5 ) 5 . 2 5 ( 1 , 1 0 5 . 4 1 ) 4 , 2 1 7 . 6 4 3 , 1 1 2 . 2 3

changes in Accounting Policy or prior - - - - - - - - -
period errors

 Restated Balance as on 1 , 8 6 4 . 8 4 4 . 0 6 1 , 9 3 2 . 3 2 0 . 0 7 ( 4 , 9 1 1 . 9 5 ) 5 . 2 5 ( 1 , 1 0 5 . 4 1 ) 4 , 2 1 7 . 6 4 3 , 1 1 2 . 2 3
0 1 / 0 4 / 2 0 2 3

 Profit / (Loss) for the year - - - - 1,473.62 - 1,473.62 1,561.46 3,035.08

 Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan - - - - (3.77) - (3.77) (2.67) (6.44)
(net of tax)

 Measurement of investment at FVTOCI - - - - - 0.83 0.83 - 0.83
(net of tax)

Dividend paid - - - - - - - (60.95) (60.95)

Total Comprehensive Income / - - - - 1 , 4 6 9 . 8 5 0 . 8 3 1 , 4 7 0 . 6 8 1 , 4 9 7 . 8 4 2 , 9 6 8 . 5 2
(Loss) for the year

 Balance as at 31/03/2024 1 , 8 6 4 . 8 4 4 . 0 6 1 , 9 3 2 . 3 2 0 . 0 7 ( 3 , 4 4 2 . 1 0 ) 6 . 0 8 3 6 5 . 2 7 5 , 7 1 5 . 4 8 6 , 0 8 0 . 7 5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G D APTE & CO. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A.B. KALYANI B.S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No. 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 11 November, 2024 Pune, 11 November, 2024
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

Corporate Information:

The Consolidated financial statements comprise of BF Utilities Ltd. ("the Parent Company") and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the Group). The Parent Company is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated on 15 September,
2000 under the provisions of the Companies Act,1956 ("the Act"). The registered office of the Parent Company is
located at Mundhwa, Pune Cantonment, Pune - 411036, Maharashtra.

The equity shares of the parent Company are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India i.e. Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Group is engaged in the business of generation
of electricity through wind mills and Infrastructure activities. The Company's CIN is L40108PN2000PLC015323.

The Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on 11 November 2024.

1 . Material accounting policies:

a . Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b. Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements ('CFS') of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the CFS.

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under historical cost
convention, except Defined benefit Plan - Plan assets and certain financial Assets & Liabilities which are
measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments). The accounting policies
are consistently applied by the group during the year and are consistent with those used in previous year
except for the changes in accounting policies required to be made on adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013.

c. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting standards ('Ind AS') to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the 2013 Act') and the relevant provisions of the 1956 Act / 2013 Act, including
rules thereunder as applicable and guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'). The
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent. All
assets and liabilities have been classified as Current or Non-current as per the respective Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the 2013 Act.

The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

� Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

� Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

� The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

� The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

� Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

� The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

� The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of
the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included
in the Consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than
those adopted in the Consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's financial statements in preparing
the Consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of subsidiaries have been drawn for the year ended 31 March, 2024.

Consolidation procedure:

The Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ("the Group") for the year
ended 31 March, 2024 are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable
in India, and the Indian Accounting Standard 110 (Ind AS 110) on 'Consolidated Financial Statements',
notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, ("Indian Accounting Standards") by and to the
extent possible in the same format as that adopted by the Parent Company for its separate financial
statements.

The Parent Company consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the parent company, its subsidiaries as disclosed below.

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined by adding
together the like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with
those of its subsidiaries after eliminating intra group balances and intra group transactions except where
cost cannot be recovered. The unrealized profits or losses resulting from the intra group transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

The excess of the cost to the Company of its investment in a subsidiary and the Company's portion of
equity of subsidiary on the date at which investment in the subsidiary is made, is described as goodwill and
recognized separately as an asset in the Consolidated financial statements.

The excess of the Company's portion of equity of the subsidiary over the cost of investment in the subsidiary
is treated as capital reserve in the Consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortized. It is tested for impairment on a periodic basis and
written off if found impaired.

The Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances and necessary adjustments required for deviations, if any, are
made in the Consolidated financial statements.

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in the same manner as the Company's separate
financial statements.

The subsidiary companies considered in consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Name of the subsidiary and Country of Ownership Percentage as at
Incorporation

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Ltd. (NICE) 74.52 % 74.52 %
- India

Nandi Highway Developers Ltd.(NHDL) - India 69.53 % 69.53 %

Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd. *(NECE) 42.16 % 42.16 %
- India

BFUL Resources Pvt. Ltd. - India 100.00 % 100.00 %

* Step-down subsidiary

Statutory group information is provided in Annexure A
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

d. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosures, including the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity and
of items which are likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

e . Critical Estimates and Judgements

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and
economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and other assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, the group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or a group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate evaluation
model is used.

Recoverability of advances/receivables - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates
observed over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables
and advances.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration
of recoverable amount of the assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
cash loss rates. The group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Service concession arrangements (SCA)

The evaluation of applicability of SCA requires the Management to assess whether the group has right to
operate the asset/infrastructure or has ownership of the asset. The Management among other factors
considers who regulates the prices and controls residual interest in the asset for determining application
of guidance relating to SCA.

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as
standard rates of inflation, medical cost trends, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management uses the
best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

Provisions

Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting
date. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. These estimates are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Estimate of current and deferred tax

The group's tax charge on ordinary activities is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The
calculation of the group's total tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgement in
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been
reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final
resolution of some of these items may give rise to material profits/losses and/or cash flows.

The complexity of the group's structure makes the degree of estimation and judgement more challenging.
The resolution of issues is not always within the control of the group and it is often dependent on the
efficiency of the legal processes in the relevant taxing jurisdictions in which the group operates. Issues can,
and often do, take many years to resolve. Payments in respect of tax liabilities for an accounting period
result from payments on account and on the final resolution of open items. As a result, there can be
substantial differences between the tax charge in the statement of profit and loss and tax payments.

f . Functional and presentation currency:

The items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the
currency of primary economic environment in which the Group operates ("the functional currency").

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (Rs.) rounded off to nearest million
(unless otherwise stated), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

g. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss (if any). Internally manufactured property, plant and equipment are
capitalised at cost, including non-cenvatable excise duty (blocked ITC credit under GST), wherever applicable.
All significant costs relating to the acquisition and installation of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the group depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Depreciation

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives, the remaining asset is depreciated over
the life of the principal asset.

Depreciation for identified components, other than Furniture & Fixtures and Vehicles is computed on
straight line method (in case for the Company for Furniture & Fixtures and Vehicles on written down value
method) based on useful lives, determined based on internal technical evaluation as follows:

Assets Useful lives

Building 24 to 60 Years

Plant & Machinery * 10 to 25 Years

Electrical Installation 10 Years

Computers and mobile phones 3 to 6 Years

Testing Meters 5 Years
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

Assets Useful lives

Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years

Tools and Equipments 10 Years

Towers 13 Years

Office Equipments 5 Years

Vehicles 8 to 10 Years

Useful lives of the above assets are as per prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013.

* The Group, based on technical assessments made by technical experts and management estimates,
depreciates certain items of plant and machinery over estimated useful lives which are different from the
useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
likely to be used.

De-recognition / Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

Toll road assets, created under Build, Own, Operate and Transfer ("BOOT") model is considered as intangible
asset since the asset will be transferred to GoK at the end of the concession period. The cost of such
intangible asset comprises of land acquisition cost, direct and indirect expense incurred on procurement /
construction of roads, bridges, culverts, including toll plazas, other equipment and utilities used in or in
connection with operation of toll road including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met
and any directly attributable expenditure for making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any
trade discounts and rebates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset, as provided by another Ind-AS.

The summary of amortization policy applied to the group's intangible assets is as below:

Type of Asset Life (years)

Computer software 3

� Solely for purposes of amortisation of the Rights to Operate Toll Roads, the group has considered a
period of 26 to 40 years from the initial financial closure.

� The amortisation is provided on the systematic basis over the above-mentioned period.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

De-recognition / Disposal

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the group
can demonstrate:

� The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale

� Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

� How the asset will generate future economic benefits

� The availability of resources to complete the asset

� The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Such capitalized expenditure is reflected as intangible under development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins
when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

i . Current versus non-current classification

The group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

� Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

� Held primarily for the purpose of trading

� Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

� Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

� It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

� It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

� It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

� There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The group has identified twelve months (5 years for Township Development
from the date of registration of land in the name of the Company and after getting the required regulatory
approval for commencing the development activities) as its operating cycle.

j . Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

� Financial instruments at amortized cost

� Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

� Financial instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

� Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial instruments at amortised cost

A 'financial instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of profit and
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial instruments at FVTOCI

A 'Financial instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However,
the group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in
the P&L. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Financial instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the group may elect to designate a financial instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch').

Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. For all equity instruments not
held for trading, the group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the group's balance sheet) when:

� The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

� The group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the group's continuing involvement. In that case, the group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are financial instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 109

d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

� All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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� Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses'
in the statement of profit and loss.

� The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:Financial assets
measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables:

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial instruments measured at FVTOCI:

Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced
from its value.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the group combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to
enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially
as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

k . Fair value measurement

The group measures financial instruments at fair value on initial recognition. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

� In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

� In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

� Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

� Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

� Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The management decides, after discussions with the group's external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

� Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions

� Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

� Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

l . Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be   recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the group operates
and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of
profit and loss is recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

� When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

� In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

� When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

� In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Minimum alternate tax (MAT)

MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. MAT credit available is
recognized as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the group will pay normal
income tax during the period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the group recognizes MAT credit as an asset for Credit Available in respect of Minimum
Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement
of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement." The group reviews the "MAT credit entitlement"
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the group does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

m . Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

n. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Finance leases

Assets acquired on lease which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the assets, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the
implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. Lease management fees,
legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalized.

Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased assets are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense
in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term except where scheduled
increase in rent compensates the company with expected inflationary costs.

Group as a lessee

A lessee is required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases and to recognise depreciation of leased
assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group uses the
practical expedient to apply the requirements of this standard to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics if the effects on the financial statements of applying to the portfolio do not differ materially
from applying the requirement to the individual leases within that portfolio.

However, when the lessee and the lessor each have the right to terminate the lease without permission
from the other party with no more than an insignificant penalty the Group considers that lease to be no
longer enforceable.

Also according to Ind AS 116, for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and for
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee is not required to recognize right-of-use
asset and a lease liability. The Group applies both recognition exemptions.

The lease payments associated with those leases are generally recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term or another systematic basis if appropriate.

Right-of-use assets:

Right-of-use assets, which are included under Property, plant and equipment, are measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and, if necessary, any accumulated impairment. The cost of a right-of-use
asset comprises the present value of the outstanding lease payments plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs and an estimate
of costs to be incurred in dismantling or removing the underlying asset. In this context, the Group also
applies the practical expedient that the payments for non-lease components are generally recognised as
lease payments. If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee at the end of the
lease term or if the cost of the right-of use asset reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option,

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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the right-of-use asset is depreciated to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the
right of- use asset is depreciated to the end of the lease term.

Lease liability

Lease liabilities, which are assigned to financing liabilities, are measured initially at the present value of
the lease payments. Subsequent measurement of a lease liability includes the increase of the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

Lease modification

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease unless the same is in line with inflation. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

o. Inventories

Stock of land and related developments are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is the
aggregate of land cost and development cost which includes materials, contract works, direct expenses
and apportioned borrowing costs. Cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases,
cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories at their present location and condition.

Stores and spares and loose tools are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, materials
and other items held for operation and maintenance of fixed assets are not written down below cost.

Costs are determined on unsold Certified Emission Reduction (CER) and Renewable Energy Certificate
(REC) are considered as Inventory and valued on the basis of costs which are directly allocated to it. The
cost is assigned to inventories on First in First Out (FIFO) basis. This CERs and RECs are valued at lower of
cost or net realisable value.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

p. Impairment of non-financial assets

The group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, the group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

The group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the group extrapolates
cashflow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the
market in which the asset is used.

Intangible assets under development are tested for impairment annually. Impairment losses including
impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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For the assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

q. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts and cash credit facilities as they are
considered an integral part of the group's cash management.

r . Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary
to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to
an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and is allocated to statement of profit and loss over the
periods and in the proportions in which depreciation on those assets is charged.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant
is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received.
The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

s . Provisions

A provision is recognized when the group has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not
discounted to its present value (unless the effect of time value of money is material) and are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets, if any, are disclosed in the notes to accounts.

t . Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the amount of transaction price excluding payment of taxes and duties collected on behalf of
the government. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration
on account of various discount and schemes offered by the Company.

Any amount of income accrued but not billed to customers in respect of any contracts is recorded as a
contract asset. Such contract assets are transferred to trade receivables on actual billing to customers.

Company has received consideration or an amount of consideration is due from the customer. Such contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Sale of land - Revenue from sale of land is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership
of land is transferred to the buyer and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government.

Toll collections - Income from toll collections is recognised on the basis of actual collection as and when
vehicle crosses toll plaza.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

Construction revenue and construction expenses - Construction revenue from contracts covered under
service concession agreements are recognised in line with the Appendix C to Ind AS 115 – Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.

Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers, these arrangements are
accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset model is used to the extent
that the operator receives a right (i.e. a concessionaire) to charge users of the public service.

Revenue from sales of electricity is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been passed to the buyer, usually on the basis of electricity wheeled into MSEB grid and jointly
certified. In case of sale of electricity, revenue is recognised based on the transaction price.

Income from Certified Emission Reduction (CERs) units and Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) is recognised
in the period of its actual sales.

Claims / Insurance Claim etc. are accounted for when no significant uncertainties are attached to their
eventual receipt.

Interest income

Interest on fixed deposits with banks, bonds, etc., is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. In case of significant uncertainty of receiving interest,
the same is not recognised though accrued and is recognised only when received. Interest income from
debt instruments is recognised using Effective Interest Rate method (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instruments
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Profit / Loss of the sale / redemption of investments is dealt with at the time of actual sale / redemption.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. Dividend income is included in other income in
the statement of profit and loss.

u. Foreign currencies

Transactions and Translations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to
the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange difference that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet
date of the group's monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as income or expenses in the period
in which they arise.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss are also recognised
in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

v . Post-employment and other employee benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits and short-term
employee benefits) that are payable after the completion of employment.

Provident fund

Provident fund is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The group and the eligible
employees make a monthly contribution to the provident fund maintained by the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the eligible employees as per the
scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the
year when the contributions are due. The group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to
the provident fund.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

Gratuity

Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity fund,
which fully cover the same under cash accumulation policy of the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The
employee's gratuity is a defined benefit funded plan.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on the actuarial
valuation using the Projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet as asset/liability with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

� The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

� The date that the group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement
of profit and loss:

� Service costs comprising of current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

� Net interest expense or income

Superannuation

Superannuation is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The contribution to the
superannuation fund managed by the insurer is equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the
eligible employees as per the scheme. The contribution to this scheme is charged to the statement of
profit and loss on an accrual basis. There are no other contributions payable other than contribution
payable to the respective fund.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The group
presents the entire leave encashment liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it
does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.
Where the group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period
beyond twelve months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

w. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The
group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

x . Dividend to equity holders of the Company

The group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the group when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the group. As per the
corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding
amount is recognised directly in equity.

y . Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" requires Management to determine the reportable segments for the
purpose of disclosure in Consolidated Financial Statements based on internal reporting reviewed by Chief
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to assess performance and allocate resource. The standard also requires
Management to make judgements with respect to recognition of segments.

The Group identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the
internal organization and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which
separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated
regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Inter-
segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on
market/ fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on reasonable basis have been included under "unallocated revenue/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities".

z . Earnings per share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
33 "Earnings per Share". Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that
they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation
of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share (or increase net loss per share) from continuing ordinary operations. Potential
dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been
issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity
shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus
shares, as appropriate.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

2 .1 Capital work-in-Progress

Million Rs.

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Capital work-in-Progress 359.21 359.21

359.21 359.21

Ageing Schedule for Capital work in progress as at 31 March 2024 is as follows

Amount of CWIP for period of

< 1 Year 1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years   > 3 years Total

Projects in Progress - - - 359.21 359.21

These include projects in progress pertaining to Step down subsidiary- Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd
(NECE Ltd), relating to land acquisition & allotment etc., which are on hold due to litigations(Refer note no.
26 (i))

Ageing Schedule for Capital work in progress as at 31 March 2023 is as follows

Amount of CWIP for period of

< 1 Year 1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years   > 3 years Total

Projects in Progress - - - 359.21 359.21

These include projects in progress pertaining to Step down subsidiary- Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises Ltd
(NECE Ltd), relating to land acquisition & allotment etc., which are on hold due to litigations (Refer note no.
26 (i))

2 .2 Right of use assets

Particulars Million Rs.

Gross Block

Balance as at 1 April 2022 48.40

Additions -

deductions -

Balance as at 31 March, 2023 48.40

Additions -

Deductions -

Balance as at 31 March, 2024 48.40

Amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2022 24.20

Amortisation for the year 8.07

deductions -

Balance as at 31 March, 2023 32.27

Amortisation for the year 8.07

deductions -

Balance as at 31 March, 2024 40.34

Balance as at 31 March 2023 16.13

Balance as at 31 March 2024 8.06
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2 .3 Other Intangible Assets

(Million Rs.)

Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Goodwill  Rights to Software  Total
Operate

Toll Roads

Gross Block

as at 1 April 2022 63.51 13,620.19 0.23 13,620.42

Additions - 288.21 - 288.21

Deduction - - - -

as at 31 March 2023 63.51 13,908.40 0.23 13,908.63

Additions - 3,128.00 - 3,128.00

Deduction - - - -

as at 31 March 2024 63.51 17,036.40 0 .23 17,036.63

Amortisation

upto 1 April 2022 - 2,648.10 0.20 2,648.30

Amortisation for the year - 542.23 - 542.23

Deductions - - - -

upto 31 March 2023 - 3,190.33 0.20 3,190.53

Amortisation for the year - 617.22 0.01 617.23

Deductions - - - -

upto 31 March 2024 - 3 ,807.55 0.21 3,807.76

Net block

as at 31 March 2023 63.51 10,718.07 0.03 10,718.10

as at 31 March 2024 63.51 13,228.85 0 .02 13,228.87

Details of intangible assets whose title deed is not in the name of NECE

Description Gross Title deed Whether titledeed Property Reason for not
Carrying in the holder is a Promoter, held since being held in the

value name of Director, etc which date name of company

Intangible Assets    102.60 KIADB No 2008 Delay in transfer
of title deeds

2 .4 Intangible assets under Development Million Rs.

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Intangible assets under development 183.77 972.50

183.77 972.50

Intangibles assets under development - Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2024

Amount of intangibles under development for period of

< 1 Year 1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years   > 3 years * Total

Projects in Progress 98.76 - - 85.01 183.77

* These include projects in progress pertaining to Step down subsidiary- Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises
Ltd (NECE Ltd), relating to land acquisition & allotment etc., which are on hold due to litigations(Refer note no.
26 (i))

Intangibles assets under development - Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2023

Amount of intangibles under development for period of

< 1 Year 1 - 2 years  2 - 3 years   > 3 years * Total

Projects in Progress 887.49 - - 85.01 972.50

* These include projects in progress pertaining to Step down subsidiary- Nandi Economic Corridor Enterprises
Ltd (NECE Ltd), relating to land acquisition & allotment etc., which are on hold due to litigations(Refer note no.
26 (i))

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

3 Investments

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non Current Investment

Investment in other companies (unquoted)

Investment designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

25,000(31 March, 2023 : 25,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 6.31 5.55
fully paid up in SKH Metals Ltd.

At Cost

6,251 (31 March, 2023 : 6,251) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 0.06 0.06
fully paid up in Nandi Engineering Limited

Investments in other securities (unquoted)

At Cost

70,00,000 5% Non cumulative redeemable preference shares in 70.00                    -
AKK Entertainment Ltd.

Investment in Government Security/ Trust

- National Savings Certificates 0.01                 0.01

- Indira Vikas Patra @ 0.00  0.00

Total  Non Current Investments 76.38                5.62

Current Investments

Investment designated at fair value through Profit and Loss

Investments in Mutual funds (Unquoted)

HDFC Corporate Bond Fund Nil Units -              135.94
(31 March, 2023 - 4,921,871.73 Units)

Aditya Birla Floating Rate Fund - Nil Units -              143.96
(31 March, 2023 - 480,518.09 Units)

Bandhan Banking PSU Fund - 6,472,094.94 Units 148.24              263.77
(31 March, 2023 - 12,352,737.86 Units)

Axis Banking & PSU Fund- 3,973.23 Units 9.75                    -
(31 March, 2023- Nil Units)

Axis Liquid fund- 2,167.98 Units (31 March, 2023- Nil Units) 5.82                    -

ABSL Money Manager Fund- 485,928.89 Units 165.60                    -
(31 March, 2023- Nil Units)

SBI Saving Fund- 3,365,853.42 Units (31 March, 2023- Nil Units) 136.12                    -

HSBC Liquid Fund- 2,095.00 Units (31 March, 2023- Nil Units) 5.04                    -

Axis Money Market Fund- 22,149.58 Units 29.06                    -
(31 March, 2023- Nil Units)

Kotak Liquid Fund- 1,033.41 Units (31 March, 2023- Nil Units) 5.04                    -

Sundaram Liquid Fund- 2,364.00 Units (31 March, 2023- Nil Units) 5.04                    -

Tata Money Market fund- 7,259.00 Units 31.69                    -
(31 March, 2023- Nil Units)

541.40 543.67
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Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Investment in Equity Shares

Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

120 (31 March 2023 : 120) equity shares of SVC Co-operative 0.01                 0.01
Bank Ltd.

2,500 (31 March 2023 : Nil) equity shares of 0.03                    -
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.

30,000 (31 March 2023 : 20,000) equity shares of NKGSB 0.30                 0.20
Co-op Bank Ltd.

Investments designated at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments (Quoted)

300 (31 March, 2023 : 300) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully 0.00  0.00
paid up in Metalyst Forging Ltd.# @

800 (31 March, 2023: 800) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully 0.70                 0.67
paid up in MM Forging Ltd.

100 (31 March, 2023: 100) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully -                    -
paid up in EL Forge Ltd.

420 (31 March, 2023: 420) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully 0.10                 0.07
paid up in Finolex Industries Ltd.

140 (31 March, 2023: 140) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully 0.08                 0.06
paid up in Hindalco Industries Ltd.

112 (31 March, 2023: 112) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully 0.62                 0.43
paid up in Coforge Ltd.

1.50                 1.23

Total current investments             543.24             545.11

Total Investments 619.62             550.73

# Investments are in the process of being transferred in the name of the Company.

@ amount less than Rs. 5,000/-

Details of quoted/ unquoted instruments :

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

(a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value
thereof;

Carrying value 1.50                 1.23

Market value 1.50                 1.23

(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Carrying value 618.12              549.50

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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4  Loans - Non-Current

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Loans to related parties

- considered good - Unsecured 1.02                 1.01

- Loans which have significant increase in credit risk 629.89              629.89

Less: Loss allowance (629.89)             (629.89)

               1.02                 1.01

Total loans- non current                1.02                 1.01

Loans - Current

Considered good - Unsecured

Loans and advances to Employees 0.26                 0.06

Advances to Related Parties (Repayable on demand)* 244.40              244.40

Total loans- current 244.66              244.46

Total loans 245.68              245.47

No outstanding loans or advances which are in the nature of loans have been granted by the Company to
promoters,directors,Key Managerial Personnels (as defined under the Companies Act,2013),either severally or
jointly with any other person.

* Refer note no. 30

5 Other financial assets (Considered good unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non-current

(At amortised costs)

Inter-corporate deposits * -                 1.71

Security Deposits 16.37                55.89

Bank Deposits with more than twelve months maturity 4.28                60.88

Interest receivable -                 1.44

Total non current financial assets               20.65             119.92

Current

(At amortised costs)

Energy credit receivable 9.70                 8.33

Interest receivable 20.45                55.10

Total current financial assets               30.15               63.43

Total               50.80             183.35

*The intercorporate deposit has been provided to Nandi Engineering Limited (NEL)  at an interest rate of 13%
p.a. and is secured by the personal guarantee and immovable property of the MD of NECE. The deposit has been
provided to NEL towards general corporate purposes.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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6 Deferred tax Assets (Net)

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

I Deferred tax assets :
On account of timing difference
a) Disallowance under Income Tax Act, 1961 22.76                25.84
b) MAT Credit Entitlement 0.52                 0.43
c) Depreciation 18.22                16.78
d) Provision for employee benefits 9.43                 6.51
e) Financial assets carried at fair value through Profit & loss -                28.48

              50.93                78.04
II Deferred tax liabilities :

On account of timing difference
a) Depreciation 3.34                 5.52
b) Financial Instruments                0.99                21.78
c) Provision for employee benefit (Gratuity) 0.17                 0.11

               4.50                27.41

Deferred tax Asset (Net)  (I - II) 46 .43                50.63

7 Other Assets

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non-current
Capital advances (a ) 137.86              137.86
Advances towards land acquisition and projects

Considered Good 4,413.95           4,529.84
Considered Doubtful 10.50                10.50

Sub-Total 4,424.45           4,540.34
(-) Allowance on doubtful advances (10 .50)              (10.50)

Total (b)          4,413.95           4,529.84

Capital Advances to Related Parties

Considered Good -                    -
Considered Doubtful 532.62              532.62

Sub-Total 532.62              532.62
(-) Allowance on doubtful advances (532.62)             (532.62)

Total (c)                    -                    -

Advance to Suppliers/ Service Providers

Considered Good 21.45                58.80
Considered Doubtful 64.07                64.32

Sub-Total 85.52              123.12
(-) Allowance on doubtful advances (64 .07)              (64.32)

Total (d)               21.45                58.80

Total other non current assets (a to d)          4,573.26           4,726.50

Current
Prepaid expenses 12.87                12.03
Duties and taxes receivable 0.07                 0.22
Advances to suppliers/ service providers
- considered good 21.06                21.06
- considered doubtful -                    -

21.06                21.06
(-) Allowance on doubtful advances -                    -

21.06                21.06
Gratuity Plan Asset 0.43                 0.40
Other advances 48.14              126.81

Total other current assets 82.57              160.52

Total          4,655.83           4,887.02

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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8 Inventories

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Stock of renewable energy certificates (RECs) (Refer note below) 0.37                 0.16

Stock of consumables, stores and spares 0.14                 0.28

Land & related development costs 2,448.23           2,240.69

Total          2,448.74           2,241.13

Note: Quantitative details of Stock

Sr. no. Description Units Units

1 No. of RECs held as inventory 21,624 10,676

2 No. of consumables, stores and spares 1 8 106

9 Trade receivables

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Trade receivable outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they were due for payment:

Unsecured, considered good 2.45                 1.08

Trade Receivable - which have significant increase in credit risk -                    -

Trade Receivables - credit impaired -                    -

                2.45                 1.08

Less : Provision for doubtful receivables                    -                    -

                2.45                 1.08

Others

Unsecured, considered good                34.18                15.70

Total               36.63               16.78

There are no debts due by the Directors or other officer of the Group or any of them either severally or jointly,
with any other person or debts due by firm including limited liability partnerships (LLP), private company
respectively in which any director or other officer is a partner or a director or a member.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables as at 31 March, 2024 is as follows Million Rs.

Part iculars Outstanding for following periods from Tota l
due date of payment

Less Than 6 Months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
6 Months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable 34.18 - 1.41 1.04 - 36.63
- Considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
- credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
-Considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -

- credit impaired

Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables as at 31 March, 2023 is as follows Million Rs.

Part iculars Outstanding for following periods from Tota l
due date of payment

Less Than 6 Months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
6 Months 1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable 15.70 - 1.08 - - 16.78
- Considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in
credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
- credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
-Considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -

- credit impaired

1 0 Cash & bank balances :

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

i ) Cash & cash equivalents

Cash on hand 11.91                10.06

Balances with banks - in current accounts 64.09                85.97

Fixed Deposits with banks having original maturity less than 426.35              400.00
three months

502.35              496.03

i i) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed Deposits with Banks having original maturity more than 1,443.27           1,260.94
three months but less than twelve months

Total 1 ,945.62           1,756.97

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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1 1 Equity Share capital :

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Authorised

60,000,000 (31 March, 2023 : 60,000,000) Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each 300.00              300.00

Issued, subscribed & fully paid up

37,667,628 (31 March, 2023 : 37,667,628) Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each 188.34              188.34

Total 188.34             188.34

11(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023

No. of shares Million Rs. No. of shares Million Rs.

At the beginning of the year 37,667,628 188.34 37,667,628 188.34

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to
prior Period errors - - - -

Restated balance at the beginning of 37,667,628 188.34 37,667,628 188.34
the year

Issued /(reduction) if any during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 37,667,628 188.34 37,667,628 188.34

11(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Parent Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5/- per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Parent Company declares and pays dividends in Indian
Rupees. The  dividend, as and when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Parent Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.  The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

11(c) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash
and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting
date

There are no bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back
during the period of five years immediately preceding reporting date.

11(d) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters :

(i) Details of share holding of Promoters as at 31 March, 2024:

Sr . Promoter Name No. of % of total % Change
No. Equity Equity  during

Shares Shares the year

1 Babasaheb Neelkanth Kalyani                  7,212 0.02                       -

2 Gaurishankar Neelkanth Kalyani                63,779 0.17                       -

3 Ashok Kumar Kheny                  5,472 0.01                       -

4 Sunita Babasaheb kalyani                  4,000 0.01                       -

5 Rohini Gaurishankar Kalyani                  2,000 0.01                       -

6 Dr. Meera Kheny                     700 0.00                       -

7 Sugandha Jai Hiremath.                       - 0.00                       -

8 Amit Babasaheb Kalyani                       - 0.00                       -

9 Deeksha Amit Kalyani                       - 0.00                       -

10 Ajinkya Investment and Trading Company           6,648,886 17.65                       -

11 Kalyani Investment Company Limited           6,195,046 16.45                       -

12 KSL Holding Pvt. Limited           4,353,472 11.56                       -

13 PIH Finvest Company Limited           1,424,885 3.78                       -

14 BF Investment Limited           1,187,903 3.15                       -

15 Jannhavi Investment Private Limited              458,514 1.22                       -

16 Sundaram Trading and Investment Pvt. Ltd.              239,373 0.64                       -

17 Rajgad Trading Company Pvt. Ltd.              151,674 0.40                       -

18 Kalyani Consultants Pvt. Ltd.              149,500 0.40                       -

19 Dandakaranya Investment And Trading Pvt. Ltd.                93,700 0.25                       -

20 Campanula Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd.                56,189 0.15                       -

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Sr . Promoter Name No. of % of total % Change
No. Equity Equity  during

Shares Shares the year

21 Cornflower Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd.                39,600 0.11                       -

22 Hastinapur Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd.                  4,567 0.01                       -

23 Dronacharya Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd.                  3,143 0.01                       -

24 Kalyani Exports & Investment Pvt. Ltd.              145,250 0.39                       -

25 Aboli Investment Pvt. Ltd.              136,900 0.36                       -

26 Babasaheb Kalyani Family Trust                                - 0.00 -

         21,371,765 56.74                       -

Mrs. Sulochana Neelkanth Kalyani expired on 25/02/2023

(ii) Details of share holding of Promoters as at 31 March, 2023:

Sr . Promoter Name No. of % of total % Change
No. Equity Equity  during

Shares Shares the year

1 Babasaheb Neelkanth Kalyani                  7,212 0.02                       -

2 Gaurishankar Neelkanth Kalyani                63,779 0.17                       -

3 Ashok Kumar Kheny                  5,472 0.01                       -

4 Sunita Babasaheb kalyani                  4,000 0.01                       -

5 Rohini Gaurishankar Kalyani                  2,000 0.01                       -

6 Dr. Meera Kheny                     700 0.00                       -

7 Sugandha Jai Hiremath.                       - 0.00                       -

8 Amit Babasaheb Kalyani                       - 0.00                       -

9 Deeksha Amit kalyani                       - 0.00                       -

10 Ajinkya Investment and Trading Company           6,648,886 17.65                       -

11 Kalyani Investment Company Limited           6,195,046 16.45                       -

12 KSL Holding Pvt. Limited           4,353,472 11.56                       -

13 PIH Finvest Company Limited           1,424,885 3.78                       -

14 BF Investment Limited           1,187,903 3.15                       -

15 Jannhavi Investment Private Limited              458,514 1.22                       -

16 Sundaram Trading and Investment Pvt. Ltd.              239,373 0.64                       -

17 Rajgad Trading Company Pvt. Ltd.              151,674 0.40                       -

18 Kalyani Consultants Pvt. Ltd.              149,500 0.40                       -

19 Dandakaranya Investment And Trading Pvt. Ltd.                93,700 0.25                       -

20 Campanula Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd.                56,189 0.15                       -

21 Cornflower Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd.                39,600 0.11                       -

22 Hastinapur Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd.                  4,567 0.01                       -

23 Dronacharya Investment & Trading Pvt. Ltd.                  3,143 0.01                       -

24 Kalyani Exports & Investment Pvt. Ltd.              145,250 0.39                       -

25 Aboli Investment Pvt. Ltd.              136,900 0.36                       -

26 Babasaheb Kalyani Family Trust                                - 0.00                       -

        21,371,765 56.74                       -

Mrs. Sulochana Neelkanth Kalyani expried on 25/02/2023

11(e) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder* Equity shares

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023

No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
held holding held  holding

Ajinkya Investment & Trading Company           6,648,886 17.65            6,648,886 17.65

Kalyani Investment Company Ltd.           6,195,046 16.45            6,195,046 16.45

KSL Holdings Pvt. Ltd.           4,353,472 11.56            4,353,472 11.56

* The shareholding information is based on legal ownership of shares and has been extracted from the records
of the Parent Company including register of shareholders / members.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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1 2 Other equity

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5.25                    6.75

Less : Accumulated gain transferred to Retained Earnings on disposal -                  (2.11)
of an Investment in equity shares measured at FVTOCI

Measurement of Investments at FVTOCI (net of tax) 0.83                    0.33

Add: Impact due to changes in NCI consequent to acquisition of shares -                    0.28
in NECE by NHDL

Balance as at the end of the year (a)                    6.08                    5.25

Surplus/ (Deficit) in statement of profit & loss :

Balance as at the beginning of the year (4 ,911.95)            (5,348.22)

Add / (less): Net profit / (net loss) for the year 1,473.62             1,244.12

Add / (less): Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax) (3.77)                    1.50

Add : Accumulated gain transferred to Retained Earnings on disposal -                    2.11
of an Investment in equity shares measured at FVTOCI

Less: Investment within Group -               (810.00)

Less: Impact due to changes in NCI consequent to acquisition of -                  (1.46)
shares in NECE by NHDL

Balance as at the end of the year (b)            (3,442.10)            (4,911.95)

Securities Premium (c)             1,864.84             1,864.84

Reserve Fund U/s 45 IC(1) of the RBI Act, 1934 (d)                    4.06                    4.06

General Reserve (e)                    0.07                    0.07

Measurement of below market rate financial liability (f)             1,932.32             1,932.32
at fair value

Total (a to f)               365.27          (1,105.41)

a ) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income :

- This reserve represents cumulative gains/ (loss) arising on fair valuation of equity instruments measured
through other comprehensive income.

b) Surplus/ (Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss:

- This reserve comprises of undistributed profit/ loss after tax

c ) Securities Premium:

- Securities premium account represents excess of the issue price of equity shares over their face value.

d) Measurement of below market rate financial liability at fair value

- Measurement of below market rate financial liability represents imputed gain on financial instruments
which carry interest rate lower than market rate.

e ) General Reserve

- General reserve is created by setting aside amount from the Retained Earnings of the Company for
general purposes which is freely available for distribution.

f ) Reserve Fund U/s 45 IC(1) of the RBI Act, 1934

- Statutory Reserve was created pursuant to the provision of section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India
Act,1934, by subsidiary, Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Ltd. (NICE Ltd.)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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1 3 Borrowings

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non-current borrowings

Secured Loans

Term Loan From Axis Finance Ltd -                399.86

(For subsidiary: Nandi Highway Developers Limited) (NHDL)

The Facility together with all Interest, Default Interest, all other costs,
charges, expenses, fees or amounts payable to the Lender, the Security
Trustee and the Escrow Bank under the Finance Documents shall be
secured by the following security ("Security"):

(a) A Security Interest by way of first and exclusive ranking mortgage
over the identified non-agricultural land parcel admeasuring
approximately 45 acres situate at Bengaluru-Mysuru Infrastructure
Corridor (NECE Road), Bangalore owned by the Security Provider,
including all the structures thereon both present and future .

(b) (the properties in clause (a) are hereinafter referred to as the
"Mortgaged Property")

(c) A Security Interest by way of first & exclusive charge on both present
and future current assets of the Borrower;

(d) A Security Interest by way of first & exclusive charge and escrow
over the cash flows of the Borrower;

(e) A Security Interest by way of first & exclusive charge on the Escrow
Account, Interest Service Reserve, Major Maintenance Reserve,
Retention Monies, etc. and other reserves and any other bank
accounts of Borrower wherever maintained;

(f) A Security Interest by way of assignment of all the Borrower's rights,
title, interest, benefits, claims and demands as stipulated:

a. in the Project Documents (including but not limited to the
Concession Agreement):

b. in the permits, approvals and clearances pertaining to the Project;
and in any letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond provided
by any party to the Project Documents; and

c. all insurance contracts/ insurance proceeds pertaining to the
project;

(g) A Security Interest by way of first and exclusive pledge of 69.5%
unencumbered fully paid up equity shares of the Borrower held by
BFUL;

(h) Corporate guarantee by the Guarantor;

(i) Corporate guarantee by the Security Provider to the extent of the
Mortgaged Property offered as a security;

Loan has been Completely repaid during the year 2023-24

(For step down subsidiary- Nandi Economic Corridor
Enterprises Ltd.) (NECE) #

Term Loan from Banks 11,612.79             9,315.83

Term loan from Financial Institutions  -             3,831.93

Term loans from banks and others (together referred to as Senior
Lenders): During the financial year 2014-15, on the request from NECE,
the Senior Lenders of the long term loans have refinanced the respective
loans provided to NECE. Post refinancing, the total term loans taken by
NECE has been split into 4 Facilities as given below:

Facility 1 - Repayable in 50 unequal quarterly instalments from June
2017 to September 2029.

Facility 2 - Repayable in one single payment on September 2029.
Facility 3 - Repayable in 38 unequal instalments from June 2022 to
September 2031.

Facility 4 - Repayable in 38 unequal instalments from June 2022 to
September 2031.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Security: Term loan from banks and from others is secured by a first
charge: -

- on mortgage of land, buildings and all fixed Assets both present and
future, of NECE.

- on all movable properties of NECE.

- on all the right, title, interest, benefit, claims and demands,
whatsoever of NECE in respect of project documents, including all
guarantees and bonds received by NECE.

- on all rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands in respect
of the project accounts and all bank and other accounts of NECE.

- The term loan is also secured by pledge of shares held by NICE in
NECE.

- As additional comfort security to lenders of Facility 3 and Facility 4, a
First ranking pari passu pledge over 1.15% of the Shares of NECE
held by Jaypatri Investments Private Limited has also been created.

 (a) Total secured borrowings          11,612.79            13,547.62

Unsecured Loans

(For step down subsidiary- Nandi Economic Corridor
Enterprise Ltd.)

7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs.10/- each 496.41                448.99

These are not redeemable until the entire "Senior Loan"(i.e. the
aggregate amount of rupee term loans from banks and financial
institutions) is paid in full with all interest, premium and other sums as
may be payable in respect thereof and a full, unconditional and complete
discharge is given by the senior lenders.

(For Subsidiary- Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Ltd.)

7% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs.10/- each 379.30                334.06

As per the initial repayment terms, 7% cumulative redeemable
preference shares are due for redemption within 7 years i.e. as at 26
March 2017. However, as at 31 March 2017, the  terms of redemption
were revised for further one year (i.e. 26 March 2018). Further, vide
board resolution passed at 131st meeting of the board of directors of
NICE held on 28 February 2018 the terms of repayment has been further
extended for a period of 2 years, i.e. from 26 March 2018 to 25 March
2020. Further, vide Board resolution passed at 141st meeting of the
board of directors of NICE held on 4 February 2020 the terms of
repayment has been further extended for a period of 5 years, i.e. from
26 March 2020 to 25 March 2025.

Interest free loan from related parties (unsecured) @ 346.73                285.42

(b) Total Unsecured borrowings            1,222.44             1,068.47

Total Borrowings (a + b)          12,835.23            14,616.09

Amount considered in "Current maturities of long term borrowings" (908.05)            (1,177.33)

Total Non current Borrowings 11,927.18            13,438.76

Current borrowings

Loan from others * 130.00                186.30

Current maturities of long term borrowings 908.05             1,177.33

Total current Borrowings 1,038.05             1,363.63

@ Interest free unsecured loan from Related Parties is repayable once the funds position of NECE & NICE
permits the same

* Represent interest free unsecured loans repyable on demand.
(Includes loan from related parties, Refer note no 30).

# Interest on term loans availed by NECE Ltd are linked to respective bank base rates.

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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1 4 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

I Deferred tax liabilities :

On account of timing difference

a) Depreciation 1,423.19             1,371.39

b) Fair value of financial liabilities 46.44                  46.44

 c) Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. 270.09                307.69

1,739.72            1,725.52

II Deferred tax assets :

On account of timing difference

a) Employeee benefit expenses 18.64                  16.04

b) Fair value of investments in mutual funds 2.60                  13.17

c) Provision for constructive obligation 27.17                  27.18

d) Interest accrued -                  13.45

e) Income tax loss carry forward 676.71             1,314.70

725.12            1,384.54

Deferred tax Liabilities (Net)  (I - II) 1 ,014.60               340.98

1 5 Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Other Non current financial liabilities

(At amortised cost)

Interest accrued on borrowings but not due 249.68                249.68

Security deposit * 200.00                200.00

Creditors for capital purchases 10.10                  10.10

Total other non current financial liabilities               459.78               459.78

Other Current financial liabilities

(At amortised cost)

Advances received towards sale of land and 527.37                521.93
joint development agreements

Interest accrued on borrowings but not due -                  53.45

Security Deposits 17.75                    6.30

Retention Money 26.98                  20.64

Capital Creditors 185.47                       -

Expenses and Other payables 2.33                    3.62

Total other current financial liabilities               759.90               605.94

Total other financial liabilities            1,219.68            1,065.72

* Interest free security deposit received from Related Party (Refer note no. 30)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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1 6 Other liabilities

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Other Non current liabilities

Advances received towards sale of land and joint development 278.25                362.04
agreements

Other advances payable 19.04                  53.79

Deferred revenue 430.92                407.72

Total - other non current liabilities               728.21               823.55

Other current liabilities

Advances received towards sale of land and joint development 102.00                102.00
agreements

Land acquisition related accruals 1,211.01             1,211.01

Creditors for capital purchases 0.93                    0.93

Employee related dues 45.23                  36.58

Deferred Revenue 2.90                       -

Statutory dues payable 40.60                  31.70

Total - other current liabilities            1,402.67            1,382.22

Total Other liabilities            2,130.88            2,205.77

1 7 Trade payables

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Dues to micro & small enterprises 14.77 10.09

Dues to other than micro & small enterprises 361.21 345.83

Total  Trade payable 375.98 355.92

Note :

The group has disclosed amount payable to suppliers as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006". This information regarding micro and small enterprises has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified, on the basis of information available with the group.

Ageing for Trade payables outstanding as at 31 March, 2024, is as follows

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from Total
due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

(i) MSME 0.59 14.18 - - - 14.77

(ii) Others 12.50 67.72 7.47 6.28 254.14 348.11

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Other - - - - 13.10 13.10

375 .98

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Ageing for Trade payables outstanding as at 31 March, 2023, is as follows

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from Total
due date of payment

Unbilled Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

(i) MSME 0.59 9.50 - - - 10.09

(ii) Others 9.48 92.18 4.67 2.87 223.53 332.73

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Other - - - - 13.10 13.10

355 .92

1 8 Provisions

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Non-current Provisions

Provision for employee benefits :

Gratuity 29.97                  21.89

Compensated absences 8.50                    9.17

Other provisions :

Constructive obiligation * 107.99                107.99

Total Provision Non-Current 146.46               139.05

Provisions - Current

Provision for employee benefits :

Compensated absences 45.10                  45.21

Other provisions :

Electricity duty (Refer note no. 28) 85.12                  85.12

Others 5.24                    1.00

Total Provision Current               135.46               131.33

Total Provision Current & Non-Current               281.92               270.38

* In respect of NECE, the obligations to maintain and restore the toll road is a contractual obligation, hence the
provision is recognised and measured at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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1 9 Revenue from operations*

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Wind power generated              187.03              162.17

Sale from Renewable energy certificate units (REC)                 6.94                18.12

Revenue from Toll Operations           7,180.24           5,918.33

Construction Revenue           2,312.84           1,084.58

Revenue from sale of land                    -              407.96

Other operating income                 6.14                    -

Total          9,693.19          7,591.16

* For details refer note no. 27.

2 0 Other income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Dividend income                 0.01                 0.08

Interest on Deposits with banks                36.27                19.00

Interest from other financial assets                67.08                67.40

Provision no longer required, written back                 0.26                    -

Interest income on sales tax deferral                    -                 0.34

Profit on Sale of Investments                    -                 0.24

Net gain on sale of mutual funds measured at                51.94                53.82
fair value through profit or loss (realised)

Net gain on sale of mutual funds measured at fair value (12 .99)                (6.52)
through profit or loss (unrealised)

Parking fees                 4.71                 4.56

Rent Income                42.71                20.96

Miscellaneous income                 2.16                 7.88

Total             192.15             167.76

21 a. Changes in inventories

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

(Increase) / decrease in inventory:

Opening stock of Renewable energy certificates (RECs), 0.43                 0.38
stores and spares

Closing stock of Renewable energy certificates (RECs), 0.51                 0.43
stores and spares

Total               (0.08)               (0.05)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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21 b. Cost of Sale of Land & Land Development

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Opening stock           2,240.69           2,248.04

Add: Cost of purchase of land an land development 207.54                    -
cost incurred

          2,448.23           2,248.04

Less: Closing stock          (2,448.23)          (2,240.69)

Total                    -                7.35

2 2 Employee benefit expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Salaries, allowances etc.              574.82              496.63

Contribution to provident & other funds                58.28                58.61

Gratuity                13.29                12.27

Staff welfare expense                45.49                21.99

Total             691.88             589.50

2 3 Finance costs

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Interest on loans           1,329.13           1,736.52

Interest cost on sales tax deferral                    -                 0.34

Interest on shortfall of advance tax & GST @                    -                    -

Interest on lease liabilities                 3.84                 3.17

Other Borrowing Costs                85.94                90.24

Total          1,418.91          1,830.27

@ amount less than Rs. 5,000/-

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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2 4 Other expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Operating expenses

Operations, maintenance & CDM expenses                30.41                27.61

Rent Expenses                 7.47                 6.55

Road Repairs and Maintenance              264.35              376.70

Design and engineering                22.74                21.57

Construction expense           2,312.84           1,084.58

Insurance Charges                 1.37                 1.77

Electricity duty                19.69                17.65

Electricity charges                 2.70                 2.99

Cross Subsidy                40.94                36.28

Open Access - Wheeling charges                14.75                13.26

Open Access - Transmission charges                24.33                17.84

Open Access - Other charges                36.78                32.15

Telephone & Communication                 2.03                 1.78

Other operating expenses                 5.10                 4.27

(A )           2,785.50           1,645.00

Administrative expenses

Insurance charges - others                12.05                14.85

Rates & taxes                 4.65                 4.70

Repairs & maintenance

- Machinery                 5.52                 5.07

- Building                 1.61                 1.02

- others                30.82                28.71

Director's sitting fees                 0.17                 0.10

Professional & consultancy expenses              170.64              149.72

Corporate social responsibility expenses                13.58                 0.31

Payment to auditors                 7.40                 7.04

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment                 0.25                    -

Travel & Conveyance                51.04                47.04

Security Charges                62.65                49.14

Printing and stationery                 3.67                 4.80

Listing and Custodial charges                 1.42                 1.32

Advertisement and business promotion                 4.51                 4.78

Fines and penalties                 0.26                 0.35

Miscellaneous expenses                39.29                48.87

(B)             409.53             367.82

Total (A)+ (B)          3,195.03          2,012.82

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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2 5 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the Net profit attributable to the owners of the Parent Company
by the Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by adjusting the Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding,
for effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The following reflects income and share data used in the basic and dilutive EPS calculations:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Numerator for basic and diluted EPS

Net profit / (Loss) attributable to owners of 1,473.62           1,244.12
the Parent Company  (in Million Rs.)

Total number of equity shares        37,667,628        37,667,628

Weighted average number of equity shares        37,667,628        37,667,628

Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 5/- each                39.12                33.03
(in Rs.)

Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 5/- each                39.12                33.03
(in Rs.)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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26 . Contingent Liabilities and commitments

Particulars As at 31 st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

1 Claims against the Group not acknowledge as debt 500.02 500.02
(Refer Note ii)

2 Estimated Amounts of Contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for
(net of advances)

In respect of NECE Ltd (Step down subsidiary) 85.05 424.01

3 Income Tax Liability (Refer note (iii) &(iv)) 164.25 119.19

4 7% dividend on cumulative preference shares issued by 205.80 191.10
Nandi Infrastructure Corridor Enterprise Ltd.

As regards NECE Ltd -

(i) The step- down subsidiary of the Holding Company, NECE Ltd has been subject to litigations and allegations
from time to time regarding irregularities in the Project. As at the Balance sheet date, there are various
cases pending against NECE Ltd. challenging the execution of the BMICP (the 'Project') which can be
categorised under the following broad heads: a)Land acquisition and allotment related b) Litigation
against layout approvals c) Enhanced compensation and d) other matters related to Project. NECE Ltd. has
been legally advised that none of these pending litigations or threatened litigation is likely to affect the
execution of the Project. The Management of NECE Ltd. believes that aforesaid litigations will not have
any material impact upon the financial statements.

(ii) NECE Ltd. has received claims from certain suppliers for payment of statutory dues aggregating to
Rs. 260.00 Million (31 March 2023: Rs. 260.00 Million) as at 31 March 2024. During the current year, NECE
Ltd has paid the dues relating to suppliers except Nandi Engineering Ltd. (NEL). NECE Ltd believes that NEL
is an affiliate of NECE Ltd., hence NEL is entitled to exemption that were granted to the Project.

(iii) NECE Ltd has received tax demand from the income tax authorities aggregating to Rs. 119.19 Million (31
March 2023: Rs. 119.19 Million) in respect of various deductions claimed in the tax return, unexplained cash
deposits during demonetization period and other matters relating to the assessment year 2017-18. NECE
has filed an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) on 24 January 2020.  Considering the
facts and nature of adjustments, NECE Ltd. believes that the position will likely be favourable and will not
have any material adverse effect on the financial position and results of operations of NECE Ltd.

(iv) NECE ltd. has received tax demand from the income tax authorities aggregating Rs. 45.08 Million in
respect of various deductions claimed in the tax return and other matters relating to the assessment year
2021-22. NECE Ltd. has filed rectification letter as per the section 154 and appeal to this order has been
filed with the Income Tax Department. Considering the facts and nature of adjustments, NECE Ltd. believes
that the position will likely be favourable and will not have any material adverse effect on the financial
position and results of operations of NECE Ltd.

27 . Revenue from Contracts with Customers

a . Revenue Stream & Disaggregation of Revenue

 (Rs. In Millions)

Particulars Timing of Year ended Year ended
revenue recognition March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers

- Sale of wind power At a point in time 187.03 162.17

- Toll road operations 7,180.24 5,918.33

- Sale of land - 407.96

- Construction & other revenue Over a period of time 2,318.98 1,084.58

b. The movement in contract assets during the year is as follows:

(Rs. In Millions)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 8.33 5.54

Add: Energy credit receivable 9.70 8.33

Less: Invoiced during the period 8.33 5.54

Balance at the end of the year 9.70 8.33

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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28 . Provisions

The disclosure required by Ind AS 37- "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" prescribed by
Rules, as amended for the Holding Company is as follows.

(In Rs. Million)

Class of provision: Carrying amount Charge during Amount Carrying amount
Electricity Duty as at beginning the year paid during as at the end

of the year the year of the year

As at March 31, 2024 85.12 - - 85.12

As at March 31, 2023 85.12 - - 85.12

Nature of provision

In terms of various notifications/ circulars issued by Government of Maharashtra, electricity duty is payable in
respect of wind power sold to third parties.

29 . Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

In respect of the Company:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Trade receivables - -

Trade payables - -

30 . Related Party disclosures

(i) Names of the related parties and related party relationship

Enterprises owned or significantly Bharat Forge Ltd. (BFL)
influenced by key management BF Investment Ltd. (BFIL)
personnel or their relatives / Nandi Engineering Ltd. (NEL)
Enterprises under common control Jaypatri Investments Pvt. Ltd.

AKK Developers Pvt. Ltd. (AKKDPL)
AKK Entertainment Ltd. (AKKEL)
Ashok Kheny Production Pvt Ltd. (AKPPL)
Ashok Kheny Infrastructure Ltd. (AKIL)
SAB Engineering Inc., USA (SEI)
Karanja Project Management Consultancy LLP
Bonick Developers Pvt. Ltd. (BDPL)
Ashok Kheny Motors Pvt. Ltd. (AKMPL)
India International Infrastructure Engineers Ltd (IIIE)

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Mr. B.S. Mitkari (CEO , CFO & CS of Holding Company)
Mr. Ashok Kheny, Managing Director of Subsidiaries
Mr. Shivkumar Kheny, Managing Director of Subsidiary
Mr. N Bala Krishna, CFO & CS of Subsidiary
Mr. Ashok Kumar Shetty, CFO of Subsidiaries
Mr. N. Balaji Naidu, Company Secretary of Subsidiaries

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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(ii) Related party transactions

(Amount in Million)

Nature of Year Entit ies Key Enterprise Over
transaction where Management which KMP

control Personnel have Significant
exists  (KMP)  Influence

I  Income

A Sales 2023-24 185.66 - -
2022-23 159.38 - -

B Employee deputation cost received 2023-24 5.00 - -
(including GST) 2022-23 4.78 - -

C Interest Income on ICD 2023-24 - - 0.15
2022-23 - - 0.30

II  Expenses

A Reimbursement of Open Access 2023-24 135.76 - -
expenses 2022-23 117.16 - -

B Interest on ICD / Loan 2023-24 - - 45.23
2022-23 - - 39.73

C Rent 2023-24 - - 2.39
2022-23 - - 2.39

D Professional fees and others 2023-24 - - 33.04
2022-23 - - 42.78

E Directors' fees, etc. 2023-24 - 6.06 -
2022-23 - 0.51 -

F Remuneration paid to KMP 2023-24 - 103.61 -
2022-23 - 73.41 -

III Others

A Loan/ICD Taken / (Repaid) 2023-24 (44.00) - (1.71)
2022-23 (10.00) - (2.10)

B Advance given 2023-24 - - (0.01)
2022-23 - - (0.02)

C Investment in 5% Non cumulative 2023-24 - - 70.00
redeemable preference shares 2022-23 - - -

(iii) Balances outstanding as at the year end

Receivable/ (Payable) (Amount in Million)

S r Nature of For the year E n t i t i e s K e y Enterprise Over
No transact ion ended where control Management which KMP have

e x i s t s Personnel (KMP)  Significant Influence

1 Loan / Inter Corporate Deposit 31 March, 2024 (130.00) - (5.61)
31 March, 2023 (174.00) - (1.09)

2 Security deposit received 31 March, 2024 (200.00) - -
31 March, 2023 (200.00) 40.00 -

3 Advance given 31 March, 2024 - - 1,412.12
31 March, 2023 - - 1,423.92

4 Advance to suppliers 31 March, 2024 - - 35.60
31 March, 2023 - - 106.89

5 Loans outstanding and interest 31 March, 2024 - - (596.41)
accrued but not due 31 March, 2023 - - (1,272.46)

6 Remuneration payable to KMP 31 March, 2024 - (0.15) -
31 March, 2023 - (0.33) -

7 Cumulative Redeemable Preference 31 March, 2024 - - (379.30)
 shares 31 March, 2023 - - (334.06)

8 5% Non cumulative redeemable 31 March, 2024 - - 70.00
preference shares 31 March, 2023 - - -

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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31 . Financial Instruments

Capital Management:

The group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so
that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
group may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the group consists of debt and total equity of the group.

The group determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term
product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and short-
term borrowings. The group's policy is aimed at combination of short-term and long-term borrowings. The
group monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall
debt portfolio of the group.

Total debt includes all long and short-term debts as disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

Fair Value Measurement

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and the fair value of the
consolidated financial instruments as at 31 March 2024

(In Rs. Million)

Part iculars At Cost  Amortised F inanc ia l F inanc ia l Tota l Tota l
cos t  assets/ assets / c a r r y i n g fair

liabilities at liabilities at v a l u e v a l u e
fair value fair value

t h r o u g h t h r o u g h
Profit & Loss O C I

Financial Assets

Investments 70.07 - 541.74 7.81 619.62 619.62

Trade receivables - 36.63 - - 36.63 36.63

Cash and cash equivalents - 502.35 - - 502.35 502.35
- Bank balance

Bank Balance other than above - 1,443.27 - - 1,443.27 1,443.27

Loans - 245.68 - - 245.68 245.68

Other financial assets - 50.80 - - 50.80 50.80

Tota l 70 .07 2 ,278 .73 541 .74 7 .81 2 ,898 .35 2 ,898 .35

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - 12,965.23 - - 12,965.23 12,965.23

Trade Payables - 375.98 - - 375.98 375.98

Lease Liability - 12.11 - - 12.11 12.11

Other financial  liabilities - 1,219.68 - - 1,219.68 1,219.68

Tota l - 14,573.00 - - 14,573.00 14,573.00

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and the fair value of the
consolidated financial instruments as on 31 March 2023

(In Rs. Million)

Part iculars At Cost  Amortised F inanc ia l F inanc ia l Tota l Tota l
cos t  assets/ assets / c a r r y i n g fair

liabilities at liabilities at v a l u e v a l u e
fair value fair value

t h r o u g h t h r o u g h
Profit & Loss O C I

Financial Assets

Investments 0.07 - 543.88 6.79 550.74 550.74

Trade receivables - 16.78 - - 16.78 16.78

Cash and cash equivalents - 496.03 - - 496.03 496.03
- Bank balance

Bank Balance other than above - 1260.94 - - 1260.94 1260.94

Loans - 245.47 - - 245.47 245.47

Other financial assets - 183.35 - - 183.35 183.35

Tota l 0 .07 2 ,202 .57 543 .88 6 .79 2 ,753 .31 2 ,753 .31

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - 14,802.39 - - 14,802.39 14,802.39

Trade Payables - 355.92 - - 355.92 355.92

Lease Liability - 21.67 - - 21.67 21.67

Other financial  liabilities - 1,065.72 - - 1,065.72 1,065.72

Tota l - 16,245.70 - - 16,245.70 16,245.70

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables
and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

Further the management assessed that the fair value of security deposits and other non-current receivables
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to discounting at rates which are an approximation of current
lending rates.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. The fair values of quoted instruments are based on price quotations at the reporting date.

2. The group has performed fair valuation of its investment in unquoted ordinary shares which has been
classified as Investment carried at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial Risk management framework:

The group is exposed primarily to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk which may adversely impact the fair
value of its financial instruments. The group assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and
seeks to mitigate potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the group.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the
interest rates and other market changes.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the
contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analyzing credit
limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after
obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Group
maintains its cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks having good reputation and high-quality credit
ratings.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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The group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an on-going basis throughout each reporting period. In general, it is presumed
that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 30 days past
due. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall
due. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates
and other macro-economic factors.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach - The group recognises significant income
from toll road on the basis of actual collection and hence there are no significant outstanding. Hence, as the
group does not have significant credit risk, it does not present the information related to ageing pattern. The
group has widespread customer base and no single customer accounted for 10% or more of revenue in any of
the years indicated.

During the periods presented, the group made no write-offs of trade receivables and it does not expect to
receive future cash flows or recoveries from collection of cash flows previously written off.

Interest rate risk

Fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortized cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as
defined in Ind AS 107, 'Financial Instruments - Disclosures', since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash
flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

        (Rs. In Million)

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Variable rate borrowings 11,612.79 13,147.76

Fixed rate borrowings 875.71 399.86

Interest free borrowings 476.73 1,254.77

Total borrowings 12,965.23 14,802.39

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Interest rates - increase by 50 basis points (50 bps) (61 .12) (68.51)

Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps) 61.12 68.51

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the group cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.
The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, liquid cash and bank balance by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

 (Rs. In Million)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Less than More than Less than More than
1 Year 1 Year 1 Year 1 Year

Borrowings 1,038.05 11,927.18 1,363.63 13,438.76

Trade payables 375.98 - 355.92 -

Other financial liabilities 759.90 459.78 605.94 459.78

Fair Value Measurement

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the Ind AS 113 - Fair Value Measurement. An explanation of each level is as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the group's assets and liabilities.

(Rs. In Million)

Quantitative disclosure fair value Fair value measurement using
measurement hierarchy for assets

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable un-observable
market s Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Equity Instruments (Quoted)

31 March, 2024 1.50 - -
31 March, 2023 1.23 - -

Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

31 March, 2024 - - 6 .31
31 March, 2023 - - 5.55

Financial assets at FVTPL
(Quoted and unquoted)

Investment in Bonds, Shares and Mutual Funds

31 March, 2024 0.34 541.40 -
31 March, 2023 0.21 543.67 -

Financial assets at Cost

Investments in Bonds & shares

31 March, 2024 0.07 - 70.00
31 March, 2023 0.07 - -

32 . Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the Income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate
to the profit before tax is summarised below.

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Current tax

Current year 886.09 172.47

Earlier year (1.81) -

Total Income tax (income)/ expenses 884.28 172.47

(ii) Income Tax in Other Comprehensive income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Deferred tax related to Item recognised in OCI

Re-measurement Gain /(Loss) on defined benefit 0.06 0.07
obligations plan

Net Gain / (Loss) on equity instruments at FVTOCI 0.21 0.09

Total Income Tax charged to Other Comprehensive 0.27 0.16
Income

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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(iii) Effective Tax Reconciliation

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Million Rs. Million Rs.

Accounting profit before tax from operations 3,919.36 2,738.99

Enacted tax rate in India 25.17/29.12 27.82/26.49

Computed tax expense for the Group at 1,044.68 649.83
enacted tax rates

Effect of non-deductible expenses (66 .54) 1.67

Effect of deductible expenses - (0.76)

Effect of MAT Credit availed (0.09) (9.98)

Short/ (Excess) provision of earlier years (1.81) -

Effect of set off of tax expense on account of (104.70) (470.43)
accumulated tax losses.

Others 12.74 2.14

Tax expense reported in statement of 884.28 172.47
profit and loss

Tax rate applicable for current FY is 25.17% as Parent Company has opted to pay tax under Section 115
BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961.

(iv) Amount of deferred tax expense (income) relating to changes:

The applicable tax rate for the current FY is 25.17%, following the Parent Company's decision to opt for
taxation under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, this change in tax rate, from 27.82% to
25.17%, has resulted in a reduction of deferred tax expense by Rs.2.05 million for the current year.

33 . Leases

a . Lessee accounting

Lease liabilities movement:

       (In Rs. Million)

Particulars As at As at
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Lease liability at the beginning of the year 21.67 31.27

Add: Interest on Lease liability 3.84 3.16

Less: Lease rental payments (13 .40) (12.76)

Lease Liability at the end of the year 12.11 21.67

Total Cash outflow for leases:

Particulars As at As at
31 st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Operating lease rentals not included in 7.47 6.55
the measurement of the lease liabilities

The Group has taken various residential/ commercial premises on cancellable operating leases. As per the
terms and conditions mentioned in the respective lease agreements, the same are generally renewed on
expiry of the lease period and there is no lock-in period in such operating lease taken by the Group.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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34 . Segment Reporting

Segment information as required by IND AS 108 "Operating Segments" as prescribed by Rules, as amended is
set out in a separate statement annexed thereto.

35 . Relationship with Struck off companies:

The Group did not enter into any transaction with Companies struck off from ROC records for the period ended
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

36 . Disclosures for investments and transactions through/ as an intermediary:

a. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company / subsidiary
companies (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. No funds have been received by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (funding parties) with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company / subsidiary companies shall, whether directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

37 . (A) Management review of certain litigations by and against the Company does not warrant recognition of
any provision in the books of account as at 31 March, 2024. The Company, shall continue the review in
future and if required carry out the necessary accounting adjustments.

(B) One of the investors (i.e. AIRRO Mauritius Holdings V) of NECE Ltd, a step-down subsidiary of the Company,
has in terms of Shareholders' Agreement (SHA) dated 24th December 2010, exercised a default put option
of its equity shares held in NECE Ltd., on the Company, which the Company has denied as wrongful, and has
rejected and disputed its invocation. As on the date of approval of these financial statements, the purchase
price of such shares of NECE Ltd. cannot be estimated since invocation of the put option is under dispute.

38 . Statement containing the salient features of the Financial of Subsidiary companies in terms of Section 129(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013, is annexed.

39 . During the year ended March 31, 2011, NECE Ltd. issued Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") to
their Investor (i.e. AIRRO Mauritius Holdings V, including its successors and assigns) amounting to Rs. 4,999.85
Millions. These CCPS were recorded as a financial liability on First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
i.e. the Ind AS (i.e. AS 101) transition date being 01 April 2016 at Rs. 3,113.00 Millions with the difference of Rs.
1,886.85 Millions recorded as adjustment to retained earnings of NECE Ltd. These CCPS were converted into
3,40,45,692 (Three Crore, forty lakh, forty five thousand six hundred ninety two) equity shares during the year
ended 31 March 2017 and consequently Rs. 340.46 Millions was recorded as equity share capital and Rs. 2,772.54
Million was recorded as share premium by NECE Ltd.

During the current year, the management of NECE Ltd. has re-evaluated the provisions of the shareholders
agreement between NECE Ltd., the Promoters, the Sponsors and the Investor("SHA") and concluded that
despite the buy back rights for the Investor under SHA, NECE Ltd. need not recognise any financial liability
because the Investor has not exercised the buy back which is triggered upon issuance of a buy back notice
containing a clear intention to exercise the buy back along with prescribed details, following the procedure
outlined under the SHA and in accordance with the procedure prescribed by applicable law. NECE Ltd. is also
aware that the Investor, Promoters and Sponsors are in advanced discussions with regards to exploring alternative
exit options. Therefore, the management of NECE Ltd. continues to believe that none of the equity shares
issued by NECE Ltd. need to be classified as a financial liability.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :

40 . Event occurred after balance sheet date and before the date of signing the financial statements-

The toll operations of one of our Material Subsidiaries viz. Nandi Highway Developers Limited (NHDL) have
successfully concluded w.e.f. September 07, 2024, due to end of term of Concession agreement dated February
05, 1998 and Supplementary agreement dated June 21, 2024 between NHDL, Government of India and
Government of Karnataka. Considering the future business plans by the management of NHDL and positive net
worth of NHDL, the assets in the said subsidiary are considered good.

41 . Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of BF UTILITIES LIMITED
For G D APTE & CO. CIN : L40108PN2000PLC015323
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100515W

Anagha M Nanivadekar A.B. KALYANI B.S. MITKARI
Partner Director Director, CEO, CFO &
Membership No. 121007 Company Secretary

DIN : 00089430 DIN : 03632549

Pune, 11 November, 2024 Pune, 11 November, 2024
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Annexure referred to Note No. 34 Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of BF Utilities Ltd.

Disclosure of Segment information

Segmentwise Revenue, Results, and Capital Employed based on Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2024.

 (Rs. In Million)

Sr. Particulars Year ended  Year ended
No. 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

1 Segment Revenue

a. Wind Mills              216.80              195.59

b. Infrastructure           9,668.45            7,562.38

Total           9,885.25            7,757.97

Less : Inter segment revenue                     -                    -

Net sales / income from operations           9,885.25            7,757.97

     2 Segment results

Profit / (Loss)   (before tax and interest from each segment)

a. Wind Mills                  7.74                  9.36

b. Infrastructure           5,332.02            4,561.49

Total           5,339.76            4,570.85

Less : i) Interest and Finance Charges           1,418.91            1,830.27

ii) Other unallocable expenditure net                  1.49                  1.59
off unallocable income

Total Profit / (Loss) before tax and Exceptional Items           3,919.36            2,738.99

Exceptional Item                     -                    -

Total Profit /(Loss) before tax           3,919.36            2,738.99

     3 Total Carrying amount of segment assets

a. Wind Mills              541.67              489.45

b. Infrastructure          23,725.03          21,873.13

c. Unallocable                  6.81                  6.16

Total          24,273.51          22,368.74

     4 Total segment liablities

a. Wind Mills              328.67              325.21

b. Infrastructure           4,705.90            3,935.22

c. Unallocable                  4.62                  5.35

Total           5,039.19            4,265.78

     5 Capital employed (Segment Assets - Segment
Liabilities)

a. Wind Mills              213.00              164.24

b. Infrastructure          19,019.13          17,937.91

c. Other - Unallocable                  2.19                  0.81

Total          19,234.32          18,102.96

     6 Total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets
that are expected to be used during more than one period

a. Wind Mills                  0.22                  0.10

b. Infrastructure           3,219.88            1,128.07

c. Other - Unallocable                     -                    -

Total           3,220.10            1,128.17

     7 Depreciation and amortisation

a. Wind Mills                  7.10                  7.11

b. Infrastructure              653.15              572.93

 Total              660.25              580.04

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Annexure to Note No. 38

Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries.

In Rs. Million

Subsidiaries

Sr . Particulars Nandi Nandi Nandi BFUL
N o Infrastructure Economic Highway Resources

Corridor Corridor Developers Pvt. Ltd.
Enterprise Enterprises Limited

Limited Limited
(Step down
subsidiary)

1 Reporting Period Apr 23 to Apr 23 to Apr 23 to Apr 23 to
Mar 24 Mar 24 Mar 24 Mar 24

2 Reporting Currency INR INR INR INR

3 Exchange rate 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

4 Share Capital              1,040.94                 2,090.47              375.00                  0.10

5 Reserves & Surplus               (205.31)                 1,947.47           2,482.92                  5.32

6 Total Assets              1,482.89               21,371.00           3,098.94                  5.59

7 Total Liabilities                 647.26               17,333.06              241.02                  0.17

8 Details of Investment (except in 0.06                    541.73               70.01                    -
case of Investments in subsidiries)

9 Turnover                  19.26                 8,379.98           1,279.80                  0.81

10 Profit before Taxation                 (88.26)                 2,988.56              962.00                  0.55

11 Provision for Taxation                  18.91                    663.89              165.50                    -

12 Profit after Taxation               (107.17)                 2,324.67              796.49                  0.55

13 Extent of shareholding 74.52% 42.16% 69.53% 100%
(in percentage)

Notes

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations  : NA / Nil

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. :  NA / Nil

3. Turnover includes other income

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :



210 BF UTILITIES LIMITED annual report 2023-2024

Annexure A
Statutory Group Information

Annexure referred to Note No. 1 (c) notes forming part of
the Consolidated Financial Statements of BF Utilities Ltd.

Name of the entity in Net assets (Total Share in Share in Other Share in Total
the group assets - total profit and loss Comprehensive Comprehensive

l i ab i l i t i e s ) Income Income

As a % of Rs. in As a % of Rs. in As a % of Rs. in As a % of  Rs. in
consol i - Mi l l ion consol i - Mi l l ion consol i - Mi l l ion consol i - Mi l l ion

dated  dated dated other dated total
net profit or Compre- Compre-

a s s e t s l o s s hens ive hens ive
income income

Holding Company

BF Utilities Ltd

As at & for year ended         267.85     1,482.88            3.32       100.87             (18.16)     1.01                3.36      101.88
31 March, 2024

As at & for year ended (150.59)     1,381.00            2.25        57.72               26.35     0.59                2.27        58.31
31 March, 2023

Subsidiaries (Indian)

Nandi Infrastructure Corridor
Enterprise Ltd. (NICE)

As at & for year ended         150.94        835.63           (3.53)     (107.17)                   -        -               (3.54)     (107.17)
31 March, 2024

As at & for year ended       (110.67)     1,014.92           (0.50)       (12.81)                   -        -               (0.50)       (12.81)
31 March, 2023

Nandi Highway Developers
Ltd.(NHDL)

As at & for year ended         516.23     2,857.92          26.24       796.49               75.96   (4.26)               26.15      792.24
31 March, 2024

As at & for year ended       (247.06)     2,265.69          24.59       631.12               92.57     2.05               24.65      633.17
31 March, 2023

Nandi Economic Corridor
Enterprises Ltd.  (NECE)

As at & for year ended         729.38     4,037.93          76.59    2,324.67               42.20   (2.37)               76.66    2,322.30
31 March, 2024

As at & for year ended       (187.08)     1,715.63          76.35    1,959.47             (18.92)   (0.42)               76.27    1,959.06
31 March, 2023

BFUL Resources Pvt. Ltd.

As at & for year ended            0.98           5.42            0.02          0.55                   -        -                0.02          0.55
31 March, 2024

As at & for year ended           (0.53)           4.86            0.02          0.54                   -        -                0.02          0.54
31 March, 2023

Non-Controlling Interest in
all Subsidiaries

As at & for year ended      1,032.40     5,715.48          51.45    1,561.46               47.55   (2.67)               51.45    1,558.79
31 March, 2024

As at & for year ended       (459.91)     4,217.64          51.53    1,322.40               17.26     0.38               51.50    1,322.78
31 March, 2023

Adjustments arising out of
consolidation

As at & for year ended         532.98     2,950.65         (48.80)   (1,481.14)             (47.55)     2.68             (48.80)  (1,478.44)
31 March, 2024

As at & for year ended       (336.02)     3,081.55         (48.82)   (1,252.97)             (17.26)   (0.38)             (48.79)  (1,253.25)
31 March, 2023

Total (for year ended         100.00      553.62         100.00  3,035.09             100.00  (5.61)             100.00  3,029.48
31 March 2024)

Total (for year ended         100.00     (917.07)         100.00  2,566.52             100.00    2.22             100.00  2,568.74
31 March 2023)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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Annexure A (Cont.)
Statutory Group Information

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 112 "Disclosure of interest in other entities"

Subsidiaries having material non control interest.

1 Summarise statement of Profit and Loss.

Rs. in Million

Particulars NICE NECE NHDL

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Total Income 19.26 26.13 8,379.98 6,384.98 1,279.80 1,172.03

Profit / (Loss) after tax (107.17) (12.81) 2,324.67 1,959.47 796.49 631.12

Other Comprehensive Income - - (2.37) (0.42) (4.26) 2.05

Total Comprehensive income (107.17) (12.81) 2,322.30 1,959.05 792.23 633.17

Effective % of non-controlling 25.48% 25.48% 57.84% 57.84% 30.47% 30.47%
interest

Profit / (Loss) allocated to (27 .31) (3.26) 1,343.22 1,133.11 241.39 192.93
non-controlling interest

Dividend to Non-controlling interest - - - - 60.95 30.45

2 Summarised Balance Sheet

Rs. in Million

Particulars NICE NECE NHDL

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Current Assets (a) 244.67 247.79 4,281.29 4,203.52 408.97 247.78

Current Liabilities (b) 39.98 46.70 3,431.68 3,108.47 183.80 551.52

Net Current Assets ( c) = (a)-(b) 204.69 201.09 849.61 1,095.05 225.17 (303.74)

Non - Current Assets (d) 1,238.23 1,449.93 17,089.71  15,377.06 2,689.97 2,670.63

Non - Current Liabilities (e) 607.28 636.09 13,901.38 14,756.48 57.22 101.19

Net Non - Current Assets ( f) = (d)-(e) 630.95 813.84 3,188.33 620.58 2,632.75 2,569.44

Net Assets (g) = ( c) + (f) 835.64 1,014.93 4,037.94 1,715.63 2,857.92 2,265.70

Accumulated non controlling interest 247.02 274.33 4,101.52 2,758.30 962.22 720.83

3 Summarised Statement of Cash Flow

Rs. in Million

Particulars NICE NECE NHDL

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Cash flow form operating activities 11.34 2.95 4,933.38 3,585.77 820.00 735.28

Cash flow form investing activities (12 .99) (2.06) (2 ,122.08) (341.83) (221.90) (816.38)

Cash flow form Financing activities 0.08 - (2 ,838.99) (2,832.27) (616.40) 91.45

Net increase / (decrease) in (1.57) 0.89 (27 .69) 411.67 (18 .30) 10.35
cash and cash equivalents

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 :
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